
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Corporate Governance Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 1 November 2019 at 10.00 am 

Location: Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Mrs L Walton (tel: 0116 305 2583) 

Email: lauren.walton@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. T. Barkley CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 

Mr. T. Gillard CC 
Mr. J. Kaufman CC 

Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC 
Mr. T. J. Richardson CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. A. Wright CC 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2019  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

Annual Audit Letter 2018-19  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 11 - 28) 

7.  Risk Management Update  Director of (Pages 29 - 46) 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works


 
 
 
 

 

   Corporate 
Resources 
 

8.  
  

Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman Annual Review 2018/19 and 
Update on Complaints and Freedom of 
Information Requests  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources and 
Chief Executive 
 

(Pages 47 - 88) 

9.  
  

Clinical Governance Annual Report  
 

Director of Public 
Health 
 

(Pages 89 - 
100) 

10.  
  

Contract Procedure Rules  
 

 
 

(Pages 101 - 
140) 

11.  
  

Financial Procedure Rules  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 141 - 
146) 

12.  
  

Quarterly Treasury Management Report  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 147 - 
158) 

13.  
  

Internal Audit Service Progress Report  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 159 - 
172) 

14.  
  

Developments in Audit and Governance  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources and 
Director of Law 
and Governance 
 

(Pages 173 - 
180) 

15.  
  

Date of next meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting will take place on Friday, 31st January 2020 at 
10.00am. 
 

 

16.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Friday, 26 July 2019.  
 

PRESENT 
 

 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 
Mr. J. Kaufman CC 
Mrs. R. Page CC 
 

Mr. A. E. Pearson CC 
Mrs B. Seaton CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. A. Wright CC 
 

 
 

1. Appointment of Chairman.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Mr T. Barkley CC be elected Chairman for the period ending with the date of the 
Annual Meeting of the County Council in May 2020. 
 

Mr T. Barkley CC – in the Chair 
 

2. Election of Vice Chairman.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Mr T. J. Richardson CC be elected Chairman for the period ending with the date of 
the Annual Meeting of the County Council in May 2020. 
 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 10th May 2019.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 May 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

4. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

5. Questions asked by members under Standing Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

6. To advise of any other items which the Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

3 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

7. Declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda.  
 
The Chairman invited Members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
Mrs. A. Wright CC declared a personal interest which might lead to bias in agenda item 9: 
Risk Management Report, in connection with work carried out by her employer, Browne 
Jacobson LLP, on matters referred to in that report.  She undertook to leave the room 
during consideration of this item. 
 
During the meeting (minute 25 below refers) Mr. S. Sheahan CC and Mr. J. Coxon CC 
each declared a personal interest in agenda item 9 (Risk Management Report) as they 
owned property within close proximity to the proposed HS2 route.  Both members stated 
that, should the debate on this item go into matters of detail regarding HS2 and in 
particular the location of the line, they would consider the matter a “personal interest that 
may lead to bias” and leave the room. 
 

8. External Audit of the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and 
Pension Fund Accounts  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which set out 
the key findings from the external audit of the 2018/19 financial statements and sought 
approval of the draft letter of representation to Grant Thornton UK LLP, the Council’s 
external auditors.  A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 8’, is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
The Chairman welcomed John Gregory and Avtar Sohal of Grant Thornton UK LLP to the 
meeting.   
 
Mr Gregory highlighted the following regarding the outcome of the external audit: 
 

 One significant adjustment had been made to the County Council’s accounts, 
increasing its pension liability by £13m, following a recent court ruling which had 
confirmed the transition arrangements introduced by the Government following 
changes made to public service pensions were discriminatory (Lord Chancellor v 
McCloud and others).  This affected pension funds nationally and had resulted in 
all local authorities having to make similar late adjustments to their accounts;  

 

 The additional liability was an estimate only as the remedy for the case had not yet 
been determined and might not be for some time.  The auditors had confirmed the 
estimate to be fair and reasonable.  This would not affect the Council for some 
time as the costs would be added to and spread out over the existing pension 
deficit reduction period; 

 

 The audit process, which was a risk-based assessment, had determined that the 
County Council was in a strong financial position overall and no significant risks 
had been highlighted that required further action.  Mr Gregory advised that this 
was a particularly significant finding as usually further assessment around a 
council’s financial resilience would be necessary, particularly for an authority of 
this size;     

 

4



 
 

 

 Risk ratings were determined following a review of estimations made by the 
County Council within their accounts and corroborative evidence sought to ensure 
these were reasonable;  

 

 The Council continued to face financial uncertainties but having tested the 
Council’s risk management processes and considering the level and management 
of its reserves, it was regarded as being in a strong position to withstand such 
uncertainties in the short to medium term; 
 

 Any material misstatements identified as part of the audit would be reported to the 
Committee either by officers or the auditors.  No such misstatements had been 
identified this year.   

 
The Director of Corporate Resources thanked Grant Thornton UK LLP for the work they 
had undertaken adding that he felt the audit process had been thorough and detailed, 
providing significant challenge to the Council’s processes. Overall, he was particularly 
pleased with the comments regarding the County Council’s financial resilience, as this 
reflected a decade of work and prudent financial planning by the County Council to 
ensure it could respond to ever changing financial pressures. 
 
The Chairman added that he felt substantial assurance had been provided in all areas by 
the external auditors and thanked officers for the work undertaken. 
 
Members thanked Mr Gregory and Grant Thornton UK LLP for the work they had 
undertaken on behalf of the Council.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the key findings from the external audit of the 2018/19 finance statements 
carried out by Grant Thornton LLP be noted; 
 

(b) That the letters of representation be approved. 
 

9. Risk Management Report.  
 
[Mrs. A. Wright CC having declared an interest which might lead to bias in this item left 
the meeting at this point and did not return to the meeting.] 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources, the purpose 
of which was to provide an overview of key risks faced by the Authority and the measures 
being taken to address them.  A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 9’, is filed with 
these minutes. 
 
The Committee also received a presentation on Corporate Risk 1.7 on the Corporate 
Risk Register: If the Council is not compliant with the HMRC IR35 regulations regarding 
the employment of self-employed personnel then there is a risk of large financial 
penalties. A copy of the presentation slides is filed with these minutes. 
 
 
 
 

5



 
 

 

Presentation - Employment Status for Tax, ‘Off-Payroll’ Working (IR35) for Public 
Authorities  
 

i) Since April 2017, public authorities (and agency, or third party paying the 
intermediary) have had the responsibility of determining an individual’s 
employment status and whether off-payroll working rules apply and ensuring 
that tax and National Insurance contributions are paid as necessary; 

 
ii) A number of steps had been taken by the County Council to ensure its 

compliance with the rules, in particular improving the guidance and support for 
managers to enable them to identify where IR35 might be relevant; 
 

iii) A HR Compliance Officer had been appointed and would be dedicated to the 
tasks associated with ensuring the Council’s compliance with IR35 regulations;  
 

iv) Reed agency had been contracted as a managed service for agency workers. 
This included Reed managing the payroll for those workers;  

 
v) A clear process had been set-up for new engagements and checks were being 

carried out by managers to evidence IR35 compliance.  
 
Prior to consideration of the Corporate Risk Register both Mr. S. Sheahan CC and Mr. J. 
Coxon CC each declared a personal interest in this item as they owned property within 
close proximity to the proposed HS2 route.  Both members stated that, should the 
Committee debate matters relating to HS2, in particular the location of the line, they 
would consider the matter a “personal interest that may lead to bias” and leave the room. 
 
Risk Register 
 

vi) Risk 2.3: Challenges caused by the Welfare Reform Act 2012 and the Welfare 
Reform and Work Act 2016 - A Member expressed concern on the impact for 
local residents and the County Council regarding the Government’s delay to 
move existing claimants from the legacy benefits to Universal Credit.  The 
County Council, along with other Local Authorities, were awaiting further 
direction from the Secretary of State on this matter; 
 

vii) Emerging Risk: Climate Change - It was acknowledged that the County 
Council’s target to be carbon neutral in its operations by 2030 was ambitious 
and would require support from all parties involved for this to be achieved.  
Members supported the inclusion of this risk on the Corporate Risk Register to 
ensure this could be properly monitored.   The Director advised that a report 
setting out initial proposals to meet this target would be presented to the 
Cabinet in the Autumn; 
 

viii)Members requested that a presentation be provided at its next meeting on 
corporate risk 1.3 (If the Council fails to maximise developer contributions, then 
there could be a failure to fund corporate infrastructure projects). 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the current status of the strategic risks facing the County Council be 

approved; 
 

6



 
 

 

(b) That the content of the presentation provided on corporate risk 1.7 – If the Council 
is not compliant with HMRC IR35 regulations regarding the employment of self-
employed personnel then there is a risk of large financial penalties – be noted; 
 

(c) That at the next meeting of the Committee a presentation be provided on 
corporate risk 1.3 (If the Council fails to maximise developer contributions, then 
there could be a failure to fund corporate infrastructure projects); 
 

(d) That the updates provided on Climate Change and HS2 Phase 2B be noted; 
 

(e) That the update provided on the risk management health check be noted. 
  

10. Local Code of Corporate Governance 2019.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources and the 
Director of Law and Governance, the purpose of which was to provide an overview of the 
revisions made to the Code and to recommend its approval by the Cabinet on 13 
September and full Council on 25 September 2019.  A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda 
Item 10’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from discussion, the following points arose:  
 

i) In response to a question from a Member regarding the co-ordination of Freedom 
of Interest (FOI) requests, the Director of Law and Governance confirmed that 
although some departments co-ordinated their own requests, the County Council 
had a central team that owned, recorded and co-ordinated multi-departmental FOI 
requests; 
  

ii) Regarding planned actions recorded within the Code, a Member suggested that 
the language used could be made more specific to ensure there was no 
uncertainty about what was required to be done by officers and members;  
 

iii) A Member sought confirmation of the date the Modern Slavery and Human 
Trafficking Statement had been approved by the Cabinet which was referenced in 
the new Code.  The Director undertook to provide this information after the 
meeting.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the Director of Corporate Resources and the Chief Executive be requested to 
consider the language used in respect of planned actions recorded within the 
Code to ensure these were appropriately specific; 
 

(b) That the Cabinet be recommended to approve the revised Local Code of 
Corporate Governance 2019 and that this be referred to full Council for approval 
on 25 September 2019; 
 

(c) That the Chief Executive be requested to confirm when the Modern Slavery and 
Human Trafficking Statement had been approved by the Cabinet and to circulate a 
copy of this to the Committee for information. 
 

 

7



 
 

 

11. Annual Report on the operation of the Members' Code of Conduct and arrangements for 
dealing with complaints  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Law and Governance regarding the 
operation of the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct from May 2018 to date.  A copy of 
the report marked ‘Agenda Item 11’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Director advised the Committee of an error contained in paragraph 5 of the report 
and clarified that there had been four complaints relating to five members, rather than 
seven as had been stated. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

12. Internal Audit Service Progress Report.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
provided a summary of work conducted between 29 April 2019 and 12 July 2019.  It also 
advised of progress on the implementation of high importance recommendations.  A copy 
of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 12’, is filed with these minutes 
 
In response to questions raised regarding the robustness of the County Council’s 
processes for preventing overpayments the Director advised that large overpayments 
were unusual, though, as some payments to service users and providers were paid in 
advance, there was always a degree of risk in the system.  As a result, as a matter of 
good practice a significant amount of technical testing was carried out on a regular basis 
to ensure any errors were spotted early.  Lessons had been learnt from the recent audit 
of residential rehabilitation payments made to providers and greater rigour added to the 
system to further improve practices.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the audit work undertaken during the period 29 April 2019 to 12 July 2019 and 
actions taken to implement high importance recommendations be noted. 
 

13. Quarterly Treasury Management Update.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
provided an update on the actions taken in respect of treasury management for the 
quarter ending 30 June 2019.  A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 13’, is filed with 
these minutes. 
 
In response to questions raised, the Director confirmed that the Council held no 
investments abroad and so was not affected by fluctuating exchange rates. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the actions taken in respect of treasury management for the quarter ending 30 June 
2019 be noted. 
 
 
 

8



 
 

 

14. Date of future meetings.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the next meeting of the Committee be held on 1st November 2019 at 10.00am. 
 
Meeting dates proposed for 2020 are: – 
  
Friday, 31st January at 10.00am 
Friday, 22nd May at 2.00pm 
Friday, 24th July at 10.00am 
Friday, 6th November at 10.00am 
 
 

1010.15 - 11.47 am CHAIRMAN 
26 26 July 2019 

 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2018/19 
 

Purpose of the report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to present the Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19 for 

approval. 
 
Background 
 
2. A copy of the Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19 is included as an Appendix to this 

report.  A representative from Grant Thornton UK LLP, will attend the meeting to 
present the letter and answer any questions. 

 
Annual Audit Letter  

 
3. The Annual Audit Letter summarises the outcome of Grant Thornton’s work at the 

County Council for the 2018/19 audit year.  No issues are raised within the report. 
 
Recommendation   
 
4. The Committee are asked to approve the Annual Audit Letter and agree its 

distribution to all Members of the Council. 
 
Circulation Under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 

 
11 Agenda Item 6

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
../Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



The Annual Audit Letter

for Leicestershire County Council 

and Leicestershire Pension Fund 

Year ended 31 March 2019

August 2019

13



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Audit of the Financial Statements 5

3. Value for Money conclusion 11

Appendices

A     Reports issued and fees                                                                                 12Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

John Gregory

Engagement Lead

T:  0121 232 5333

E: john.gregory@uk.gt.com

Avtar Sohal

Engagement Manager 

T: 0121 232 5420

E: avtar.s.sohal@uk.gt.com

Kerry Sharma

Executive

T: 0116 257 5576

E: kerry.sharma@uk.gt.com

14

mailto:john.gregory@uk.gt.com
mailto:avtar.s.sohal@uk.gt.com
mailto:kerry.sharma@uk.gt.com


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  3

Executive Summary

Purpose

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 

work that we have carried out at Leicestershire County Council (‘the Council’) 

and the Leicestershire Pension Fund (‘Pension Fund’) for the year ended 31 

March 2019.  

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to 

the Council and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to 

draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed 

the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor 

Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed 

findings from our audit work to the Council’s Corporate Governance 

Committee as those charged with governance in our Audit Findings Report 

on 26 July 2019.

Respective responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, 

which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 

Act). Our key responsibilities are to:

• give an opinion on the Council’s and Pension Fund’s financial statements (section 

two)

• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section 

three).

In our audit of the Council’s financial statements, we comply with International 

Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Materiality We determined materiality for the audit of the Council's financial statements to be £14m, using the Council's gross revenue 

expenditure as the relevant benchmark. For the Pension Fund, we determined materiality as £29m, using the fund’s net assets 

as the relevant benchmark.

Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council’s and Pension Fund’s financial statements on 31 July 2019. 

Whole of Government Accounts 

(WGA)

We completed work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO.

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Our work

15



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  4

Executive Summary

Working with the Council

This is the first year that we have worked with the Council in delivering the 

external audit. We have built strong working relationships over the year and 

were able to deliver:

• A timely audit – we delivered our audit work to enable you to publish 

audited financial statements in line with the national deadline of 31 July 

2019

• We have highlighted areas of improvement as part of our discussions with 

management over areas such as valuations of land and buildings

• shared insights – we provided regular audit committee updates covering best 

practice. We also shared our thought leadership reports

• training – we provided your teams with training on financial statements and annual 

reporting

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation

provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

August 2019

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 31 July 2019.

Certificate We were unable to certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Leicestershire County Council until we 

have completed our work on the Whole Government Accounts review. This will be completed in line with national deadline. We 

also need to wait until The Pension Fund Annual Report has been produced in line with the national deadline for this, and 

undertake the necessary work to ensure this is consistent with the audited Pension Fund accounts.

16



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  5

Audit of the Financial Statements

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the Council’s financial statements, we use the concept of 

materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in 

evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the 

misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably 

knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements 

to be £14,000,000, using the Council’s gross revenue expenditure as the 

relevant benchmark. We used this benchmark as, in our view, users of the 

Council's financial statements are most interested in where the Council has 

spent its revenue in the year. 

For the Pension Fund, we have determined financial statement materiality 

based on a proportion of the Pension Fund’s net assets. Our materiality at 

the planning stage was £29m which equates to 1% of your actual net assets 

for the year ended 31 March 2018.

We also set a lower level of specific materiality for senior officer 

remuneration disclosures of £100K

We set a lower threshold of £700k above which we reported errors to the 

Corporate Governance Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and 

adequately disclosed; 

• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

We also read the remainder of the financial statements and the narrative report, 

annual governance statement and Pension Fund financial statements to check it is 

consistent with our understanding of the Council and with the financial statements 

included in the Annual Report on which we gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit 

Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council’s business 

and is risk based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to 

these risks and the results of this work.

17



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  6

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Management override of internal controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk 

of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The 

Authority and Fund faces external scrutiny of its spending and this could 

potentially place management under undue pressure in terms of how they 

report performance.

As part of our audit work we completed;

• evaluated the design effectiveness of 

management controls over journals

• analysed the journals listing and 

determined the criteria for selecting high 

risk unusual journals 

• tested unusual journals recorded during 

the year and after the draft accounts stage 

for appropriateness and corroboration

• gained an understanding of the 

accounting estimates and critical  

judgements applied made by 

management and considered their 

reasonableness with regard to 

corroborative evidence

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in 

accounting policies, estimates or 

significant unusual transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any 

issues in respect of management 

override of controls.

18



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  7

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks - Continued
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of land and buildings

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a 

rolling five-yearly basis..  This valuation represents a 

significant estimate by management in the financial 

statements due to the size of the numbers involved 

(NBV of L&B £547million) and the sensitivity of this 

estimate to changes in key assumptions. Additionally, 

management will need to ensure the carrying value in 

the Authority financial statements is not materially 

different from the current value or the fair value (for 

surplus assets) at the financial statements date, where 

a rolling programme is used.

As part of our audit work we have:

• Evaluated management’s processes and assumptions for the calculation

of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope

of their work

• evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation

expert

• written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was

carried out to ensure that the requirements of the Code have been met

• Challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to

assess completeness and consistency with our understanding

• tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input

correctly into the Authority's asset register

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not

revalued during the year and how management have satisfied

themselves that these are not materially different to current value at year

end

From the procedures carried 

out we are satisfied that the 

valuation of land and building 

in the financial statements is 

not materially misstated, 

although we are discussing 

with officers the scope for 

improvement in valuation 

processes for next year. 19



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  8

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks - Continued
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of net pension liability

The Authority's pension fund net liability, as reflected 

in its balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, 

represents a significant estimate in the financial 

statements.  

The pension fund net liability is considered a 

significant estimate due to the size of the numbers 

involved (£742m million in the Authority’s balance 

sheet at 31 March 2019) and the sensitivity of the 

estimate to changes in key assumptions.

As part of our audit work we have:

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by 

management to ensure that the Council’s net pension fund liability is not 

materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

• evaluated the instructions issued by management  to their management 

expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who 

carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation; 

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by 

the Council to the actuary to estimate the liability;

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and 

disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial 

report from the actuary;

• undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial 

assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as 

auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested 

within the report

The Authority have completed 

a revised actuarial 

assessment for the McCloud 

judgement and updated 

investment valuation and 

have revised their financial 

statements to reflect.

Our audit procedures have 

confirmed that the pension 

liability is not materially 

misstated in the financial 

statements after these 

adjustments

20



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  9

Audit of the Financial Statements

Pension Fund Significant Audit Risks 
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work on the pension fund. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of level 3 investments

The Fund revalues its investments on an annual basis to ensure that the 

carrying value is not materially different from the fair value at the financial 

statements date.

By their nature Level 3 investment valuations lack observable inputs. 

These valuations therefore represent a significant estimate by 

management in the financial statements due to the size of the numbers 

involved and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key 

assumptions

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant non-routine 

transactions and judgemental matters.  Level 3 investments by their very 

nature require a significant degree of judgement to reach an appropriate 

valuation at year end.

• Evaluated management's processes for 

valuing Level 3 investments 

• Reviewed the nature and basis of 

estimated values and considered what 

assurance management has over the year 

end valuations provided for these types of 

investments; 

• For a sample of investments, tested the 

valuation by obtaining and reviewing the 

audited accounts, (where available) at the 

latest date for individual investments and 

agreeing these to the fund manager 

reports at that date, and reconciled those 

values to the values at 31 March 2019 

with reference to known movements in the 

intervening period.

• In the absence of available audited 

accounts, we evaluated the competence, 

capabilities and objectivity of the expert on 

which management relied for the valuation

:

From the audit testing completed we are 

satisfied that the Valuation of Level 3 

investments is free from material 

misstatement

21



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  10

Audit of the Financial Statements

Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council’s and Pension Fund’s 

financial statements on 31 July 2019.

Preparation of the financial statements

The Council presented us with draft financial statements in accordance with 

the national deadline, and provided a good set of working papers to support 

them. The finance team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries 

during the course of the audit. 

Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements

We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council’s Corporate 

Governance Committee on 31 July 2019. 

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and 

Narrative Report. It published them on its website in the Statement of 

Accounts in line with the national deadlines. 

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant 

supporting guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent 

with  the financial statements prepared by the Council and with our 

knowledge of the Council. 

Pension fund accounts We gave an unqualified opinion on the pension fund 

accounts of Leicestershire Pension Fund on 31 July 2019. We also reported the key 

issues from our audit of the pension fund accounts to the Council’s  Corporate 

Governance Committee on 26 July 2019. 

Certificate of closure of the audit

We are to complete our audit procedures on Whole of Government Accounts in line 

with national deadlines of September 2019 and as such have not issued the audit 

certificate for Leicestershire County Council.

Due to statutory deadlines the Pension Fund Annual Report is not required to be 

published until the 1st December 2019 and therefore this report has not yet been 

produced. We have therefore not given this separate opinion at this time and are 

unable to certify completion of the audit of the administering authority until this work 

has been completed. 

22



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  11

Value for Money conclusion

Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit 

Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2017 which 

specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions 

and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 

taxpayers and local people. 

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 

identify the risks where we concentrated our work. We did not identify any 

significant risk areas for Leicestershire County Council. We continued to 

review key documents up until we gave our Value for Money conclusion and 

no new risks emerged.

Overall Value for Money conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

for the year ending 31 March 2019.

23



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  12

A. Reports issued and fees 

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services

Fees

Planned

£

Actual fees 

£

2017/18 fees

£

Statutory audit 59,252 65,252 76,950

Audit of Leicestershire Pension Fund 21,280 21,280 27,637

Total fees (excluding VAT) 80,532 86,532 104,587

Fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.

Reports issued

Report Date issued

Audit Plan January 2019

Audit Findings Report July 2019

Annual Audit Letter August 2019

Audit fee variation

As outlined in our audit plan, the 2018-19 scale fee published by PSAA 

of £59,252 assumes that the scope of the audit does not significantly 

change.  There are a number of areas where the scope of the audit has 

changed, which has led to additional work.  These are set out in the 

following table.

Area Reason

Fee 

proposed 

Assessing the 

impact of the 

McCloud ruling 

The Government’s transitional arrangements 

for pensions were ruled discriminatory by the 

Court of Appeal last December. The Supreme 

Court refused the Government’s application for 

permission to appeal this ruling.  As part of our 

audit we have reviewed the revised actuarial 

assessment of the impact on the financial 

statements along with any audit reporting 

requirements. 

£3,000

PPE Valuation –

work of experts 

As above, the Financial Reporting Council has 

highlighted that auditors need to improve the 

quality of work on PPE valuations across the 

sector. We have increased the volume and 

scope of our audit work to reflect this. 

£3,000 

Total £6,000

24



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  13

A. Reports issued and fees continued

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Fees for non-audit services

Service Fees £

Audit related services 

- We are required to respond to requests received 

from other auditors of other bodies for assurance 

in respect of information held by the Pension Fund 

and provided to the actuary to support their 

individual IAS 19 calculations will be billed in 

addition to the audit fee of the pension fund. 

6,000

Non-Audit related services

- None

Nil

Non- audit services

• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant 

Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The table 

above summarises all non-audit services which were identified.

• We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived 

as a threat to our independence as the Council auditor and have 

ensured that appropriate safeguards are put in place. 

25



Our connections
 We are well connected to MHCLG, the 

NAO and key local government networks

 We work with CIPFA, Think Tanks and 
legal firms to develop workshops and good 
practice

 We have a strong presence across all parts 
of local government including blue light 
services

 We provide thought leadership, seminars 
and training to support our clients and to 
provide solutions

Our people
 We have over 25 engagement leads 

accredited by ICAEW, and over 
250 public sector specialists

 We provide technical and personal 
development training

 We employ over 80 Public Sector trainee 
accountants

The Local Government economy 

Local authorities face unprecedented challenges including:

- Financial Sustainability – addressing funding gaps and balancing needs against resources

- Service Sustainability – Adult Social Care funding gaps and pressure on Education, Housing, 

Transport

- Transformation – new models of delivery, greater emphasis on partnerships, more focus on 

economic development

- Technology – cyber security and risk management

At a wider level, the political environment remains complex:

- The government continues its negotiation with the EU over Brexit, and future arrangements 

remain uncertain.

- We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources as part 

of our work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

- We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2018/19 

through on-going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

New 
opportunities 
and challenges 
for your 
community

Our quality
 Our audit approach complies with the 

NAO's Code of Audit Practice, and 
International Standards on Auditing

 We are fully compliant with ethical 
standards

 Your audit team has passed all quality 
inspections including QAD and AQRT

Grant Thornton in Local 
Government

 We work closely with our clients to ensure that we understand their financial challenges, 

performance and future strategy.

 We deliver robust, pragmatic and timely financial statements and Value for Money audits

 We have an open, two way dialogue with clients that support improvements in arrangements 

and the audit process

 Feedback meetings tell us that our clients are pleased with the service we deliver. We are not 

complacent and will continue to improve further

 Our locally based, experienced teams have a commitment to both our clients and the wider 

public sector

 We are a Firm that specialises in Local Government, Health and Social Care, and Cross 

Sector working, with over 25 Key Audit Partners, the most public sector specialist Engagement 

Leads of any firm

 We have strong relationships with CIPFA, SOLCAE, the Society of Treasurers, the Association 

of Directors of Adult Social Care and others. 

Our 
relationship 
with our 
clients– why are 
we best placed?

 Early advice on technical accounting  issues, providing certainty of accounting treatments, future 

financial planning implications and resulting in draft statements that are 'right first time’

 Knowledge and expertise in all matters local government, including local objections and 

challenge, where we have an unrivalled depth of expertise. 

 Early engagement on issues, especially on ADMs, housing delivery changes, Children services 

and Adult Social Care restructuring, partnership working with the NHS, inter authority 

agreements, governance and financial reporting

 Implementation of our recommendations have resulted in demonstrable improvements in your 

underlying arrangements, for example accounting for unique assets, financial management, 

reporting and governance, and tax implications for the Cornwall Council companies 

 Robust but pragmatic challenge – seeking early liaison on issues, and having the difficult 

conversations early to ensure a 'no surprises' approach – always doing the right thing

 Providing regional training and networking opportunities for your teams on technical accounting 

issues and developments and changes to Annual Reporting requirements

 An efficient audit approach, providing  tangible benefits, such as releasing finance staff earlier 

and prompt resolution of issues.

Delivering real 
value through:

Our client base 
and delivery
 We are the largest supplier of external audit 

services to local government

 We audit over 150 local government clients

 We signed 95% of  our local government 
opinions in 2017/18 by 31 July

 In our latest independent client service 
review, we consistently score 9/10 or 
above. Clients value our strong interaction, 
our local knowledge and wealth of 
expertise.

Our technical 
support
 We have specialist leads for Public Sector 

Audit quality and technical

 We provide national technical guidance on 
emerging auditing, financial reporting and 
ethical areas

 Specialist audit software is used to deliver 
maximum efficiencies

Our commitment to our local government 

clients

• Senior level investment

• Local presence enhancing our 

responsiveness, agility and flexibility.

• High quality audit delivery

• Collaborative working across the public 

sector

• Wider connections across the public sector 

economy, including with health and other 

local government bodies

• Investment in Health and Wellbeing, Social 

Value and the Vibrant Economy 

• Sharing of best practice and our thought 

leadership.

• Invitations to training events locally and 

regionally – bespoke training for emerging 

issues

• Further investment in data analytics and 

informatics to keep our knowledge of the 

areas up to date and to assist in designing a 

fully tailored audit approach

26



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES  
 

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
  

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. One of the key roles of the Corporate Governance Committee is to ensure that 

the County Council has effective risk management arrangements in place.  This 
report assists the Committee in fulfilling that role by providing a regular 
overview of key risk areas and the measures being taken to address them.  
This is to enable the Committee to review or challenge progress, as necessary, 
as well as highlight risks that may need to be given further consideration.  This 
report covers: 
 

 The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) – summary of risks. An update on 
each risk is provided in the Appendix attached to this report. 

 Emerging risk – HS2 Phase 2B 

 Risk Management Maturity Health Check – update 

 Counter fraud initiatives - update 
 
Corporate Risk Register (CRR) 
 
2. The County Council maintains Departmental Risk Registers and a Corporate 

Risk Register (CRR).  These registers contain the most significant risks which 
the County Council is managing, and which are ‘owned’ by Directors and 
Assistant Directors.   
 

3. The CRR is designed to capture strategic risk that applies either corporately or 
to specific departments, which by its nature has a long-time span.  The CRR is 
a working document and therefore assurance can be provided that, through 
timetabled review, high/red risks will be added to the CRR as necessary.  
Equally, as further mitigation actions come to fruition and current controls are 
embedded, the risk scores will be reassessed, and this will result in some risks 
being removed from the CRR and reflected within the relevant departmental 
risk register. 
 

4. Movements since the CRR was last presented to the Committee on 26 July 
2019 are detailed below:  

 
 
 
 
 

29 Agenda Item 7



 

Risks Added  
 

 Risk 1.10 (Chief Executives) - The Council is unable to meet the financial 
investment required to deliver infrastructure in support of housing 
development committed in districts Local Plans and that where this 
contribution can be recouped through s106 agreements secured by District 
Councils, the funding doesn’t meet the full cost and is secured long after 
the commitment is made. 

 Risk 3.7 (Corporate Resources) – If the Council fails to prevent a major 
cyber-attack on its ICT infrastructure, then the Council may lose sensitive 
data and its ability to operate 

 Risk 8.3 (Environment & Transport) - If the Council is not able to deliver on 
the commitments it has made in its climate emergency declaration due to 
the complexity and difficulty of some of the decisions and actions that will 
need to be made, then this will impact on the Council’s ability to fulfil its 
leadership role and have financial and reputational consequences.  

 Risk 8.4 (Environment & Transport) - If climate change impacts happen 
more frequently or at a greater intensity than anticipated, then there is the 
risk that County Council services will be negatively affected. 

 
Risks Removed 
 
The Appendix attached provides a summary of all the risks removed together 
with commentary. 

 
Corporate Resources 
 
Risk 1.4 – Claims for uninsured risks 
Risk 1.8 - Public sector partners finances impacting on Council’s financial 
position 
Risk 3.5 - Records management 
Risk 4.1 - Contract Management 
 
Adults and Communities  
 
Risk 7.3 – Sustainable external workforce  
  
Risks Reworded.   
 
The Appendix attached provides details of risks that have been reworded: 

 3.2 – General Data Protection Regulation 

 3.6 – ERP System 
 
5. The table below is a summary of the all the risks on the CRR. The risks are 

numbered within each category and the most up to date position of each risk is 
shown in the Appendix attached to this report.  

 
 
 
 

30



 

Ref Dept. Risk Description 

Current 
risk 

Score 
Sept. 
2019 

Change 
in 

Current 
Risk 

Score 

Target 
risk 
over 

next 12 
months 

 

1. Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 

 

1.1 All MTFS Delivery 20  15  

1.3 CE 
Failure to maximise developer contributions and 
impact on corporate infrastructure projects 

16  10  

1.5 C&FS Child placements demand creates budget pressures 20  20 
 
 

1.6 C&FS Failure to achieve savings (high needs pupils) 20  16  

1.7 CR 
Failure to comply with IR35 regulations (self-
employment) 

20  12  

1.9 C&FS 
Failure to resolve immigration status of UAS children 
increases costs 

16  12  

1.10 CE Unable to deliver the infrastructure (new) 25  15  

2. Health and Social Care Integration 
 

2.2 A&C 
Inability to deliver improved outcomes and financial 
stability 

16  16  

2.3 All Failure to meet demand from Welfare Reform Act 16  16  

3. ICT, Information Security 
 

3.2 All GDPR breach 15  12  

3.6 CR ERP system -delays to implementation 20  10  

3.7 CR Cyber security (new) 16  12  

4. Commissioning 
 

4.2 E&T Arriva are successful in concessionary travel appeal 15  10  

5. Safeguarding 
 

5.1 C&FS IICSA – seriously unknown historic issues identified 25  20 
 
 

6. Brexit 
 

6.1 All Impact of Brexit on public services 16  16  

7. People 
 

7.1 CR Sickness absence is not effectively managed 16  12  

7.2 All Failure to recruit & retain staff (C&FS) 15  15  

8. Business Continuity 
 

8.1 CR Critical suppliers fail on business continuity planning 15  15  

9. Environment 
 

9.1 E&T Impact of Ash Dieback disease 15  10  

9.2 E&T Failure to hold/dispose of waste due to major incident 15  8  

9.3 E&T Climate Emergency Declaration (new) 15  10  

9.4 E&T 
Impact on services from extreme weather events 
(new) 

20  15  

10. Partnerships 
 

  10.1 C&FS 
Failure to secure confidence in mainstream SEND 
provision 

16  
6 

 

 

31



 

 
6. During this quarter, Departments have been proactive in reviews of the 

Corporate/Strategic risks and as shown in the Appendix attached, a number of 
risks have had scores reduced, or the risks are no longer relevant.  One 
department has developed action plans for all of its high-ranking risks.   

 
7. In accordance with the Committee’s request made at its meeting on 26 July 

2019, a presentation will be provided as part of this item on the new risk 1.10 – 
‘The Council is unable to meet the financial investment required to deliver 
infrastructure in support of housing development committed in districts Local 
Plans and that where this contribution can be recouped through s106 
agreements secured by District Councils, the funding doesn’t meet the full cost 
and is secured long after the commitment is made’. 

 
Emerging Risk 
 
High Speed Two (HS2 Phase 2B)  
 
8. The previous report to Members highlighted that there was a possible/emerging 

risk around the Government abandoning the HS2 Phase 2b project through 
Leicestershire.  While this would avoid considerable disruption across the north 
west of the county for a number of years during construction, it would result in 
potentially significant benefits for Leicestershire and the East Midlands not 
being realised.  
 

9. The latest update indicates that there is no new evidence to suggest that the 
Leicestershire section is to be delayed any more than previous assessments. 
However, there has been significant lobbying by East Midlands Councils, 
Midlands Connect and Transport for the East Midlands to the Oakervee 
Review, in support of HS2, and the eastern leg though the East Midlands. 

 
Risk Management Maturity Health Check Update 
 
10. A detailed action plan was presented to Chief Officers to consider the actions 

proposed in response to the Risk Management Partners Consultant’s report.  A 
brief update is provided below: 

o       Work has been continuing over the summer with three departments taking 
reports to their respective Departmental Management Teams to review 
their own department’s results from the anonymous online managers’ 
survey and take necessary actions to make improvements in those areas 
with the least positive responses. A further two departments also near to 
reviewing their results. 

o       With regard to the investment in a centralised Risk Management IT 
system, although Chief Officers were provided with a demonstration of 
Pentana, given current other demands, there was insufficient appetite to 
roll out the system corporately, nevertheless the concept is being explored 
further.  

o       Work is underway to define the County Council’s risk appetite, explore risk 
management training programmes through various options and develop 
guidance on partnership risks. 

32



 

Counter Fraud Initiatives 
 
11. In preparation for International Fraud Awareness Week (17th to 23rd November 

2019), the Internal Audit Service’s counter fraud lead has met with 
Communications Unit to plan raising fraud awareness.  This will include a 
poster campaign on both County Hall noticeboards and at outlying offices 
raising awareness in several key areas. 

12. The Counter Fraud Lead recently attended:  

a. A ‘masterclass’ on Fraud Risk Assessment Training giving thoughtful 
insight into how to conduct an effective fraud risk assessment within an 
authority.  This will lead to a change in how we approach our biennial 
fraud risk assessment at the time of next refresh. 

b. Midland Counties Fraud Group. This group exchanges ideas, experiences 
and recent developments which are shared with appropriate key officers 
and often lead to targeted internal audit work.  

 
Recommendations 

 
13. It is recommended that the Committee: 

 
a) Approves the current status of the strategic risks facing the County 

Council; 
 
b) Makes recommendations on any areas which might benefit from further 

examination and identify a risk area for presentation at its next meeting; 
 
c) Notes the update provided on HS2 Phase 2B; 
 
d) Notes the updates provided on the risk management health check and 

counter fraud initiatives. 
 

Resources Implications 
 

None 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None 
 
Background Papers 
 
Report of the Director of Corporate Resources – ‘Risk Management Update’ – 
Corporate Governance Committee: 19 February, 13 May, 23 September and 25 
November 2016; 17 February, 26 May, 22 September and 17 November 2017; 29 

33



 

January, 23 April and 25 July 2018, 24 October 2018, 18 January 2019 and 10 May 
2019. http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=434 
 
Officers to Contact 

 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources   
Tel : 0116 305 6199  
E-mail : chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 
Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix - Corporate Risk Register Update  
  

34

mailto:ctambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


CORPORATE RISK REGISTER – UPDATE ON RISKS SEPTEMBER 2019       
 

 

Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 
Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 

September 2019 
 
 

Direction of 
Travel ** 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 months) 

1. Medium Term Strategy 
 

All 1.1 
 

Risk around the MTFS 
including the ability to deliver 
savings through service 
redesign and Transformation as 
required in the MTFS, impact of 
the living wage and other 
demand/cost pressures 
including legal challenges. 

20 
(reduced 
from 25) 

 

MTFS 

 Government recognition of LA problems backed by significant cash in 
2019 spending round. 

 Government announced delay to reforms, but reconfirmed 
commitment. Exploratory work on SEND funding. 

 A new 'Growth Unit' that will improve the financial impact of major 
capital schemes has been established and recruitment is underway 

 The production of the MTFS 2020-24 has commenced and the initial 
position produced for October. The public consultation on the 
Council’s future financial priorities has been completed and the 
outcome will be used to inform the update of the MTFS in December 

 
Transformation 
Transformation Unit is working with all departments to continue to 
challenge, deliver existing savings targets and to identify new 
opportunities for savings.   
 

 
 
 

 
Expected to 

remain 
high/red 

 
 

CE 1.3 If the Council fails to maximise 
developer contributions, then 
there could be a failure to fund 
corporate infrastructure projects 
 

16 
 

The new S106 policy for developer contributions has been adopted 
(Cabinet – June 2019) which reduces the likelihood of not securing 
contributions.  
The Council has created a new Growth Unit which will assist with securing 
developer contributions for major infrastructure projects. 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 

C&FS 1.5 Social Care: 
If the number of high cost social 
care placements (e.g. external 
fostering, residential and 16+ 
supported accommodation) 
increases (especially in relation 
to behavioural and CSE issues) 

20 
 
  
 

Current residential placements stand at 62 - the rise in residential figures 
is due to court directed parent and baby placements. 

 
 
 

 
Expected to 

remain  
high/red 

35



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

then there may be significant 
pressures on the children’s 
social care placement budget, 
which funds the care of 
vulnerable children. 

 C&FS 1.6 Education 
The absence of a robust 
Development Plan that takes 
account of improvements in 
practice, systems & processes, 
funding & commissioning, 
partnership development and 
the successful delivery of the 
associated capital programme 
could lead to sufficiency issues 
and continued pressures on the 
High Needs Block budget.   
 

20 
 

 
 

Further rigour has been placed around the Development Plan that 
provides SMART targets for each of the workstreams so that the Board 
can sufficiently track progress. In addition to this, the Transformation Unit 
have bought forward their activity within the SEND service. This analysis 
will allow the Service to determine priority areas of work. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 

CR 1.7 If the Council is not compliant 
with the HRMC IR35 
regulations regarding the 
employment of self-employed 
personnel, then there is a risk 
of large financial penalties 
 

20 
 

A dedicated Compliance Officer has been appointed.  
A review of all current identified posts within and outside of the Reed 
Employment Agency is being undertaken to identify issues. Cases are 
being reviewed on a case by case basis, and the status of a number of 
interims is being moved to ‘inside IR35’. There is now a clear process for 
managers who are engaging interims, and the process is supported by 
clear policies, an e-learning module, and regular communication. 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 

C&FS 1.9 If the immigration status of 
unaccompanied asylum-
seeking children (UASC) who 
arrive in the County is not 
resolved, then the Council will 
have to meet additional long-

16 
 

The total number of UASC in care is 95 (position reported in June 2019 
was 92). The service received bid funding to run a regional recruitment 
campaign for carers. A project board has been convened and recruitment 
is underway. 

 

 
Expected to 

remain 
 red/high 

36



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

term funding in relation to its 
housing and care duties.   
 
 
 
 
 

CE 1.10 The Council is unable to meet 
the financial investment 
required to deliver infrastructure 
in support of housing 
development committed in 
districts Local Plans and that 
where this contribution can be 
recouped through s106 
agreements secured by District 
Councils, the funding doesn’t 
meet the full cost and is 
secured long after the 
commitment is made. 
 

25 
 

(New) 

A number of mitigation measures are underway including: 
 

 New Governance to oversee capital investment in growth projects 
(Growth Delivery Board and the Finance Capital Programme 
Board) 

 Establishment of a permanent Growth Unit 

   
 

Expected to 
remain 
high/red 

2. Health & Social Care Integration 
 

 All 2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Impact on County Council 
services and MTFS of the 
Better Care Together (medium 
term) transformation plan in 
Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland (LLR), could lead to 
inability to deliver improved 
outcomes and financial 
sustainability. 

16 
 
 
 
  

No change to risk score.  The Council has confirmed its position on 
integrated care systems at Cabinet (September 2019).  Development of 
Home First and Neighbourhood Teams are underway. 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

37



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

All 2.3 Challenges caused by the 
Welfare Reform Act 2012 and 
the Welfare Reform and Work 
Act 2016.   

16 ‘Managed migration’ for people claiming legacy benefits to move to 
Universal Credit is due to commence in January 2020, subject to 
evaluation of the current pilot project in North Yorkshire.  People receiving 
legacy benefits which includes a severe disability premium will not start to 
move to Universal Credit until January 2021. The Government plans to 
complete managed migration to Universal Credit by the end of 2023.   
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 

3. ICT, Information Security 
 

CR 
 

3.2 
 

If the Council has a GDPR 
breach, then there could be a 
risk of significant liability claims 

15 
 

(Risk 
reduced 
from 16) 

Refresher training is being developed.   
 
The Asset Register solution is being configured and data is being loaded. 
Surveillance work has been a major priority. New surveillance policy, 
acceptable use policy, guidance on procuring and installing, and various 
processes have been drafted. These should be signed off in October. 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to  
medium/ 
amber 

 

CR 3.6 If the ERP system cannot 
accommodate all of the 
Council’s requirements, then it 
may delay implementation and 
extra resources will be required 
to develop work arounds  
 

20 
 

Following high level discussions with Oracle, the project team have a final 
view on functionality and planned workarounds to overcome the 
functionality gaps. Workarounds have been identified for most gaps and 
the rest will be addressed by Oracle in the upcoming releases.  
 
To minimise risk, the HR and Payroll go-lives have been spread across 5 
go-live dates between January and June 2020. Finance would also go-live 
on a separate date to HR.  
Additional resources have been recruited to the project management 
teams. 
 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

38



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

Additional testing activity is being planned to increase chance of 
successful go live. 
 

CR 3.7 If the Council fails to prevent a 
major cyber attack on our ICT 
infrastructure, then the Council 
may lose sensitive data and its 
ability to operate 

16 
(New) 

Funding has been secured – work is in progress to define training and an 
awareness campaign.  
Work is underway to design a Cyber Security Framework to define the 
Council’s approach to cyber security, with the primary aim of building 
cyber defence, response and recovery capabilities. 
A Security Strategy (incorporating a cyber risk register) is being 
developed. 
 
 
 
 

 
Expected to 

move to  
medium/ 
amber 

4. Commissioning & Procurement 
 

E&T 4.2 If Arriva is successful in its 
concessionary travel appeal, 
then reimbursement costs for 
the total scheme could increase 
significantly. 

15 The 2017/18 Arriva concessionary travel appeal was unsuccessful. The 
2018/19 scheme appeal response was submitted, and the position is 
similar to 2017/18 as the grounds are similar to the 2017/18 appeal.   The 
intention to appeal was lodged by Arriva in May 2019; the Council are in 
discussions with Arriva. Currently analysing new evidence provided and a 
delay in the requirement to submit an appeal has been agreed with Arriva 
and the Department for Transport.  
 

 
 
 

Expected to 
move to  
medium/ 
amber 

 

5. Safeguarding 
 

C&FS 
 

5.1 
 

Historical:  
If as a result of a concerted 
effort to explore abuse by the 
Independent Inquiry into Child 
Sexual Abuse (IICSA) and 
Police Operations, then 

25 
 
 
 
 
 

The Preliminary Hearing into institutional responses to allegations of child 
sexual abuse was held on 24th September and it was agreed that the 
Janner Public Hearing will now be held in October 2020. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  

39



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

evidence of previously unknown 
serious historical issues of child 
sexual exploitation (CSE) or 
abuse is identified. 
 

 
 

high/red 
 
 

6. Brexit 
 

All 6.1 Uncertainty and significant 
knock on consequences on 
public services (including 
potential legal, regulatory, 
economic and social 
implications), and the local 
economy as a result of the 
United Kingdom leaving the 
European Union. 
 

16  
 
 
 

3c (Command, Communication, and Control) arrangements established. 
Brexit Liaison Officer (BLO) Assistant Chief Executive) and Deputy BLO 
(Assistant Director- Corporate Services) appointed. Council’s European 
Union Exit sub-group established. Business Continuity plans reviewed 
and updated for all departments and critical services. Exercising and 
training undertaken as required. Specialist plans produced. National and 
Regional reporting ongoing to MHCLG and via the Local Resilience 
Forum. Single agency and multiagency site reports produced and 
submitted. Reports submitted to Chief Officers, and briefings provided to 
Strategic Coordinating Group and All Member Briefings held on 25 
September. 

 
 
 

 
Expected to 

remain  
high/red 

 

7. People 

 

CR 
(ALL) 

7.1 If sickness absence is not 
effectively managed then staff 
costs, service delivery and staff 
wellbeing will be impacted. 
 

 

 

16 
 

The Intensive Support Project is ongoing. Absence levels are decreasing 
with a net reduction of 0.5 FTE days for those groups in scope.  A review 
of the Intensive Support Project will be presented to Chief Officers by 
early 2020. 

A peer review of attendance management was conducted by senior 
Human Resources staff from North Yorkshire County Council in early 
August 2019. A formal report is awaited, and the Employment Committee 
will receive an update on the main findings at the next meeting on 5 
December 2019. 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 
 

All 7.2 Recruitment and retention -   C&FS (risk score =15)  
 

40



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

If departments are unable to 
recruit and retain skilled staff 
promptly then some services 
will be over -reliant on the use 
of agency staff resulting in 
budget overspends and poor 
service delivery  

15 
 

In line with national picture, vacancy rates continue to fluctuate (June 
9.6%) but overall downward trend. Pressures continue in teams with 
sickness and maternity coupled with agency turnover. 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 
 

8. Business Continuity 
 

CE 8.1 If suppliers of critical 
services do not have robust 
business continuity plans in 
place, the Council may not be 
able to deliver services 

15 Commissioning Support Unit are progressing with implementation of a 
system to capture providers that are business critical suppliers that can 
then be flagged to the Business Continuity Team who would then be 
responsible for ensuring providers have sufficient plans in place. 

 
 

 
Expected to 

remain  
high/red 

9. Environment 
 

E&T 9.1 If the ash dieback disease 
causes shedding branches or 
falling trees, then there is a 
possible risk to life and 
disruption to the transport 
network. 

15 The implementation of the cross departmental action plan is progressing. 
The risk to life is still fundamental – as the key unknown factor is when the 
majority of the Council’s Ash stock will fail due to the disease.  The latest 
surveys appear to show an increased incidence of the disease in 
Leicestershire.  An update of the action plan and associated risk register 
is planned 

 

 
Expected to 

move to medium/ 
amber 

E&T 9.2 If there was a major incident 
which results in unplanned site 
closure (e.g. fire) then the 
Council may be unable to hold 
or dispose of waste.  

15 
 

Current risk score remains the same, Further actions to mitigate the risk 
are progressing (such as commencing procurement for treatment 
capacity) however these are medium to long term projects. 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 

E&T 9.3 If the Council is not able to 
deliver on the commitments it 
has made in its climate 

15 
(New) 

To address the climate emergency commitments made by the Council, 
the Environment Strategy will need to be updated. Work is underway to 
develop an action plan to set out how the Council will achieve the 

 

 

41



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

emergency declaration due to 
the complexity and difficulty of 
some of the decisions and 
actions that will need to be 
made, then this will impact on 
the Council’s ability to fulfil its 
leadership role and have 
financial and reputational 
consequences. 
 

commitments made in the climate emergency declaration. 
 
A review of the Council’s Strategic Plan and Single Outcome Framework 
will be revised to incorporate the new environment and climate change 
commitments.  

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 

E&T 9.4  If climate change impacts 
happen more frequently or at a 
greater intensity than 
anticipated, then there is the 
risk that County Council 
services will be negatively 
affected 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20 
(New) 

Climate Change Risk Registers are being reviewed. 
 
Mitigation measures will be identified as part of the Climate Change Risk 
Register review that will seek to the reduce impact on council services. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 

10. Partnerships 
 

C&FS 10.1 If the Local Authority and 
partners do not succeed in 
developing an inclusive culture 
across all schools, education 

16 
 

Significant work underway with schools around SEN support and access 
to inclusion support and early help to reduce the demand for EHCP needs 
assessment. 

 

 
 

42



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

Department 
    A&C =  Adults & Communities E&T = Environment and Transport  

CE =  Chief Executives PH = Public Health    

CR =  Corporate Resources All = Consolidated risk                                             

C&FS=  Children and Family Services 
 

 

 

**The arrows explain the direction of travel for the risk, i.e. where it is expected to be within the next twelve months after further mitigating actions, so that: 

o A horizontal arrow shows that not much movement is expected in the risk; 

o A downward pointing arrow shows that there is an expectation that the risk will be mitigated towards ‘medium’ and would likely be removed from 

the register; 

o An upwards pointing arrow would be less likely, but is possible, since it would show that the already high scoring risk is likely to be greater. 

 

 

 

 

providers and partner agencies 
(including the Parent Carer 
Forum), then it will be difficult to 
secure parental confidence in 
the ability of the ‘whole system’ 
to meet the needs of the large 
majority of children with SEND 
in a mainstream school context. 

Expected to 
move to green 

 

43



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

RISKS REMOVED SINCE MAY 2019 

 

Dept. CRR 

Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk 

Score 

Reason  Date of Removal 

C&FS  3.7 If the quality of data in Children 
and Families (C&FS) 
Information Management 
System is too low to satisfy 
statutory requirements (e.g. data 
returns) this will impact upon 
service delivery 

16  
 
 
 

The current risk score has been downgraded from 16 to 12. - tableau 
reports have been embedded; and are now accessible to Team Managers 
and Business Support. This is led by two Heads of Service who jointly 
oversee quality meetings 
 
This risk has been removed from the Corporate Risk Register, but it will 
continue to be monitored through the Children & Family Services 
Departmental Risk Register. 
 

26 July 2019 

CR 1.4 If claims relating to uninsured 
risks materialise or continue to 
increase then LCC will need to 
find increased payments from 
reserves, impacting on funds 
available to support services 
 

16 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The level of reserves is sufficient to reduce the current risk score from 16 
to 12 and the risk will be managed and monitored at Departmental level via 
the Risk Register - Corporate Resources.  

 
 

1 November 
2019 

All 3.5 If the Council fails to maintain 
robust records management 
processes to effectively manage 
information under its 
custodianship, personal data 
may not be processed in 
compliance with the Data 
Protection Act 1998 resulting in 
regulatory action and/or 

15 
 

Resources to address highest assessed physical record risks now being 
put in place (priorities agreed with Chief Officers in summer 2019).  Risk 
levels regularly monitored by central team. Email storage / destruction 
approach agreed at Information Governance Board (September 2019). 
 
The current risk score has been reduced from 15 to 12 and the risk will be 
managed and monitored at Departmental level via the Risk Register -
Corporate Resources.  

 

 
1 November 

2019 

44



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

reputational damage. 
 
 

Dept. CRR 

Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk 

Score 

Reason  Date of Removal 

CR 
 

4.1 
 

If the Authority does not obtain 
the required value and level of 
performance from its providers 
and suppliers, then the cost of 
services will increase, and 
service delivery will be 
impacted. 
 

15 
 

A review of the risk has resulted in the current risk score reduced from 15 
to 12 and the risk will be managed and monitored at Departmental level 
(Corporate Resources).   
 

1 November 
2019 

 

 A&C 7.3 If the department does not have 
a sustainable external workforce 
to work with it may be unable to 
meet its statutory 
responsibilities. 

16 
 

The Department has reviewed the risk and reduced the current risk score 
from 16 to 12. Planning and timescales for action further progressed with 
domiciliary care to be re-commissioned in 2021 and residential care fee 
increase coming into effect from 2019/20. 
The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the A&C Departmental 
Risk Register. 

1 November 
2019 

45



Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl 

changes) 

Update 
Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 

June 2019 
 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 

months) 

 

 

 

46



 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND THE DIRECTOR 
OF CORPORATE RESOURCES  

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN 

ANNUAL REVIEW 2018/19 AND UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS AND 
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUESTS 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is threefold: 
 

 To inform Members of the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman (LGO) annual review letter for the Authority for 2018/19;  
 

 Provide Members with an update on improvements to the Local 
Authority’s Complaints procedures and effective complaints handling; 
 

 Provide Members with an update on handling of Freedom of Information 
Act (FOI) and Environmental Information Regulations (EIR). 
 

Background 
 
2. The Customer Services Strategy includes a principle that states: “We will 

encourage comments and complaints to support a culture of continuous 
improvement” and also refers to the need to “‘put the customer at the 
heart of services, designing and planning all services around their needs” 

 
3. The role of the Corporate Governance Committee includes the promotion 

and maintenance of high standards within the Authority in relation to the 
operation of the County Council’s Code of Governance.  It also has within 
its terms of reference the making of payments or providing other benefits 
in cases of maladministration under Section 92 of the Local Government 
Act 2000.   

 
4. At its meeting on 29 November 2009 this Committee, in line with its role 

and responsibilities, and those of the then existing Standards Committee, 
agreed that reports on complaints handling should be submitted on an 
annual basis for members consideration following receipt of the 
Ombudsman's annual review letter. This report also discharges the 
Monitoring Officer’s statutory duty under s.5(2) of the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989 to report where maladministration has been 
identified. 

 
47 Agenda Item 8



  

 
5. The LGO produces an annual review letter for each Authority.  This 

typically contains complaint statistics as well as more general updates 
from the Ombudsman as to any emerging themes.  This letter is included 
as Appendix A. 

 
6. In recent years, the Ombudsman has also issued an annual review of 

local government complaints each year.  A copy of the 2018-19 report is 
included as Appendix B. 

 
7. High level complaints data for each local authority has also been 

published by the Ombudsman and in keeping with previous years, copies 
of this data annexe can be found in member group rooms. 

 
8. Historically there has not been any reporting to members on FOI 

performance.  As this area is now managed centrally alongside 
complaints, it was considered appropriate that an annual update be 
provided to the Corporate Governance Committee outlining how the 
County Council is discharging its obligations under this legislation. 

 
Part 1: Ombudsman’s Annual Review letter for Leicestershire County 

Council 
 
9. A total of 82 complaints and enquiries were received by the Ombudsman 

during the year which marks a 19% increase on last year (69).  
 
10. To add context to the above figure, population data has been obtained 

which shows that Leicestershire receives 11.7 referrals to the 
Ombudsman per 100,000 residents.  As shown in Appendix C, this ranks 
the County Council as seventh out of 16 authorities classed as statistical 
neighbours. 

 
11. The Ombudsman made decisions on 79 complaints during the year and 

carried out 16 detailed investigations.  This equates to 20% of the 
complaints determined.  The numbers investigated in detail by the 
Ombudsman increased this year by eight. 

 
12. The remaining 63 cases were dealt with at the assessment stage, which is 

a lighter touch review of the Council’s actions.  This includes complaints 
that were considered premature for the Ombudsman and those which lay 
outside of their jurisdiction. 

 
13. Of the 16 complaints subject to detailed investigation, eight (50%) had a 

finding of some fault and were consequently upheld.  This is an identical 
percentage to last year.  

 
14. The average percentage of complaints upheld for all local authorities was 

58%.  Leicestershire also compares well with statistical neighbours, 
ranked joint first in lowest uphold rates and against an average of 63% for 
our statistical neighbours. 

48



  

 
15. Where a finding of fault with injustice is made, the Ombudsman may 

suggest a course of action to the Council which, if implemented, would 
lead the Ombudsman to dis-continue their investigation. The Council is not 
obligated to carry out this recommendation but failure to do so may lead to 
a Public Report being issued. 

 
16. Such settlements may involve an element of compensation for a 

complainant where there has been a failure to provide a service, together 
with a payment to recognise the complainant’s time and trouble in having 
to pursue the complaint. 

 
17. On some occasions, the Council may have already taken remedial action 

which the Ombudsman considers appropriate to resolve the issue.  In 
such cases, the Ombudsman will still record the case as Maladministration 
but with an additional tag to reflect that the situation had been adequately 
remedied before LGO involvement.  There was one such instance in 
2018-19. 

 
18. During 2018/19, the County Council agreed to the Ombudsman’s 

recommendations in all cases where these were made.  One response 
was considered to be submitted late by the Ombudsman. 

 
19. The detail for each of the upheld complaints appears below:  
 

 Case 1 was an adult social care complaint regarding lack of care and 
support to a vulnerable adult. 
 
The Ombudsman found that the County Council acted correctly to 
safeguard the individual and that it took proper account of his capacity to 
make decisions, including who to share information with.  
 
However, the County Council delayed confirming the costs of temporary 
accommodation and may not have taken account of all relevant 
information during the financial assessment. 
 
In response the County Council agreed to issue an apology, undertake a 
fresh financial assessment and update local procedures. 

 

 Case 2 was another adult social care complaint regarding the County 
Council’s decision not to continue to fund an expensive care provision. 
 
Whilst the Ombudsman did not criticise the decision, it found that the 
County Council took too long in responding to and dealing with the 
concerns and that it did not properly explain why it decided not to make an 
exception for the individual. 
  
The County Council agreed to apologise for the delay and lack of clear 
explanation and to remind staff of the importance of clearly explaining the 
rationale of decisions. 

49



  

 

 Case 3 related to adult social care and the provision of home care. 
 
The Ombudsman found a number of failings with the quality of care and 
support plans; standard and consistency of home care provision; advice 
and information around the different options for commissioning care and 
consideration of safeguarding matters. 
 
The County Council agreed to a financial payment of £550 in recognition 
of the faults as well as considering actions required to prevent such issues 
occurring in the future. 

 

 Case 4 related to an adult social care Shared Lives placement and the 
lack of clarity on what costs needed to be paid. 
 
The Ombudsman found fault because, even though the license agreement 
tells clients they may have to pay towards the cost of 'looking after me', it 
does not explain how this will be calculated or what impact this may have 
on how much money they may be left with. 
 
The County Council accepted the findings and agreed to review the 
Shared Lives licence agreement and produce an Easy Read version. 
Reminders were also issued to staff of the importance in checking 
understanding. 

 

 Case 5 related to school admissions and incorrect information given 
regarding the need to inform of a change of address. This resulted in the 
individual missing out on a school place. 

 
The Ombudsman found fault in that the advice given was inconsistent with 
the County Council's policy.  The County Council agreed to exercise its 
discretion to give the child a place at the school and to reimburse the cost 
of an alternative school uniform purchased (£50) 
 

 Case 6 related to children’s social care and the way it considered referrals 
made by a family member citing concerns for the welfare of a child in a 
school. 

 
Whilst much of the complaint was outside of the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction 
or not upheld, the Ombudsman did find fault that the County Council’s 
safeguarding officers had failed to record details of monitoring visits 
carried out to the School  
 
The County Council agreed to issue an apology, remind officers of the 
importance of contemporaneous record-keeping and review how it dealt 
with Ofsted notifications. 
 

 Case 7 related to several services that were providing services to a blind 
service-user. This included, Concessionary Travel and Adult Social Care. 
 

50



  

The complaint centred around the County Council sending material in 
standard post format and not taking account of her circumstances when 
corresponding with her. 
 
The County Council had already accepted fault within their own 
complaints handling and had proposed a number of actions. This included 
a dedicated review worker for blind / partially sighted service users and 
reviewing how we record and highlight special characteristics within our 
line of business systems. 
 
The Ombudsman found the County Council had taken the appropriate 
actions in response and no further remedies were necessary. 
 

 Case 8 related to Child Protection and a complaint that the County 
Council had not acted appropriately in response to a family member’s 
referrals and failed to work in partnership with her. 

 
The Ombudsman found fault with the quality of action plans created within 
Child Protection procedures, a failure to properly consider evidence that 
the family member presented and lack of appropriate monitoring of safety 
plans created. 
 
The County Council accepted the failings and agreed to review 
procedures, strengthen management oversight of such cases, apologise 
to the complainant and make a payment of £500 in recognition of the 
faults. 
 

20. The Ombudsman produced no public reports against the County Council 
during 2018/19. None have been issued within the last 5 years. 

 
21. Financial remedies determined by the Ombudsman amounted to £1,100. 

This is an increase of £1,000 on last year but remains at a comparatively 
low level considering the number of complaints considered by the 
Ombudsman. 

 
22. The County Council’s willingness to agree settlement proposals such as 

those outlined above also help to maintain and enhance the Authority’s 
reputation with the Ombudsman.  

 
23. All the above financial settlements were approved by the Director of Law 

and Governance, in accordance with powers delegated by this Committee 
at its meeting on 26 November 2012. 

 
24. The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman has released a new 

interactive map of Council’s performance. This is available through a link 
within Appendix A 

 
25. The intention of this tool is to place a focus on the Council’s compliance 

with investigations and to easily access information around other Council’s 
performance 

51



  

 
Part 2: Update on Complaints Handling 
 
26. There have been a number of positive developments with the County 

Council’s complaints handling arrangements over the last 12 months.  
These include:  

 

 Following last year’s successful pilot, quarterly complaints masterclass 
training is now provided, aimed at all managers who are required to 
investigate complaints. 
 

 Further development of our case management system including 
expanding its use to incorporate tracking of MP enquiries and Ofsted 
notifications within the Children and Family Services department. 
 

 A review of our independent investigator pool following some concerns 
with the quality of reports.  This has led to a more managed service which 
has delivered clear benefits in terms of timeliness and quality whilst not 
significantly increasing costs. 

 
27. Reports are also produced for the Scrutiny Commission which monitors 

and scrutinises the Authority’s performance in complaint handing through 
a Corporate Complaints and Compliments Annual Report.  This report 
sets out an analysis of all complaints recorded by type, department and 
the response times for dealing with these.   

 
28. The 2018/19 annual report was presented to the Commission for 

consideration at its meeting on 12 June 2019 and this highlighted the 
following main themes: 

 

 The number of corporate complaints (at 324) had increased by 20% 
compared to the previous year; the biggest factor in this rise was SEN 
(Special Educational Needs) related complaints. 
 

 Of the complaints resolved within the year, 71% received a response 
within 10 working days and 91% received a response within 20 working 
days.  This represents an improvement on 2017-18 and continues to meet 
our targets of 60% and 90% respectively.  Set against the challenging 
financial climate this continues to demonstrate commitment to complaints 
handling. 

 
29. The Ombudsman’s annual review letter is received after the corporate 

complaints annual report is presented to the Scrutiny Commission. 
Therefore, Ombudsman data presented in the corporate complaints 
annual report is taken from the County Council’s records and may not 
match the official figures published by the Ombudsman and referred to in 
this report. 

 
 
 

52



  

Part 3: Update on Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) handling 
 
Summary of the legislation and principal functions of the Corporate FOI 
service 
 
30. FOIA gives anyone the right to ask a public authority for information; for 

the information to be released to them, and / or to be told why the 
information cannot be provided.  The Act places a duty on Local 
Authorities to respond within 20 working days (in most circumstances).   
Detail of the other most relevant legislation is provided within Appendix D 
of this report. 

 
Procedures for ensuring compliance with the legislation 
 
31. The principal functions of the FOI team are to: 

 

 Acknowledge receipt of the request and ensure the progress of the 
request is tracked to completion; 

 Undertake any redactions necessary and distribute responses to 
requests. This includes publication through our disclosure log, unless 
there are clear reasons not to do so; 

 Consider the application of any exemptions or exceptions and give a 
clear explanation for any information withheld and the reasons why the 
balance of public interest is against disclosure; 

 Provide advice and assistance to members of the public and others 
wishing to use the legislation; 

 Provide support and advice to staff responding to requests; 

 Manage the FOI / EIR appeals or complaints procedures including 
liaison with the Information Commissioner. 

 
Annual Performance April 2018 – March 2019 
 
Analysis of requests received April 2018 – March 2019 
 
32. Between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, 1,055 requests were received 

compared to 1,011 in the previous year. This represents a 4% increase. 
 
33. 864 (82%) of the requests were responded to within 20 working days 

(Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) Guidance suggests a target of 
90% should be set by Local Authorities in this area). 
 

34. Compliance with statutory timescales in 2018-19 was impacted by 
resourcing difficulties experienced within Children and Family Services 
(CFS) during the first two quarters. Significant support work has been 
carried out with the department to help make improvements and more 
recent data shows CFS performance is now broadly in line with the 
performance of all other departments. 
 
 
 

53



  

Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 performance 2019-2020 
 

Analysis of requests received April 2019 – September 2019 
 

35. During this reporting period, 526 requests were received.  This compares 
to 522 during the equivalent reporting period in 2018-19.  

 
36. There is also little variance in volumes received during Q1 and Q2 (260 v 

269). 
 
37. The vast majority of new requests (486) were received by e-mail.  The FOI 

mailbox is heavily promoted on corporate e-mail signatures and, as all 
valid FOIA requests need to be made in writing, it is unsurprising this is 
the predominant channel.  
 

38. There does remain an opportunity to promote our online form further. 
Whilst efficiency gains are limited, better promotion of the web-form would 
ensure that applicants are offered the chance to look at our disclosure log 
first and may ultimately reduce new requests. 

 
39. Requests were received across a wide range of subject matters as 

depicted below with the top three areas being: 
 

 Schools    82 

 Human Resources1  46 

 Children in Care  45 
 
40. The principal change from the previous six months is the increased 

requests regarding Children in Care which replaced Roads in the top three 
segments.  

 
 

                                                 
1
 Typically, expenses, structure charts, staffing levels 

54



  

41. Where identifiable, data is now available on applicants seeking information 
and the following table sets out the top three requestors during this period 
 

Applicant Type Number of requests 

Member of the public 307 

Business 83 

Media 61 

 
42. All requests by the media are automatically flagged and approval is sought 

by our Media team prior to any publication. 
 
Responses provided  

 
Analysis of requests responded to April 2019 – September 2019 

 
43. 525 requests were closed during the above reporting period and this can 

be further broken down into: 
 

470 FOIA requests 
55 EIR requests 
 

44. Information was provided in full for 338 requests (64%) with a further 102 
instances (19%) where partial information was provided with part of the 
request refused as either “not held” or using a valid exemption. 42 
requests were refused in full. 

 
45. The most common exemptions used during this reporting period were: 

 

 S.21 (FOIA) Information available through other means 56 

 S.12 (FOIA) Cost Exceeds 18 hours to provide  54 

 S.43 (FOIA) Prejudicial to Commercial Interests  19 
 
46. Since 1 April 2019 the FOI team have also been recording and monitoring 

costs of handling FOIA requests. The total estimated time spent was 
1,946 hours which represents an average of 3.41 hours per request. It is 
difficult to accurately cost the overall handling as requests generally 
require input from staff at different grades (including senior sign off)  
 

47. Four requests were recorded as having over 18 hours effort. This raises 
questions that the S.12 cost exceeds exemption should have been 
considered and these cases will be the subject of detailed analysis to 
explore any wider learning. 

 
Compliance with statutory timescales 
 
48. 81% of requests were responded to within 20 working days. This remains 

under the Information Commissioner Office target of 90%.   The graphic 
below charts the respective performance by department. 
 

 

55



  

Response times in working days 
 

Department <5  6-10 11-15 16-20 >20 

Adults and 
&Communities 

15 
(34%) 

12 
(27%) 

4 (9%) 4 (9%) 9 (20%) 

Chief 
Executive’s 

7 (17%) 7 (17%) 8 (20%) 8 (20%) 11 (27%) 

Children and 
Family 
Services 

24 
(15%) 

17 
(11%) 

36 
(23%) 

47 
(30%) 

31(20%) 

Corporate 
Resources 

32 
(25%) 

18 
(14%) 

20 
(16%) 

39 
(30%) 

20 (16%) 

Environment 
and Transport 

18 
(18%) 

17 
(17%) 

25 
(25%) 

29 
(28%) 

13 (13%) 

Public Health 1 (8%) 4 (33%) 3 (25%) 4 (33%) N/A 

MULTI 3 (7%) 5 (11%) 7 (15%) 14 
(30%) 

17 (37%) 

ALL 101 
(19%) 
 

80  
(15%) 

103 
(19%) 

145 
(27%) 

101 (9%) 

 
49. In 2018-19, the majority of FOIs were responded to within the 16-20 day 

period with only 29% being responded to within the first 10 days. Between 
April to September 2019 this has risen to 34% and this is helping reduce 
case-loads and increasing overall compliance rates. 

 
Internal reviews and Information Commissioner enquiries 
 
50. There have been six internal reviews carried out between April to 

September 2019. Working on the basis that internal reviews can only be 
requested where information has been partially or fully refused, this 
equates to a percentage of 4%. 
 

51. Three of the internal reviews were upheld on appeal (50%) with further 
information than disclosed. 

 
52. In addition, the ICO has made initial enquiries of the County Council on 

three requests that have been concluded. At the time of writing, one of 
these has been investigated and the final decision is awaited, the 
remaining two cases are awaiting decisions on whether the ICO will 
formally investigate. 
 

53. No final decisions have been made by the Commissioner during this 
period. 

 
Performance improvement  

 
54. There is still room for collective improvement in raising the compliance 

rate during Q3 and Q4.  
 

56



  

55. It should be noted that public authorities may exceed the 20 working day 
deadline if information falls within the scope of a qualified exemption and 
more time is required to consider the public interest test. Such extensions 
should generally not exceed an additional 20 working days. 

 
56. Where this extension is requested by departments, this will not be 

recorded as a late request if outside of the 20 working days. No such valid 
extension requests were received during these first two quarters 
suggesting fresh guidance should be provided to departmental teams 
around this area. 
 

57. Dynamic reporting has been developed and is now available to 
departments to help support proactive monitoring of their performance. 

 
58. During 2019-20 the FOI team will be running training sessions on the most 

common exemptions used. Specifically, this will be around S.43 
(Commercial Interests) and S.12 (Cost Exceeds reasonable limits) These 
workshops will help ensure a consistency of approach. 

 
Recommendations 
 
59. The Committee is recommended to: 
 

(a) note the contents of this report;  
 

(b) provide comment and feedback on the Ombudsman’s annual 
review letter and the complaints and FOI handling arrangements 
and improvements as outlined. 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment was completed in 2014. 
There have been no significant changes to the complaints handling process 
since this time. Neither have any been identified regarding handing of FOI 
requests. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Report to the Scrutiny Commission dated 12 June 2019 ‘Corporate Complaints 
and Compliments Annual Report 2018/19’ 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedures 
 
None.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



  

 
Officers to contact 
 
Simon Parsons, Customer Relations Manager 
Tel:  0116 3056243  Email: simon.parsons@leics.gov.uk 
 
Lauren Haslam, Director of Law and Governance 
Tel:  0116 3056240  Email: lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A: The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual 

Review Letter dated 24 July 2019 – Leicestershire County Council 
– for the year ended 31 March 2019 

 
Appendix B: The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman review of 

local government complaints 2018-19 
 
Appendix C:  Benchmarking data for statistically comparable neighbours as 

defined by CIPFA 
 
Appendix D:  Summary of legislation for FOI and EIR 
 
 

58

mailto:simon.parsons@leics.gov.uk
mailto:lauren.haslem@leics.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

24 July 2019 
 
By email 
 
John Sinnott 
Chief Executive 
Leicestershire County Council 
 
 
Dear Mr Sinnott 
 
Annual Review letter 2019 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending 31 

March 2019. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received 

about your authority, the decisions we made, and your authority’s compliance with 

recommendations during the period. I hope this information will prove helpful in assessing 

your authority’s performance in handling complaints.  

Complaint statistics 

As ever, I would stress that the number of complaints, taken alone, is not necessarily a 

reliable indicator of an authority’s performance. The volume of complaints should be 

considered alongside the uphold rate (how often we found fault when we investigated a 

complaint), and alongside statistics that indicate your authority’s willingness to accept fault 

and put things right when they go wrong. We also provide a figure for the number of cases 

where your authority provided a satisfactory remedy before the complaint reached us, and 

new statistics about your authority’s compliance with recommendations we have made; both 

of which offer a more comprehensive and insightful view of your authority’s approach to 

complaint handling.  

The new statistics on compliance are the result of a series of changes we have made to how 

we make and monitor our recommendations to remedy the fault we find. Our 

recommendations are specific and often include a time-frame for completion, allowing us to 

follow up with authorities and seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented. 

These changes mean we can provide these new statistics about your authority’s compliance 

with our recommendations.  

I want to emphasise the statistics in this letter reflect the data we hold and may not 

necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include 

59



enquiries from people we signpost back to your authority, some of whom may never contact 

you. 

In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our 

website, alongside our annual review of local government complaints. For the first time, this 

includes data on authorities’ compliance with our recommendations. This collated data 

further aids the scrutiny of local services and we encourage you to share learning from the 

report, which highlights key cases we have investigated during the year. 

New interactive data map 

In recent years we have been taking steps to move away from a simplistic focus on 

complaint volumes and instead focus on the lessons learned and the wider improvements 

we can achieve through our recommendations to improve services for the many. Our 

ambition is outlined in our corporate strategy 2018-21 and commits us to publishing the 

outcomes of our investigations and the occasions our recommendations result in 

improvements for local services.   

The result of this work is the launch of an interactive map of council performance on our 

website later this month. Your Council’s Performance shows annual performance data for all 

councils in England, with links to our published decision statements, public interest reports, 

annual letters and information about service improvements that have been agreed by each 

council. It also highlights those instances where your authority offered a suitable remedy to 

resolve a complaint before the matter came to us, and your authority’s compliance with the 

recommendations we have made to remedy complaints. 

The intention of this new tool is to place a focus on your authority’s compliance with 

investigations. It is a useful snapshot of the service improvement recommendations your 

authority has agreed to. It also highlights the wider outcomes of our investigations to the 

public, advocacy and advice organisations, and others who have a role in holding local 

councils to account.   

I hope you, and colleagues, find the map a useful addition to the data we publish. We are 

the first UK public sector ombudsman scheme to provide compliance data in such a way and 

believe the launch of this innovative work will lead to improved scrutiny of councils as well as 

providing increased recognition to the improvements councils have agreed to make following 

our interventions. 

Complaint handling training 

We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities 

and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. In 2018-19 we 

delivered 71 courses, training more than 900 people, including our first ‘open courses’ in 

Effective Complaint Handling for local authorities. Due to their popularity we are running six 

more open courses for local authorities in 2019-20, in York, Manchester, Coventry and 

London. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Finally, I am conscious of the resource pressures that many authorities are working within, 

and which are often the context for the problems that we investigate. In response to that 

situation we have published a significant piece of research this year looking at some of the 

60

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/about-us/our-aims/our-mission-and-objectives
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


common issues we are finding as a result of change and budget constraints. Called, Under 

Pressure, this report provides a contribution to the debate about how local government can 

navigate the unprecedented changes affecting the sector. I commend this to you, along with 

our revised guidance on Good Administrative Practice. I hope that together these are a 

timely reminder of the value of getting the basics right at a time of great change.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
 

Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/guidance-notes/principles-of-good-administrative-practice


Local Authority Report: Leicestershire County Council 

For the Period Ending: 31/03/2019  

 

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website  

 
Complaints and enquiries received  
 

Adult Care 
Services 

Benefits and 
Tax 

Corporate 
and Other 
Services 

Education 
and 

Children’s 
Services 

Environment 
Services 

Highways 
and 

Transport 
Housing 

Planning and 
Development 

Other Total 

31 0 3 33 1 11 1 1 1 82 

 

Decisions made 
 

Detailed Investigations  

Incomplete or 
Invalid 

Advice 
Given 

Referred 
back for 

Local 
Resolution 

Closed After 
Initial 

Enquiries 
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate (%) Total 

10 0 27 26 8 8 50 79 

Note: The uphold rate shows how often we found evidence of fault. It is expressed as a percentage of the total number of detailed investigations we completed. 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by authority  

Upheld cases where the authority had provided a satisfactory 
remedy before the complaint reached the Ombudsman 

% of upheld 
cases 

1 13 

Note: These are the cases in which we decided that, while the authority did get things wrong, it offered a 
satisfactory way to resolve it before the complaint came to us. 

62

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics


Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations  

Complaints where compliance 
with the recommended remedy 
was recorded during the year* 

Complaints where the 
authority complied with 

our recommendations on-
time  

 

Complaints where the authority 
complied with our 

recommendations late  
 

Complaints where the 
authority has not 
complied with our 
recommendations  

 

 
 
 

6 
5 1 0 Number 

100% - Compliance rate** 

Notes:  
* This is the number of complaints where we have recorded a response (or failure to respond) to our recommendation for a remedy during the reporting year. This includes complaints that may have been 
decided in the preceding year but where the data for compliance falls within the current reporting year. 
** The compliance rate is based on the number of complaints where the authority has provided evidence of their compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. This includes instances where an 
authority has accepted and implemented our recommendation but provided late evidence of that. 
 

 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OMBUDSMAN 

Local Government &
Social Care 

Review of local 
government 

complaints 2018-19

65



Contents

 Ombudsman’s foreword 1

 Key complaint themes 3

 Public interest reports 4

 Landmark cases 6

 Using the statistics 8

 Supporting local scrutiny 9

 Statistics 11

 Recommendations 14

 Compliance with recommendations 15

66



1 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Ombudsman’s foreword

I am pleased to present our Review of Local 
Government Complaints for 2018-19.

This review is one of a range of ways we share 
our complaints data. I write to local authorities 
each year to report complaint statistics and this 
report collates the individual data to provide a 
national picture. We publish data on the volume 
of complaints we receive and the decisions 
we make, and, this year, for the first time have 
published data on authorities’ compliance with 
the recommendations we make to remedy 
complaints.

Today, we also launch our new interactive 
map of council performance. Your Council’s 
Performance shows annual performance 
data for all councils in England. Too often, 
the discussions around complaints centre 
on the simplistic notion of numbers received; 
this new tool is the culmination of our efforts 
to focus on the lessons that can be learned 
and the wider improvements we can achieve 
through our recommendations. The map offers 

a useful snapshot of the service improvement 
recommendations councils have agreed to 
and highlights the wider outcomes of our 
investigations to the public, advocacy and advice 
organisations, and others who have a role in 
holding local councils to account. Thank you to 
those councils who volunteered to support the 
development of this work.

Our complaint statistics for 2018-19 tell us:

 > Over a third of the complaints and enquiries 
we received were about Education and 
Children’s Services or Adult Social Care

 > We carried out 4,232 detailed investigations, 
compared with 4,020 the previous year 

 > We upheld 58% of those complaints, up 
slightly from 57%

 > We continue to uphold the highest proportion 
of complaints about Benefits and Tax 
(69%), and the fewest about Planning and 
Development (37%)

67

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance


2 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

 > We made recommendations to remedy 1,929 
upheld cases, up 11% on 2017-18

 > We recorded 99.4% compliance with our 
recommendations to remedy fault

I welcome the constructive way in which the 
large majority of authorities work with us to 
remedy injustices and to take steps to improve 
services for others. There were no formal 
incidents of non-compliance from authorities to 
our recommendations last year – a great sign 
of the sector’s openness and willingness to put 
things right quickly. Indeed, we have seen the 
number of cases where authorities have offered 
a suitable remedy during their local complaints 
process, before the complaint came to us, 
increase by a fifth on last year.

The positive impact of the remedies we 
recommend often spreads beyond the individual 
that brought the complaint. This report highlights 
some of the landmark cases we have completed 
where our remedy and the positive response 
from the authority has resulted in significant 
improvements to local services. 

Our public interest reports continue to be a key 
tool for us to share the lessons from the cases 
we investigate, as well as holding authorities 
to account. We published 43 reports during the 
year, nearly half of which were about Education 
and Children’s Services. Frequently, we reported 
cases where children and young adults were 
missing out on the education they’re entitled 
to, because of serious delays in councils 
completing Education, Health and Care plans. 
We are seeing a worrying rise in the number 
of investigations that warrant a public interest 
report in this area and will continue to closely 
monitor our casework in the coming year.

Where we identify common themes in the 
complaints we investigate we may publish a 
focus report or guidance note to help authorities 

avoid similar problems. This year’s publications 
are summarised in this report. They include 
a focus report looking at the impact on our 
complaints of the huge changes local authorities 
have gone through in response to the pressures 
and challenges of the last decade. Under 
Pressure sets out how the complaints we 
investigate are becoming increasingly complex. 
With more of the clear-cut problems often 
resolved before coming to us, we are seeing 
more cases showing underlying problems with 
systems, policies and the way procedures are 
being applied. 

I hope this report, the accompanying data, and 
the suite of information we publish, will help 
authorities to maximise the valuable insight from 
complaints and continue to learn and improve 
local services.

Michael King

Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman

July 2019

68

https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4468/UNDER PRESSURE - FINAL1.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4468/UNDER PRESSURE - FINAL1.pdf


3 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Key complaint themes

Key complaint themes

Sometimes we see issues occurring time and 
again and across different councils. Our focus 
reports are an opportunity to feed back the 
learning from the complaints we investigate. 
These themed reports, and our guidance notes 
for practitioners, highlight the complaints we 
regularly see and the approach we take in our 
investigations. Reports often include examples 
where, by taking a proactive approach to our 
investigations, councils have used the learning to 
make significant improvements to their services 
for other people in their area. We also include 
suggested questions for councillors to ask when 
scrutinising their authorities’ performance.

These were the topics we commented on during 
the year:

Firm Foundations: complaints about 
council support and advice for Special 
Guardians 

We highlight common faults that occur when 
councils do not give the right advice and 
information to people before they become 
special guardians. This can leave people 
uninformed when making important long-term 
decisions. We call on councils to develop clear, 
accurate and user-friendly information for both 
staff and potential guardians to minimise the risk 
of mistakes and highlight the practice guidance 
one council developed in response to our 
investigation.

Under Pressure: the impact of the 
changing environment on local 
government complaints

We reveal the stark reality of how the huge 
changes councils have made in the last decade, 
often in response to unprecedented financial 
pressures, are now playing out in the complaints 
we investigate. We highlight the common themes 
for councils to look out for, where poor change 
management can lead to service failure for 
local people, including risks when restructuring 
services and using new partnerships to deliver 
services. We encourage councils to focus on 
getting the basics right when faced with major 
transformation and published our revised 
guidance Principles of Good Administrative 
Practice to help guide the good governance and 
delivery of local services.

We produced guidance for practitioners on:

Summer born admissions

Parents of children born between April and the 
end of August can ask to delay their school start 
until they reach compulsory school age. Our 
guidance on how we consider complaints about 
school admissions for summer born children 
sets out the correct decision-making process for 
admission authorities. 

Recording planning decisions

This guidance shares the insight from our 
investigations to help councils to reach robust 
decisions on planning matters. We focused 
on the importance of clearly setting out and 
explaining how material planning considerations 
have been considered, making it clear what 
has been taken into account and making clear 
records of decisions and the reasons for them.

69

https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4320/FR - SGO - FINAL.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4320/FR - SGO - FINAL.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4320/FR - SGO - FINAL.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4468/UNDER PRESSURE - FINAL1.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4468/UNDER PRESSURE - FINAL1.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4468/UNDER PRESSURE - FINAL1.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4469/Good%20Administrative%20Practice%20-%20vF2.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4469/Good%20Administrative%20Practice%20-%20vF2.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4470/GUIDANCE - SUMMER BORN - FINAL.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/4422/GUIDANCE - PLANNING - FINAL.pdf


4 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Public interest reports

We are one of the only Ombudsman schemes to publish every decision we make. We do this to 
share learning and improve the transparency of our work.

Cases that raise particularly serious issues or which highlight matters of public interest are given 
extra prominence and are issued as public reports.

Our decisions are published at www.lgo.org.uk/decisions and can be searched by theme, key word, 
category, decision outcome, date and organisation.

Our press releases highlight our public interest reports and can be found at www.lgo.org.uk/
information-centre/news 

Published reports

Kent CC - Parking Penalties

Halton Borough Council - 
Moving Traffic Penalties

Published reports

Cornwall Council - Special 
Educational Needs (SEN)

North Tyneside MBC - 
Special Guardianship 
Allowances

LB Islington - Child in Need 

Nottingham City Council - 
School Admissions 

East Sussex County Council 
- School Exclusions 

LB Lewisham - SEN and 
School Transport

Nottinghamshire County 
Council - School Admissions

Kirklees MBC - SEN

Gateshead MBC - School 
Transport

Cornwall Council - Looked 
After Child

York City Council - Child 
Protection

Adult care  
services 

Published reports 
North Somerset Council - 
Charging

Wiltshire Council - 
Assessment

Liverpool City Council - Care  
Planning

LB Bromley - Care Planning

LB Hounslow - Assessment

Tameside MBC - 
Safeguarding

LB Hounslow - Independent 
Living

Lancashire County Council - 
Transport (blue badge)

South Gloucestershire 
Council - Charging 
(deprivation of assets)

Blackpool Borough Council - 
Safeguarding

Reading Borough Council - 
Domiciliary Care

 

Education & children’s services Highways & 
transport 

Planning & 
development 

Published reports

North Yorkshire Moors 
National Parks Authority - 
Enforcement

1,732 
decisions 

1,519 
decisions 

1,785 
decisions 

1,291 
decisions 

 
Surrey County Council - 
SEN

Bedford BC - Special 
Guardianship Allowances

West Sussex County Council 
- Alternative Education 
Provision

Norfolk County Council - 
SEN

Norfolk County Council - 
SEN

East Riding of Yorkshire 
Council - Child Protection

Suffolk County Council - 
SEN

Cornwall Council - SEN

Surrey County Council - 
SEN

Doncaster MBC - Disabled 
Facilities Grants for Children

70

http://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news 
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news 
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/transport-and-highways/parking-and-other-penalties/17-004-169
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/transport-and-highways/parking-and-other-penalties/18-004-872
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/16-017-021
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/friends-and-family-carers/17-002-928
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/other/17-011-285
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/school-admissions/17-003-146
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/other/16-013-883
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/16-012-609
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/school-admissions/17-004-666
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/school-admissions/17-004-666
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/oct/ombudsman-urges-kirklees-council-to-learn-from-complaints
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/oct/foster-carers-left-out-of-pocket-when-child-moved-schools
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/looked-after-children/17-005-652
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/child-protection/17-006-785
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/charging/16-018-163
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/assessment-and-care-plan/16-015-946
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/residential-care/16-010-110
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/direct-payments/16-005-445
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/assessment-and-care-plan/17-000-645
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/safeguarding/17-012-757
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/assessment-and-care-plan/16-009-664
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/transport/17-014-970
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/charging/17-013-122
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/charging/17-013-122
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/safeguarding/17-004-032
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/domiciliary-care/18-001-676
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/planning/enforcement/17-007-580
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/planning/enforcement/17-007-580
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/18-005-543
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/friends-and-family-carers/17-014-669
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/alternative-provision/17-008-448
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/17-007-085
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/18-003-453
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/child-protection/17-006-049
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/child-protection/17-006-049
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/17-009-618
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/17-016-736
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/18-005-886
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/disabled-children/17-013-347


5 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

No reports 
published

Benefits &  
tax 

955 
decisions 

Environmental, 
public protection & 

regulation 

Published reports 

Bristol City Council - 
Homelessness

LB Ealing - Homelessness

LB Croydon - Allocations

Brighton and Hove Council - 
Homelessness

LB Hounslow - 
Homelessness

Basingstoke and Deane BC - 
Homelessness

Housing 

761 
decisions 

Corporate & other 

No reports 
published

763 
decisions 

Published reports 

LB Lambeth - Noise

LB Barnet - Noise

965 
decisions 

71

https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/housing/homelessness/16-003-575
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/housing/homelessness/17-007-432
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/housing/allocations/16-017-593
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/housing/homelessness/16-017-200
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/housing/homelessness/17-018-631
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/housing/homelessness/17-012-432
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/environment-and-regulation/noise/17-018-747
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/environment-and-regulation/noise/17-000-409


6 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Landmark cases

During the year, we published a number of cases 
that demonstrate how a single complaint and a 
council’s constructive attitude to remedy injustice 
and improve services can make a difference to 
many people. By highlighting them, we are giving 
all councils the opportunity to learn and check 
their own practice in these areas. Below are the 
case summaries, and full details can be found by 
clicking on the links, or you can search the case 
reference numbers at www.lgo.org.uk/decisions 

Housing for young people

Case reference: 17005652

Our investigation found Cornwall Council 
repeatedly provided inappropriate accommodation 
for a young person and failed to properly assess 
the boy’s needs. The boy spent five weeks in a 
tent, four weeks in a static caravan and several 
nights sleeping rough after approaching the 
council for help. We recommended the council 
should conduct a review of its procedures for 
accommodating young people and take steps 
to ensure there is sufficient accommodation 
available. The council confirmed it was going to 
invest significant funds in accommodation suitable 
for housing young people.

Personal budgets for adult social care

Case reference: 16015946

Our investigation found that Wiltshire Council 
was setting maximum budgets when calculating 
the cost of people’s care. A complaint about a 
man’s care being cut revealed that the council 
was using an outdated matrix tool to calculate 
personal budget amounts. The tool was contrary 
to the Care Act 2014 and we reminded all 
councils that eligible care needs must be based 
on assessed needs not on capped-costs. The 
council agreed to stop using the tool and to 
review all similar cases to ensure no other 
service users had been similarly affected. This 
review resulted in revised provision for 13 other 
service users. 

Noise nuisance 

Case reference: 17018747

Investigating a complaint about London Borough 
of Lambeth Council’s handling of a complaint 
about noisy neighbours, we exposed how it 
had adopted a flawed policy in order to limit the 
number of noise complaints it investigated. This 
resulted in the complainant, and more than 6,300 
other residents, being denied a statutory public 
protection service. We recommended, and the 
council accepted, to change its restrictive policy 
and offer to investigate any ongoing concerns in 
all outstanding noise nuisance complaints. 

72

http://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/looked-after-children/17-005-652
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/adult-care-services/assessment-and-care-plan/16-015-946
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/environment-and-regulation/noise/17-018-747


7 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Meeting special educational needs

Case references: 17007085 & 18003453

We published two reports about children with 
Special Education Needs (SEN) being left 
without suitable education due to Norfolk County 
Council failing to complete their Education, 
Health and Care plans on time. The council 
accepted our recommendations to make a wide 
range of service reviews, and our reports were 
closely linked to the council’s decision to invest 
a further £120m into services for children with 
SEND.

Special Guardianship Allowances

Case reference: 17002928

Alongside our Special Guardianship focus 
report, we issued a report about North Tyneside 
Council, revealing systematic underpayment 
of Special Guardianship Allowances for more 
than 170 families. The council agreed to all 
our recommendations, including backdating 
payments to all families to 2013 (the date of our 
previous focus report on this topic). 

☎
16,899 

complaints and 
enquiries received

73

https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/17-007-085
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/18-003-453
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/children-s-care-services/friends-and-family-carers/17-002-928


8 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Using the statistics
When looking at data for individual authorities, it is 
important to understand that, taken alone, the volume 
of complaints does not indicate the quality of an 
authority’s services. High volumes of complaints can 
be a sign of an open, learning organisation, as well as 
sometimes being a warning sign of wider problems. 
Equally, low complaint volumes can be a worrying sign 
that an organisation is neither seeking nor listening to 
user feedback, rather than a sign that all is well. 

Complaint volumes should be used as the start of 
a conversation, rather than an absolute measure of 
the corporate health of an authority. We consider an 
authority’s willingness to accept fault where it has 
occurred and to put things right as a more insightful 
marker than the number of complaints they receive. 

As such, we now seek evidence that recommendations 
have been complied with (not only agreed to) and 
record where we are satisfied that a recommendation 
to remedy fault has been achieved (or otherwise). This 
means we can now report data about how an authority 

has complied with the recommendations we have 
made to remedy complaints about them.

What we publish

 ✓You can download the data tables for our 
local government complaints 2018-19, which 
provides information at a local authority level.

 ✓Our new interactive map provides councils, 
and those that scrutinise them, with a powerful 
suite of data to track progress against actions 
they have agreed to. You will also find councils’ 
annual performance data and letters here.

 ✓You can view annual performance letters for 
authorities not included on the interactive map.

74

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/local-government-complaint-reviews
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/local-government-complaint-reviews
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/councils-performance


9 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Supporting local scrutiny

How councillors can use our data to support scrutiny

Many local authorities already use our annual letters and complaint statistics to report to scrutiny 
committees and other oversight functions. We hope our interactive performance map will be a useful 
addition to the information available to scrutineers.
We suggest some key lines of enquiry for councillors to consider about their authority.

Complaints upheld:

 ✓Does the Ombudsman uphold particularly high or low numbers of complaints in particular service 
areas?

 ✓Compare the number of upheld complaints against the number of complaints made to your 
authority, or against other similar authorities, to build a picture.

Our decisions:

 ✓Do we refer a high number of complaints back to your authority to consider first? This may show 
that people are not being properly signposted to the local complaints process. 

 ✓Uphold rates show the proportion of investigations in which we find some fault and can indicate 
problems with services. Compare these with the national averages in this report or against other 
authorities.

Putting things right:

 ✓How often does your authority offer a suitable remedy for a complaint before it comes to us? This 
is a good sign that your authority is able to accept fault and offer appropriate ways to put things 
right for people. 

 ✓Use the interactive map to look at the service improvement recommendations your authority 
agrees to make following our investigations. How are they being implemented, and their impact 
monitored?

 ✓What is your authority’s compliance rate? This indicates our satisfaction with the evidence your 
authority has provided to implement a recommendation it has agreed to.

Complaint handling

 ✓How quickly does your authority respond to complaints?

 ✓How quickly does your authority look to put things right when there is evidence of fault?

 ✓How does your authority make sure all partners it commissions services from also have effective 
complaint handling processes?

 ✓Does your authority’s complaints process clearly signpost to the Ombudsman?

75



10 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Supporting local scrutiny

These are some examples of councillors using our data and casework in scrutiny sessions and improving local 
services as a result:

Following our public report finding fault in 
a homelessness case, London Borough of 

Haringey’s councillors subjected the council’s 
response to the report to intensive scrutiny. 
The session concluded by recommending 

officers consider going beyond the remedies 
we had recommended. We welcome this 

approach and the democratic accountability it 
demonstrates.

Nottinghamshire County Council’s 
Governance and Ethics Committee has taken 

the decision to scrutinise all complaints 
where we find fault to ensure lessons are 

properly learned. This is a good example of 
our casework contributing to the health and 

transparency of local democracy.

76



11 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Statistics

The following statistics are an accumulation of the annual data we publish for individual authorities. 
They include each English local authority, National Parks Authorities, the Greater London Authority, 
Transport for London, and the Environment Agency. 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Ad
ul

t S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

Be
ne

fit
s 

& 
Ta

x

C
or

po
ra

te
 &

 o
th

er

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
& 

C
hi

ld
re

n

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l s
er

vi
ce

s

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
& 

Tr
an

sp
or

t

H
ou

si
ng

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

O
th

er

2018-192017-18

Complaints and enquiries received

2,
60

2
2,

55
5

2,
06

3

1,
81

5

1,
02

7

1,
03

1

3,
26

0
3,

19
6

1,
80

2 2,
00

5

2,
04

6

1,
88

0 2,
19

8

2,
02

4 2,
26

8

2,
19

0

18
6

20
3

77



12 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

! i
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3

Initial Check Initial investigation 
(assessment)

Detailed investigation

We carry out some basic 
checks, like whether:

We decide whether to 
investigate the complaint 
by checking if:

We make a decision on 
whether the organisation 
was at fault by:

 ! the council or care provider 
has had the chance to 
consider the complaint

 ! it looks like we might be the 
right people to help at this 
stage

 ! the issue is something the 
law allows us to look into 
and;

 ! there is good reason for us 
to formally investigate

 ! investigating what happened, 
and what should have 
happened, according to the 
laws and policies in place at 
the time

 ! making recommendations to 
put things right if necessary

! i 🔍

Decisions made and investigations completed

 

7,136  
cases decided at 

initial check

 
(compared with 
8,135 in 2017-18)

 

5,150 
cases decided by 

initial investigation 

(compared with 
4,808 in 2017-18)

 

4,232 
cases decided 

by detailed 
investigation

(compared with 
4,020 in 2017-18)

78



13 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Uphold rates

2018-192017-18

2,446 
investigations upheld 

(58%) 
compared with 2,275 

in 2017-18 (57%)

1,786 
investigations not 

upheld 
compared with 1,745 in 

2017-18

O
ve

ra
ll 

up
ho

ld
 ra

te

Ad
ul

t S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

Be
ne

fit
s 

&T
ax

C
or

po
ra

te
 &

 O
th

er

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
& 

Tr
an

sp
or

t

H
ou

si
ng

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

57
%

58
% 61

%

61
%66

%

66
%

50
%

50
%

49
%

41
%

37
%

53
%

63
%

70
%

69
%

52
%

48
%

65
%

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
& 

C
hi

ld
re

n

79



14 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Recommendations

* In many cases, we will recommend more than 
one remedy. We have changed the way we 
record and report data to provide more accurate 
statistics, so this year's data are not directly 
comparable with 2017-18.

✔
1,929 
cases with 

recommendations to put 
things right

👤
3,525 

recommendations to 
remedy personal injustice*

👪
1,450 

recommendations to 
improve services for 

others*

💡 
 11% 

more cases with 
recommendations than last 

year

👍
11%  

upheld cases where we agreed 
with authority's remedy

80



15 Annual review of local government complaints 2018-19

Compliance with recommendations
While our recommendations to put things right are 
non-binding, in most cases authorities work with us 
constructively to comply with our remedies. 

 > We were satisfied with authorities’ compliance with 
our recommendations in 99.4% of cases. But, in 8% 
of cases this compliance was late.

 > In 1% of cases we were not satisfied with authorities’ 
compliance with our recommendations. 

When an authority fails to implement our 
recommendations, we can consider a range of actions, 
including issuing a public interest report and opening a 
new investigation into the authority’s failure to provide 
the agreed remedy.

Types of recommendations

 ✓Recommendations to remedy personal injustice 
typically include: an apology, financial redress, 
provision of services, writing off a debt, or a 
new appeal or review of a case. They can also 
encompass creative recommendations to fix things 
based on the person’s circumstances.

 ✓Recommendations to improve services typically 
include: a review of policies, change to practices, 
training staff, and awareness raising of issues within 
the authority and to the public. We can also ask 
authorities to put things right specifically for others 
that did not directly complain to us but may have been 
affected by the issues found within an investigation.

81



Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman
PO Box 4771
Coventry 
CV4 0EH

T:  0300 061 0614
W: www.lgo.org.uk
T: @LGOmbudsman

82



Benchmarking data for LCC Statistical neighbours – Local Government and Social Care 

Ombudsman complaints and investigations during 2018-19

Local Authority

New Complaints 

Received

2018 Mid Year Popn 

Estimate

Complaints per 

100,000 residents

Referred Back for 

Local Resolution 

(Premature)

Closed after Initial 

Enquiries

(Not Investigated)

Investigations 

Undertaken % Fault Found

Cambridgeshire 53 651,482 8.1                               22 11 13 62

Oxfordshire 59 687,524 8.6                               17 17 18 50

Hampshire 122 1,376,316 8.9                               42 35 25 84

Gloucestershire 66 633,588 10.4                             19 23 21 52

Worcestershire 68 592,057 11.5                             30 16 14 57

Warwickshire 67 571,010 11.7                             24 20 17 76

Leicestershire 82 698,268 11.7                             27 26 16 50

Nottinghamshire 104 823,126 12.6                             31 22 35 51

Northamptonshire 97 747,622 13.0                             39 25 27 67

North Yorkshire 82 614,505 13.3                             20 21 28 71

Essex 198 1,477,764 13.4                             53 52 73 66

Somerset 76 559,399 13.6                             25 13 22 55

Devon 116 795,286 14.6                             34 31 34 65

Suffolk 111 758,556 14.6                             33 35 31 71

Derbyshire 118 796,142 14.8                             57 26 19 63

Staffordshire 131 875,219 15.0                             34 39 50 72

TOTAL 1550 12,657,864             12.2                             507 412 443 63

83



Leicestershire County Council Performance 2018-19

84



Leicestershire County Council Performance 2018-19

85



Leicestershire County Council Performance 2018-19

86



 1 

APPENDIX D – SUMMARY OF FOI AND EIR LEGISLATION 
 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 
 
1. This act gives anyone the right to ask a public authority for information; for the 

information to be released to them, and / or to be told why the information cannot 
be provided. Public authorities are bound by the Act to: 
 

• Reply to any request within 20 working days either providing the 
information or stating why it cannot be provided using the stated 
exemptions within the Act 

 

• Provide advice and assistance to the applicant in making the request 
 

• Must not charge for providing the information, other than photocopying, 
postage and related disbursements, unless the time that would be 
required to provide the information would exceed the ‘appropriate time 
limit’ of 18 hours  

 

• Where a request has been declined, offer an appeals procedure prior to 
the requestor taking a complaint to the Information Commissioner (ICO) 

 
2. In addition, under the Act there is also a requirement to publish the information 

held, which is referred to as a “Publication Scheme” 
 

Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR) 
 

3. EIR gives enhanced access to environmental information, by giving members of 
the public and others the right to access environmental information held by public 
authorities. 
 

4. Environmental information is divided into the following main areas: 
 

• The state of the elements of the environment, such as air, water, soil, land 
and the interaction among these elements. 

• Emissions and discharges, noise, energy, radiation, waste and other such 
substances. 

• Measures and activities such as policies, plans and agreements affecting 
or likely to affect the state of the elements of the environment. 

• The state of human health and safety, contamination of the food chain. 

• Cultural sites and built structures (to the extent they may be affected by 
the state of the environment). 

 
5. The provisions of FOIA and EIR are quite similar however; there are a number of 

important differences which include: 
 

• Requests for environmental information need not be in writing 

• An extension can be requested for EIR requests (up to 40 days) 

87



 2 

• There are differences between the exceptions available under EIR and the 
exemptions available under FOIA 

• No exception is available under EIR for requests that involve costs in 
excess of the ‘appropriate limit’. 

 

88



 

 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH  
 

CLINICAL GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to: 
 

(a) Update the Committee on the process of assuring clinical governance 
since the last report to this Committee in October 2018; 
 

(b) Update the Committee on key issues dealt with as part of Leicestershire 
County Council’s clinical governance monitoring arrangements, roles and 
responsibilities since October 2018. 

 
Background 
 
2. The Public Health function of the Council includes responsibility for a number 

of clinical services previously commissioned by the NHS.  It is a condition 
attached to the allocation of the public health grant that local authorities must 
have appropriate clinical governance arrangements to cover clinical services 
commissioned with grant funds. 

 
3. This paper provides information and assurance on the clinical governance 

arrangements that have been established by the County Council to ensure its 
commissioned clinical services are of a high standard, continuously 
improving, cost-effective, safe and provide a good patient experience.  
 

4. ‘Clinical governance’ is a systematic approach to maintaining and improving 
the quality of patient care within a health system.  Its most widely cited formal 
definition is: ‘A framework through which [NHS] organisations are accountable 
for continually improving the quality of their services and safeguarding high 
standards of care by creating an environment in which excellence in clinical 
care will flourish’. 

 
5. Clinical governance refers directly to ‘clinical services’ i.e. services delivered 

by clinical staff / healthcare professionals, e.g. doctors, nurses, allied health 
professionals and others.  The main clinical services commissioned by the  
 
 

89 Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
County Council’s Public Health Department are:  
 

 Substance misuse services (SMST)* (including substance misuse 
shared care, criminal justice substance misuse pathway, alcohol brief 
advice, inpatient detoxification, alcohol liaison team). The main provider 
of this service is Turning Point. 
 

 Integrated Sexual Health Services (ISHS)* (including GP contraceptive 
services and pharmacy-based emergency contraception). The main 
provider of this service changed in January 2019 to Midlands 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. 
 

 NHS Health Checks - commissioned from local GPs 
 

 School nursing service - part of the ‘Healthy Child Programme’-
provided by Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust 
 

 Health visiting service - part of the ‘Healthy Child Programme’ provided 
by Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust 
 

 Community infection prevention and control service* 
 
*Services jointly commissioned with Leicester City and Rutland 
Councils 
 

6. The range of service providers includes NHS and voluntary/private sector. 
 

7. Clinical governance assurance necessitates regular and ad hoc contract 
monitoring with a specific focus on clinical aspects of service provision to 
demonstrate cost effective and safe care that also delivers a good patient 
experience.  

 
8. Examples of performance indicators specific to clinical governance include: 

 

 Measures of cost effectiveness of services 

 Reports of serious incidents and complaints 

 Safeguarding reports 

 General patient feedback e.g. service user feedback 

 Reports of compliments 

 Results of quality visits 

90



 

 

Leicestershire County Council’s Clinical Governance Framework 
 
9. Public Health’s Clinical Governance Framework has been created to support 

assurance in relation to clinical governance. This provides a consistent 
approach for contract managers and other team members to follow when 
monitoring the performance of commissioned services. 

 
10. Ownership of clinical governance assurance for specific services sits with 

senior managers and consultant leads for those services within the Public 
Health Department.  Further oversight is provided by the Director of Public 
Health and the overall clinical governance consultant lead.  

 
11. The Public Health Departmental Management Team (DMT) receives provider 

clinical governance reports (including quality dashboards) on a quarterly 
basis.  

 
12. DMT examines provider performance from both general quality and clinical 

governance perspectives.  DMT identifies signs of both good practice and of 
non-compliance at an early stage through the review of provider information 
and using comparison/benchmarking data where available.  Planned quality 
assessments/audits are also undertaken using the Public Health Quality 
Assessment Tool for both departmental quality measures and for conducting 
scheduled contractual quality visits with our commissioned services. 

13. DMT identifies concerns and recommendations and suggested actions which 
are then relayed through contract and commissioning leads into routine 
contract and performance meetings.  Progress against recommendations and 
action is monitored at subsequent DMT meetings.  

14. DMT also reports into the following: 

 Corporate Governance Committee 

 Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 Adults and Children Safeguarding Board 

 East Midlands NHSE Quality Surveillance Group 

15. A diagram setting out the overview arrangements for clinical governance is 
set out below.  

 

 

 

 

 

91



 

 

 

Overview of arrangements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                   

                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

 

 

 

                                         

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                

Corporate Governance 

Committee 

                                                                

Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

                                                                            

NHSE Quality 

Surveillance 

Group 

 Annual Reports 

 Exceptional 
reports; 

 Lessons to be 
learnt; 

 Risk Management 
issues 

Issues of concern 
relating to patient 
experience 

 

Safeguarding 
concerns 

 

Adults and Children 

Safeguarding Board 

Departmental Management Team 

 

Provider Clinical 
Governance 

Reports

 

orts 

Provider Contract 
Meetings 

Regular 
Feedback 

92



 

 

16. The County Council’s Public Health Department collaborates with Leicester 
City Council’s Public Health clinical governance colleagues in relation to those 
services that are commissioned jointly.  

17. Additional support is also available through collaboration with local Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) e.g. through a memorandum of 
understanding covering the joint public health/CCG serious incident 
procedures that relate to providers from whom both public health and CCGs 
commissioned services (predominately primary care and Leicestershire 
Partnership NHS Trust). 

18. Table 1 provides a summary of significant issues considered and managed by 
the County Council’s Public Health’s Departmental Management Meeting 
(October 2018-September 2019). 
 

Table 1 
 

Key Clinical Governance Issues and Actions 

October 2018 - September 2019 

Heading Issue Action  

(October 2018-September 2019) 

Quality Visits Site visits to providers of clinical 
services provide valuable 
insights into the quality, safety 
and likely patient experience that 
is being delivered. 

Providers are routinely visited by 
Public Health contracting and 
quality staff at least annually. 
 
Providers are also subject to visits 
from the Care Quality 
Commission. 
 
Healthy Child Programme (0-19) 
(Leicestershire Partnership 
NHS Trust): 
Two quality visits in 2018 with 
overall outcome of GREEN. 
LAC & Safeguarding CQC visits 
for Leicestershire & Rutland, July 
2019: The ‘Healthy Together’ 
programme was broadly 
commended in the report: 
‘Effective delivery of the Healthy 
Child Programme in 
Leicestershire is ensuring that 
children at risk of neglect, abuse 
and harm, with low protective 
factors are being provided with 

93



 

 

early help and support that they 
need to reduce the likelihood of 
harm and health inequalities’.  
Substance Misuse Treatment 
Services (Turning Point) 
Turning Point was inspected by 
the Care Quality Commission in 
November 2018 and overall was 
found to be ‘outstanding’. 
Integrated Sexual Health 
Service (Midlands Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust). 
The Trust plans to do an internal 
audit visit in October 2019 and the 
Trust’s Quality Team are also 
visiting in October 2019 to review 
the pathway changes instigated 
as a result of a serious incident.   
A CQC visit is expected but no 
date has been given so far. 
 
Public Health have given notice of 
its intention to mystery shop and 
this will occur over the next couple 
of months. 
 

Clinical Audit Clinical audit is a means of 
finding out if healthcare is being 
provided in line with established 
standards of best practice. It lets 
care providers, commissioners 
and patients know where their 
service is doing well, and where 
there could be improvements.  
 
Our main contracts require our 
providers to choose and agree 
clinical audits each year aimed at 
improving quality of patient care. 
 

DMT oversees the process of 
carrying out and acting upon the 
results of clinical audit. 
 
Examples of audits carried out in 
2017/18 included: 
 
Integrated Sexual Health 
Service (Midlands Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust) Audits: 

 Management of 
trichomonas vaginalis 

 Re-audit of fitting of IUS/D 
Substance Misuse Treatment 
Services (Turning Point) 
 Audits:  

 Full Caseload audit 

 Dependent Alcohol case 
audit 

 Safeguarding Audit 

 Service level death audits 

 NICE audits - Naltrexone, 
Methadone/Buprenorphone

94



 

 

, Alcohol management, 
Psychosocial Interventions 

 Prescription process audit 
(6 monthly) 

 Supervised consumption 
audit (monthly)  

 Blood Borne Virus testing 
audit 

 
Healthy Child Programme (0-19) 
(Leicestershire Partnership 
NHS Trust) Audits: 
 

 0-19 Initial Continence 
Pathway Audit 

 Pre-adoptive Parenthood 
Pathway re-audit 

 Pre-mobile Baby re-audit 

 Perinatal Mental Health  
 

Patient Group 
Directions 
(PGDs) 

PGDs provide a legal framework 
that allows the supply and/or 
administration of a specified 
medicine(s) to a group of 
patients, who may not be 
individually identified prior to 
presentation for treatment. 
Leicestershire County Council 
must help develop and ultimately 
authorise use of these drugs by 
commissioned clinical services. 

Four PGDs were 
developed/authorised in 2018-
2019: 

 Hepatitis B to use by 
Turning Point (developed 
by Public Health England) 

 Levonorgestrel for use in 
community pharmacies 
(emergency contraception) 

 Ulipristal (UPA-EC) for use 
in community pharmacies 
(emergency contraception) 

 Pabrinex® Intramuscular 
High-Potency Injection, for 
use by Turning Point in 
treatment of severe 
depletion or malabsorption 
of the water-soluble 
vitamins B and C in service 
users diagnosed with 
Alcohol Use Disorders. 
 

Safeguarding  As commissioners of clinical 
services, Public Health must be 
unequivocally assured that the 
providers of commissioned 
clinical services are fully 
compliant with their 

The Clinical Governance Lead is a 
member of the Leicester, 
Leicestershire and Rutland 
Safeguarding Adults Board (LLR 
SAB) and the Leicestershire and 
Rutland Children Safeguarding 

95



 

 

responsibilities to safeguard their 
patients against harm.  
 
DMT oversees provider 
safeguarding arrangements in 
our providers and must be 
assured that robust 
arrangements are in place. 
 

Partnership. 
 
The Clinical Governance Lead is 
part of a regional public health 
safeguarding network. 
 

Serious 
Incidents (SIs) 

Serious Incidents in clinical 
settings are adverse events, 
where the consequences to 
patients, families and carers, 
staff or organisations are so 
significant in terms of actual or 
potential harm and/or the 
potential for learning is so great, 
that a heightened level of 
response is justified.  NHS 
Serious Incident Framework 
Supporting learning to prevent 
recurrence: 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2015/04/serious-
incidnt-framwrk-upd.pdf 

The LLR Serious Incident Report 
Protocol outlines our 
responsibilities in relation to 
serious incidents and 
summarises the key information 
and requirements for reporting 
and management. This protocol 
is imbedded within our contracts 
for Public Health commissioned 
services to ensure a consistent 
approach across the department. 
Details regarding individual 
serious incidents that were 
considered by the Department in 
line with the Leicestershire Public 
Health Serious Incident Protocol 
were not included in the report 
for reasons of confidentiality. 
 
 

Leicestershire Public Health 
Serious Incident Protocol 

Robust systems are in place for 
the reporting, management and 
learning from Serious Incidents so 
that lessons are learned, and the 
appropriate action is taken to 
prevent future harm.  
Arrangements are in place to 
monitor and deal with serious 
incidents on a daily basis though 
our in-house serious incident 
mailbox. This is coordinated by 
the administration team and 
overseen by consultants, senior 
public health managers and the 
consultant clinical governance 
lead.  
 
29 Serious Incidents were 
received between October 2018 
and September 2019 (see Table 2 
below). Table 3 below covering 
November 2017 to October 2018 
is included for comparison. 
 
The vast majority of serious 
incidents related to deaths of 
patients who are under the care of 
Turning Point. 
 
Turning Point carried out a CQC 
Thematic Death Review (Deaths 
from 1st January 2018 - June 
2018) and plan to repeat this 
review in January/February 2020.  
Anecdotally Turning Point have 
reported they suspect the 
numbers of suicides/overdoses in 

96

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/serious-incidnt-framwrk-upd.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/serious-incidnt-framwrk-upd.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/serious-incidnt-framwrk-upd.pdf


 

 

patients with substance misuse 
issues is increasing. 
 

Re-procurement Re-procurement of clinical 
services creates opportunities to 
update and improve the clinical 
quality and safety of new 
services. 
 

The most recent re-procurement 
was for Integrated Sexual Health 
Services with the new provider 
(Midlands Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust) commencing 
delivery of the service in January 
2019.  
 

Partnerships Clinical governance 
arrangements, expertise and 
knowledge are enhanced by 
sharing good practice across the 
wider health and care systems.  

Leicestershire, Leicester City and 
Rutland CCGs serious incident 
panel review cases of serious 
incidents that relate to the Healthy 
Child Programme on behalf of 
Leicestershire County Council. 
 
The Public Health Clinical 
Governance lead sits on the 
clinical governance panel of West 
Leicestershire CCG, the East 
Midlands Public Health Clinical 
Governance Network, the 
Leicestershire Safeguarding 
Adults Board and the Leicester, 
Leicestershire and Rutland Quality 
Surveillance Board. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

97



 

 

Table 2 
 

Serious incidents reported to the County Council’s 
Public Health directorate  

1/10/18 to 30/09/19  

Month Number of Serious 

Incidents Reported into 

dedicated PH SI inbox 

October, 2018 1 

November, 2018 3 

December, 2018 2 

January, 2019 0 

February, 2019 3 

March, 2019 4 

April, 2019 1 

May, 2019 1 

June, 2019 5 

July, 2019 3 

August, 2019 2 

September, 2019 4 

Total 29 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

98



 

 

Table 3 
 

 

Serious incidents reported to the County Council’s 
Public Health directorate  

1/11/17 to 1/10/18  
 

Month Number of Serious 

Incidents Reported 

November, 2017 3 

December, 2017 0 

January, 2018 0 

February, 2018 1 

March, 2018 0 

April, 2018 1 

May, 2018 2 

June, 2018 5 

July, 2018 1 

August, 2018 2 

September, 2018 4 

October, 2018 1 

Total 20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

99



 

 

Resource Implications 
 
19. A proportion of the public health grant is needed to support the Council’s 

obligations in relation to clinical governance e.g. in terms of staffing (clinical 
governance managers and contract managers).  

 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
20. None arising directly from this report. 
 
Recommendation 

 
The Committee is asked to note this report. 
 
Officer to Contact 

 
Mr. Mike Sandys 
Director of Public Health 
Tel: 0116 305 4239 Email: mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk  
 
Dr Mike McHugh 
Consultant in Public Health 
Tel: 0116 305 4236 E-mail: mike.mchugh@leics.gov.uk 

100

mailto:mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk
mailto:mike.mchugh@leics.gov.uk


   
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
AND THE DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 

 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to: 

a. report on the operation of the Contract Procedure Rules between 1 July 
2018 and 30 June 2019; 

b. propose that recommendations to the County Council are made to revise 
the Contract Procedure Rules. 

Background 

2. Rule 8 (Annual Reporting) of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules stipulates 
that the Director of Corporate Resources, in consultation with the Director of 
Law and Governance, shall at least once in each financial year submit a report 
to the Corporate Governance Committee in relation to the operation of these 
Rules.  This includes (amongst other things) details of the approved exceptions 
to these Rules and approved extensions to a contract where this has not been 
provided for in the contract, and to set out any proposed revisions to the Rules 
and/or changes required to accommodate the requirements of UK and EU 
procurement law, as may be necessary from time to time.  

3. Following consideration by the Committee, the proposed revisions to the 
Contract Procedure Rules will be submitted to the County Council at its meeting 
in December 2019 for approval. 

Approved Exceptions to the Rules 

4. Between 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019 thirteen approved exceptions, which 
are allowed for under Rule 6 of the Contract Procedure Rules, have been 
recorded in the Exceptions Logs maintained by the Commissioning Support 
Unit and Chief Officers.  These have been consolidated and are detailed in 
Appendix A attached to this report.  

5. The reasons for the thirteen approved exceptions included:  

a. the specialist nature of the requirements;  

101 Agenda Item 10



   
   

   

 

b. the limited nature of the supply markets. 

6. A comparative table of approved exceptions over the last 5 years is provided in 
Table 1 below.  

 

 
Table 1: Comparison of Approved Exceptions  

 

Period 
Number of 
Approved 

Exceptions 

Total Value of 
Approved 

Exceptions 

No. of Exceptions 
above relevant EU 

Threshold 

 
  1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 
 

13 £1.8m 3 

1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 
 

18 £1.2m None 

1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 22 £2.5m 1 

1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 

 
25 

 
£1.7m 

 
None 

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 

 
29 

 
£19.3m 

 
1 

7. From Table 1 it can be seen that in comparison to the previous year there has 
been a downward trend in the number of exceptions granted, however, there 
were 3 approved exceptions above the Public Contract Regulations (PCR) 2015 
threshold which is an increase on previous years. 

Approved Contract Extensions and Modifications where no provision in the 
Contract 

8. During the same reporting period, 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019, in compliance 
with Rule 30(c), Rule 30(g) and Rule 30(h) there were seven approvals for 
contracts either where there was no provision within the original contract for an 
extension or where the proposed contract variation required such approval (see 
Appendix A attached).  The main reasons for these contract extensions and 
variations included: 

a. the need to review, consult on, and reconfigure services before the re-
tendering of that service;  

b. continued delivery of critical services. 

9. Two of the contract extensions/variations involved contracts whose value was 
above the relevant EU threshold.  

 

 

102



   
   

   

 

10. The contracts involved were: 

a. Provision of Small Works and Minor Buildings Adaptations for Adult 
Social Care; 

b. Domiciliary Care Framework (including call off contracts). 

11. A comparative table of approved contract extensions and modifications over the 
last 5 years is provided in Table 2 below.  

 

Table 2: Comparison of Approved Contract Extensions and Modifications 

Reporting Period 
Number of Approved 

Extensions/Modifications 

Total Value of Contracts 

(including value of 
approved 

extensions/modifications) 

No of Extensions 
above relevant EU 

Threshold 

1 July 2018 to 30 
June 2019 

7 £132.5m 2 

1 July 2017 to 30 
June 2018 

7 £156.3m 3 

1 July 2016 to 30 
June 2017 

10 £135.2m 2 

1 July 2015 to 30 
June 2016 

14 £87m 3 

1 July 2014 to 30 
June 2015 

9 £4.8m (£109m)* 4 

* Includes value of contracts not caught by the full Public Contracts Regulations regime. 

12. Comparison over the last few years from 2014/15 to 2018/19 shows a 
downward trend in the number of contract extensions (without an extension 
provision) or contract variations being approved. 

13. The Corporate Management Team continues to review, on a quarterly basis, 
approved exceptions as part of corporate performance monitoring. 

Proposed Revisions to the Rules 
 

14. Changes to the Rules are proposed for the following reasons: 
 
a. to clarify their meaning further; 
b. to strengthen the approval process for spend through frameworks. 

 
 
 

103



   
   

   

 

 
 
15. The proposed revisions are:  

 
a. Strengthen Rule 1 around the requirement for decisions to be taken to the 

executive before any procurement. 
b. Addition to Rule 4 to define the meaning Direct Employee in Schedule 1, 

to ensure the rules are considered for temporary labour contracts. 
c. Change wording for Rule 5 to align with the Councils Social Value Policy. 
d. Addition of approval process to Rule 5 to ensure if Social Value is not 

considered in line with the Policy approval is sought from the appropriate 
Commercial Specialist. 

e. Amendment to Rule 5(d) to ensure an increased and more appropriate 
compliant usage of Corporate Contracts. 

f.       Addition to Rule 6 (a) (vi) to strengthen the process around exceptions 
over £25,000. 

g. Amendment to Rule 6 (iv) (ee) to strengthen the process around 
exceptions to residential placement contracts to ensure the appropriate 
Commercial Specialist is given justification and evidence. 

h. Amendment to Rule 10 (b) (iii) to cover works contracts, as a result of 
feasibility, which could be awarded separately via a competitive procedure 
to a builder. 

i.       Amendment to Rule 11 to ensure the table references the correct Rules. 
j.       Amend Rule 11 (e) to strengthen the process around the use of 

frameworks to ensure the Commercial Specialists are able to support in 
ensuring value for money and compliant use of the frameworks. 

k. Rule 11 include definition of Corporate Contracts in Schedule 1 for clarity, 
l.       Amendment to Rule 11 to ensure approval has to be sought to continue 

with a procurement between the value of £25,000 and £50,000 without 3 
written quotes. 

m. Amend Rule 11 to state that electronic – tendering should be used not 
may be used, to increase transparency and compliance. 

n. Amend Rule 14 (c) (ii) to align with Rule 12. 
o. Amend Rule 14 (g) to increase compliance of not releasing OJEU related 

information before the OJEU is posted, and not containing more 
information than is posted in the OJEU. 

p. Amend Rule 15 to further strengthen the rule to the use of electronic 
tendering and confidentiality agreements. 

q. Addition to Rule 17 to ensure compliance with Reg 26(4) of the Public 
Contract Regulations. 

r.       Addition to Rule 18 (b) to ensure Terms and Conditions are visible to all 
parties in the Tender Process. 

s. Amend Rule 24 (c) from within reasonable time to 30 calendar days to 
improve compliance. 

t.       Amend Rule 24 (d) to improve compliance with Reg 84 of the Public 
Contract Regulations. 

u. Amend Rule 24 (e) to clarify the inclusion of Frameworks and Framework 
Call Offs. 

104



   
   

   

 

v. Addition to Rule 25 to allow the Council to implement the use of Electronic 
Signatures to modernise the Councils approach to getting contracts and 
placement agreements authorised. 

w. Amend Rule 25 (f) from “consider” to “comply” with regards to GDPR. 
x. Addition to Rule 25 to ensure the inclusion of Right to Audit Clauses within 

Contracts. 
y. Replace wording in Rule 25A from Contract Management System to 

Contracts Register as it is known to all Officers. 
z. Addition to Rule 28 (c) to ensure Commercial Specialists are consulted in 

the use of Direct Awards on Frameworks over OJEU to improve 
compliance and ensure value for money is being obtained. 

aa. Addition to Rule 28 (e) to ensure all Officers add Framework Call Offs to 
the Contracts Register within 30 days in compliance with the Public 
Contract Regulations. 

bb. Amend Rule 30 (e) to allow delegated authorities to be applied to Contract 
Extensions where the provision was allowed for in the initial procurement. 

cc. Add to Rule 35 Commercial Specialist to in the case of ESPO an Officer 
with delegated authorities, this will allow for the request of contracts & 
relevant information from consultants, freelancers etc. 

dd. Add definition of Direct Employee in line with Rule 4. 
ee. Add to Schedule 1 33 under Procurement Exercise – vis a Framework 

Agreement/ Dynamic Purchasing System. 
ff. Update Schedule 1 7 Contract to add for the avoidance of doubt Contracts 

shall include Framework Agreements and Call Offs from Frameworks. 
gg. Delete from Schedule 1 23 “2006 and” to bring the rules up to date 
hh. Add definition of Contracts Register for clarification. 

 
16. The proposed revisions to the Rules have been drafted and these are set out in 

Appendix B attached to this report.  The revisions to the Rules are supported by 
the Director of Law and Governance and the Director of Corporate Resources 
and will be presented to the County Council in December 2019 for approval, 
(subject to this Committee’s agreement). 

17. Should the County Council approve the draft revised Contract Procedure Rules 
the new Rules will come into force on 1 January 2020 and will be published on 
the Council’s internet and intranet sites and communicated to all relevant 
managers and staff within the Council, including via newsletters and 
presentations. 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 

18. The Rules ensure that all potential suppliers and suppliers receive equal 
treatment when bidding for contracts. 

Recommendations 

19. It is recommended that: 

a. the contents of this report on the operation of the Contract Procedure 
Rules between 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019 be noted; 

105



   
   

   

 

b. the County Council be recommended to approve the proposed 
amendments to the Contract Procedure Rules, as set out in Appendix 
B attached to this report. 

Background Papers 

The Constitution of Leicestershire County Council. 

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

None 

Officers to Contact 

Kay Springthorpe 
Head of Commissioning & Procurement Support 
Tel. 0116 305 0325 
E-mail: Kay.Springthorpe@leics.gov.uk 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A -    Contract Procedure Rules Approved Exceptions & Contract 
Extensions (July 2018- June 2019) 

Appendix B -    Proposed Amendments to Part 4 G - Contract Procedure Rules 

106

mailto:Kay.Springthorpe@leics.gov.uk


Appendix A - Contract Procedure Rules  - Rule 6 Approved Exceptions  1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019

Ref 

No.
Contract Title

Contract Description

(if required)

Total Contract 

Value (£)

Approval 

Type
Rationale

Approved? 

(Y/N)
Approval Date Approved By

Category 

Group
Department

1

West Lane, Stanton Under 

Bardon & Victoria Road, 

Ellistown

Winvic areon site in West Lane/Victoria Road from 16th 

July 2018 delivering s278 access works for the Mount 

Park employment development. These works require the 

closure of West Lane/Victoria Road for six weeks

£440,000.00
Exception-

Rule 6b(ii)

To allow both the s278 access works and the major maintenance works to be 

carried out under the same 6 week closure, thus minimising impacts, it is 

necessary to directly award the contract to Winvic so they can carry out the works 

in parallel with the added benefits of reduced cost due to using the same traffic 

management, one CDM prinicple contractor and allow the LCC supervisor for the 

s278 worls to also supervise the maintenance works.

Yes 12/07/18 Ann Carruthers Highways
Environment & 

Transport

2

Treatment of Green Waste Provision of the Treatment of Green Waste £181,302.00
Exception-

Rule 6b(i)

MBC would be directed to the composting facility at Lount. This would increase 

costs to LCC. The Lount compositing facility has a favourable gate fee up to 

30,000 tonnes per annum.

Yes 24/07/18 Ann Carruthers Waste
Environment & 

Transport

3

Contract for provision of 

replacement push wall at 

Loughborough Waste 

Transfer Station

Contractor to deliver the push wall works £50,000.00
Exception-

Rule 6b(i)

Significant cracks have been found in a number of the existing push walls, and 

imminent failure seems likely. Given the importance of the site, it is vital to 

minimise any downtime at the site, in order to continue to deliver the statutory 

duties of the authority as a WDA.

Yes 09/08/18 Ann Carruthers Waste
Environment & 

Transport

4

Route Guidance System for 

Winter Maintenance

Purchasing of an automated sat-nav and tracker system 

for our gritting fleet which also could potentially automate 

the gritting process allowing the driver to concentrate on 

their driving duties.

£141,910.00
Exception-

Rule 6b(i)

Higher level of road safety because the driver is free to concentrate on driving. A 

system that ensured optimal spreading settings at all times ensuring compliance 

with the ACOP and the potential to save money by reducing the salt usage. A 

system that provided flexibility in staff deployment as route knowledge would not 

be required by the driver. This would give us greater resilience and capacity as 

individual  drivers could cover multiple routes. A system that could deal with the 

variety of routes we have in Leicestershire and robust enough to ensure they were 

correctly and accurately spread. A sat-nav system that was flexible enough to deal 

with road closures and diversions and be able to return the driver to the correct 

route. Backward compatibility – the ability for the sat-nav part of the system to be 

retro fitted to our current fleet (fitted with Econ gritting equipment)

Yes 30/08/18 Ann Carruthers Highways
Environment & 

Transport

5

Replacement Blue Badge 

system

Software package to manage the council's Blue Badge 

scheme
£32,500.00

Exception-

Rule 

6a(i)&6b(i)

The working group has carried out market research and obtained prices from 

three comparable companies including FirmStep. This has concluded that the 

FirmStep quote is the cheapest. In addition, FirmStep are able to meet the full 

range of the Council's requirements whilst other suppliers cannot.

Yes 25/09/18 Ann Carruthers Transport
Environment & 

Transport

6

National Governance 

Association (NGA) - Link E-

Learning Services 
Provision of Link E-Learning Services (Learning Link; LL) £4,860.00

Exception

Rule 6 b) (i) 
Enable current provision to continue with no disruption to the work of the 

GDS or local schools accessing this source of training.  

Yes 03/10/18 Jane Moore
Children's 

Social Care

Childrens & Family 

Services

7

Parent Programme  

Practitioner Training (Early 

Help) Provision of Parent Programme Early Help Practitioner 

Training
£172,000.00

Exception

Rule 6 b) (i) 

A desk-based literature review was undertaken, drawing on the work of the 

National Academy of Parenting Practitioners, Parenting Early Intervention 

Programme, Early Intervention Foundation, and NICE.  This review did not 

identify any other provides with the full range of programmes.

Yes 19/12/18 Jane Moore
Children's 

Social Care

Childrens & Family 

Services

8

Repairs to Farmers Snow 

Ploughs

Carry out repairs or replace defective parts on the LCC 

snow ploughs used by farmers to support snow clearing 

of the highway network.

£86,500.00
Exception 

Rule 6a(i) 

The snow plough’s used by farmers to clear snow from the Highway are owned by 

LCC. As such LCC has a duty of care to ensure the equipment is fit for purpose 

and inspected and maintained in accordance with manufacturer’s instructions. In 

Spring 2018 Bunce carried out an inspection of the LCC ploughs used by farmers 

and provided a report of the work required to bring these up to a serviceable and 

acceptable standard.

The snow ploughs were last inspected by LCC’s Fleet Team (workshop) in 

September 2013. Since that time numerous farmers have contacted LCC stating 

the ploughs requires repair or maintenance.

Yes 27/12/18 Ann Carruthers Highways
Environment & 

Transport

9

Crèche Provision for 

Children’s Centres

Crèche Provision for Children’s Centres £88,000.00
Exception

Rule 6 b) (i) 

Local providers did not appreciate the importance of applying to be on the 

Framework, to ensure the provisions can continue this exception is required until 

the providers can apply to be on the Framework.

Yes 20/03/19 Jane Moore

Education & 

Early Help 

Services

Childrens & Family 

Services

107



10 Extend the hire arrangements for the TVCBs

Hire arrangements for the TVCBs (Temporary Vertical 

Containment Barrier) which are currently being utilised on 

Soar Valley Way in order to protect the damaged bridge 

parapets.

£37,000.00
Exception-

Rule 6a(i)

The TVCBs were originally installed in November 2018 as an emergency 

installation following a serious RTA. It was essential that the TVCBs were erected 

immediately in order to protect road-users and to maintain two running lanes (in 

both directions). The original emergency order has now expired but the hire of the 

TVCBs, including any relocation and removal during the repair work, will need to 

continue until the parapet replacement works are complete. This is currently 

planned for Mid-July 2019 and an extension of the hire period until the end of 

August 2019 would be appropriate.

Yes 29/03/19 Ann Carruthers Highways
Environment & 

Transport

11

Learning Link

Provision of Link E-Learning Services £11,000.00

Exception 

Rule 6 b) (i) 

The need to avoid any further exception requests relating to this work has 

also been discussed by Commissioning and Planning and the GDS and 

there is an agreement that work will proceed in November 2019 to plan a 

three-quote exercise that is compliant with Contract Procedure Rules to 

commissioning this e-learning 

Yes 01/05/19 Jane Moore

Education & 

Early Help 

Services

Childrens & Family 

Services

12

Specialist Adoption Assessments 

ASF funded essential therapeutic services for eligible 

adoptive and special guardianship order families
£7,500.00 Exception 

Rule 6 b) (i) Urgent Requirment to support 3 families whilst a procurement is completed.

Yes 22/05/19 Jane Moore
Children's 

Social Care

Childrens & Family 

Services

13

Delivery of a McDonalds 

Restaurant at Leaders 

Farm, Coventry Road, 

Lutterworth

The contract will be for McDonald’s Restaurants Ltd to 

procure the shell of a new modular Drive-Through 

Restaurant and LCC reimburse McDonalds Restaurants 

Ltd for this cost.   

£569,000.00
Exception 

Rule 6 b) (i) 

Exception to commit to the offer of a capital contribution to Mcdonalds in leau of 

delivery of the Drive Through restaurant to their required specification and timings.

Yes 21/05/19 Chris Tambini Property Corporate Resources

108



Appendix A - Contract Procedure Rules - Rule 30 Approved Contract Modification & Extension 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019

Ref 

No.
Contract Title

Contract Description

(if required)

Total Contract Value 

(£)
Approval Type Rationale

Approved? 

(Y/N)
Approval Date Approved By

Category 

Group
Department

1

Loughborough and Kibworth Waste 

Transfer Stations (WTS) waste 

loading shovel provision

Waste Loading Shovels £89,000.00 Rule 30(g)&(h)

This extension request is proposed to allow the Haulage Operations Team to 

further assess the impact upon the operational arrangements at Loughborough 

RHWS & WTS following the anticipated closure of the New Albion landfill site (due 

in December 2018). 

Yes 13/07/18 Ann Carruthers Waste
Environment & 

Transport

2 NHS Health Check Software
Health Check Software to be used by Community Based 

Services
£120,000.00 Rule 30(h) & (i)

An extension to this current Framework whilst an appraisal is completed to inform 

the future delivery of a wider software system to meet the needs of all community 

based services.  An extension is required to finalise the procurement plan which 

cannot be completed before the end of the current contract term (September 

2018). 

Yes 03/09/18 Chris Tambini
Community 

Based Services
Public Health

3
Provision of Small Works and 

Minor Buildings Adaptations
Adult Social Care minor works for Adaptations £1,895,833.00 Rule 30(h) & (i)

An extension to the current Framework whilst an appraisal is completed to inform 

the future of both in-house and outsourced ASC minor works delivery.  
Yes 03/09/18 Chris Tambini Social Care

Corporate 

Resources

4
Contract for re-use arrangements 

at RHWS 
Re-Use Arrangements at RHWS £175,000.00 Rule 30(h) & (i)

To extend the current contract with RecycleMart Ltd for the provision of re-use 

arrangements at the RHWSs.
Yes 17/09/18 Chris Tambini Waste

Environment & 

Transport

6 Carers Support Service Support for Carers £63,888
Rule 

30(a)&(b)&(g)
DMT agreed to extend both Carers' Support Service for six months to 31 Oct 2019 with a view to further scoping work being undertaken to model different levels of respite/support required.  Extension will allow for a scopoe of national carer support services and interventions with a view to identifiying possible approaches suitable for Leics carers support.Yes 29/01/19

Jon Wilson

Social Care
Adults and 

Communities

5
Domiciliary Care Framework 

(including call off contracts)
Domiciliary (home) Care £130,000,000 Rule 30 (h) & (i)

To extend the current framework to complete analysis work to inform the new 

procurement.
Yes 25/03/19 Chris Tambini Social Care

Adults and 

Communities

7
Countrywide Assistive Technology 

Service
Assistive Technology Provision £128,000.00

Extension Rule 

30(h)

To ensure continuity of service in terms of the offer of AT support during 

reablement while longer term AT vision and strategy are developed and to 

facilitate the decommissioning of the LCC legacy users by the end of the 

iBCF funding on 31
st
 March 2020.

Yes 25/05/19 Jon Wilson Social Care
Adults and 

Communities

109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Current Rule Proposed Amendment 

RULE 1 
Compliance 
(a) Officers must comply with these Rules. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action.  
(b) Where a decision taken under these rules involves a key decision, this must be taken by the 
Executive. Key decisions are defined in Rule 8 of the Executive Procedure Rules (Part 4D) of this 
Constitution. 
(c) Sale of council assets are not part of these rules. They are covered by Rule 25 Purchasing and 
income collections and Rule 26 Inventories and assets of the Financial Procedure Rules (Part 4F) of 
the Constitution. 

Change 1(b) to: 
“Where a procurement under these rules involves a 
key decision as determined by the appropriate Chief 
Officer, then prior to the commencement of the 
procurement this must be taken to the Executive. Key 
decisions are defined in Rule 8 of the Executive 
Procedure Rules (Part 4D) of this Constitution.  In the 
case of ESPO only If a decision doesn’t fall within 
Appendix 4 to Schedule 1: Functions of, and 
Delegations to the Director of ESPO, the decision can 
be escalated to the Chief Officers Group or 
Management Committee.” 

RULE 2  
Delegation 
Appropriate Chief Officers and the Director of Law and Governance may delegate their 
responsibilities under these Rules in accordance with Rule 6 of Section D (General scheme of 
delegation to heads of departments) of Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) of the Constitution. 
 

 

RULE 3 
Interpretation 
Words and expressions used in these Rules are to be interpreted in accordance with the provisions 
of Schedule 1. 
 

 

RULE 4 
Application 
These Rules apply to every procurement contract made by or on behalf of the Council except 
contracts: 
(a) for only the acquisition or disposal of any interest in land; 
(b) for the lending or borrowing of money; 
(c) of employment (making an individual a direct employee of the Council). 
 

Definition of Direct Employee added in Schedule 1. 
 

RULE 5 Rule 5b (i) replace “embed” with “consider” to bring 

111



General Requirements 
(a) Every Contract or official order for works, supplies or services made by the Council shall be for 
the purpose of implementing the Council’s policies and must be made in accordance with the 
Council's duty of Best Value and in line with the Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022. 
 
(b)(i) Social Value will be embedded in any contract with an estimated value equal to or greater 
than £50,000 in one of the of the following two ways: 

· As award criteria linked to the Council’s Social Value Policy Statement and the Council’s 
Strategic Plan 2018 – 2022; 
· As Outcomes built into the Specification or contract. 

(ii) Social Value will be addressed at contract management for any contract with a value equal to or 
greater than £50,000. 
(iii) Where Social Value has not been embedded within either the tender process or specification, 
the reason shall be recorded and forwarded to the relevant Commercial Specialist. 
 
(c) Where the services are Light-Touch Services the threshold for contracts for public supply or 
services contracts applies for the purposes of the Social Value Act, being the sum specified in 
regulation 5 (1) (d) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 
 
(d) The Procuring Officer must ensure that whenever Corporate Contracts have been approved by a 
Commercial Specialist that supplies, services and works are ordered via these, unless it is agreed by 
the Commercial Specialist that better value for money can be clearly demonstrated outside of 
these approved Corporate Contracts. All such instances involving ESPO must be notified to ESPO by 
the Commercial Specialist. 
 
(e) Procedures set out in the relevant EU Directives, EU Treaties, Acts of Parliament and UK 
legislation (including for the avoidance of doubt the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 the 
Concession Contracts Regulations 2016, and where applicable the Public Contracts Regulations 
2006) must be complied with at all times. 
 
 (f) Based on criteria laid down by the Executive, the Chief Finance Officer will be responsible for 
evaluating the financial status of Tenderers and suppliers. 
 

in line with the Councils Social Value Policy and 
include “as required by the Public Services (Social 
Value) Act 2012” 
 
Rule 5(b) (iii) Add “for approval”. 
As it stands there is no obligation for the procuring 
officer to seek our approval not to include Social 
Value.  
 
Rule 5(d) Replace with the following to ensure 
increased and more appropriate compliance with 
usage of Corporate Contracts: 
 
“Use of Corporate Contracts: 
The Procuring Officer must ensure that whenever 
Corporate Contracts have been approved by a 
Commercial Specialist that supplies, services and 
works are ordered via these. Intention to award via 
these contracts where the value exceeds £25,000 the 
Procuring Officer should consult with the relevant 
Commercial Specialist before doing so. 
The Procuring officer must consider what risks the 
contract presents ahead of any procurement exercise, 
considerations must include those relating to Health 
and Safety, Business Continuity. Compliance with the 
Modern Slavery Act 2015 and Information Security.  
The Procuring Officer may not procure outside of the 
Corporate Contract unless it is agreed by the 
Commercial Specialist that better value for money can 
be clearly demonstrated outside of these approved 
Corporate Contracts. All such instances involving ESPO 
must be notified to ESPO by the Commercial 
Specialist.” 

112



(g) The Procuring Officer must ensure that sufficient budget provision has been agreed with the 
budget holder prior to any Procurement Exercise being undertaken. 
 
(h) Procurement Exercises should usually be undertaken by electronic means provided that:-  
 
(i) the requirements of these Rules are followed with only such modifications as may be necessary 
to allow for procurement by such means; and 
(ii) any electronic tendering system has been approved by the Director of Law and Governance 
following consultation with the Director of Corporate Resources. 
(i) Subject to the provisions of Rule 28(b) Contracts shall not be longer than 5 years (including 
extensions) in duration or of indeterminate length without the prior written approval of the 
Director of Corporate Resources, such approval to be obtained prior to the commencement of the 
Procurement Exercise. 
 

 
 

RULE 6  
Exceptions 
(a) Subject to the requirements of EU Directives, EU Treaties, Acts of Parliament and the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015, and the Concession Contracts Regulations 2016, the following 
contracts may be placed by direct negotiation with one or more suppliers, contracts:-  
(i) for supplies, materials, services or works which are available only as proprietary and/or patented 
articles, services or works from one contractor or supplier and for which the appropriate Chief 
Officer, on the advice of the Commercial Specialist, decides that there is no reasonably satisfactory 
alternative available in the European Union and for repairs to, or the supply of, parts of existing 
proprietary or patented articles or works, including machinery or plant; a note of that decision and 
the reasons for it must be retained on the appropriate file and where the contract is equal to or 
exceeds £181,302 a copy of the note and reasons must be provided to the Director of Corporate 
Resources and the Director of Law and Governance. 
 (ii) for works of art, museum specimens or historical documents; 
(iii) which constitute a variation or extension of an existing contract, as permitted by the contract 
and/or the Council’s Standard Financial Instructions subject to the provisions of Rule 30 (Contract 
Modifications and Extensions) and Rule 31 (Novation of Existing Contracts); 
(iv) for the following social care services provided that the Estimated Value of such services does 
not exceed the EU threshold for Light-Touch service contracts: 

Addition to (a)(vi) 
‘Where appropriate with involvement of Supplier 
Relationship Manager or Commercial Specialist where 
the value exceeds £25,000 approval’ 
 
Amend Section (iv) (ee) to ensure: 
“ee. residential placements sought for an individual 
under the Shared Lives scheme (or any equivalent 
scheme). 
In each case the appropriate Chief Officer must ensure 
that the provider meets the relevant national 
minimum standards legislative or otherwise, (for 
example those standards set by the Health and Social 
Care Act 2008, OFSTED and HMI) and that a record of 
the reasons for the choice of provider is maintained 
on the individual’s case notes as well as submitting to 
the relevant Commercial Specialist justification and 
evidence for exception placements.  A record of the 
annual cumulative expenditure with each provider will 

113



aa. residential placements sought for an individual with a registered care provider of their choice; 
bb. supported living services sought for an individual with an appropriate care and support provider 
of their choice under the National Health Service and Community Care Act 1990 and Care Act 2014; 
cc. social care packages managed by or on behalf of individual clients under the personalisation 
agenda; 
dd. where certain needs of an individual (either an adult or a child) require a particular social care 
package, which is only available from a specific provider in the opinion of the appropriate Chief 
Officer. 
ee. residential placements sought for an individual under the Shared Lives scheme (or any 
equivalent scheme). 
In each case the appropriate Chief Officer must ensure that the provider meets the relevant 
national minimum standards legislative or otherwise, (for example those standards set by the 
Health and Social Care Act 2008, OFSTED and HMI) and that a record of the reasons for the choice 
of provider is maintained on the individual’s case notes. A record of the annual cumulative 
expenditure with each provider will be maintained by each directorate and made available for 
audit. 
(v) for those unforeseen emergencies, where immediate action is required in order to fulfil the 
Council’s statutory obligations under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 with the authority of the 
appropriate Chief Officer in consultation with the relevant Commercial Specialist. 
(b) Other exceptions to these Rules may only be made within the relevant law and with the 
authority:-  
 (i) of the appropriate Chief Officer in consultation with the 
relevant Commercial Specialist where the Estimated Value of the proposed contract is under 
£181,302. The appropriate Chief Officer shall maintain a record specifying the reason for all such 
departures; or 
(ii) of the Executive where it is satisfied that an exception is justified on its merits. In an urgent case 
the Chief Executive after consultation with the Council Leader or Deputy Leader (save where this is 
not practicable) may direct that an exception be made subject to this being reported to the next 
meeting of the Executive. 
(c) In all cases under Rule 6 a full record of the reasons for the exception shall be maintained. 
 

be maintained by each directorate and made 
available for audit.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RULE 7 
Financial Thresholds and Delegation 

 

114



(a) Financial limits and thresholds within these Rules may be varied from time to time by the 
Corporate Governance Committee. 
(b) Arrangements for delegation of functions to Officers within these Rules may be varied from 
time to time by the Chief Executive. 
 

RULE 8 
Annual Reporting 
The Director of Corporate Resources, in consultation with the Director of Law and Governance, 
shall at least once in each financial year submit a report to the Corporate Governance Committee in 
relation to the operation of these Rules (except those granted under Rule 6(iv)) and approved 
extensions to contract where not provided for in the contract, and proposed revisions to these 
Rules and/or changes required to accommodate the requirements of UK and EU procurement law 
as may be necessary from time to time. 
 

 

 
RULE 9 
Prevention of Corruption / Conflict of Interest 
 
(a) The Employee Code of Conduct (Part 5b of the Constitution) applies to any Procurement 
Exercise. 
 
(b) The following clause, or a clause that is substantially similar, will be included as a standard term 
and condition in every written contract in accordance with Rule 25(c): 
"The Council may terminate this contract and recover all its loss from the Contractor if the 
Contractor, its employees or anyone acting on the Contractor's behalf do any of the following 
things: 
 

(i) offer, give or agree to give to anyone any personal inducement or reward in respect of 
this or any other Council contract (even if the contractor does not know what has been 
done); or 

(ii)  commit an offence under the Bribery Act 2010 or give any fee or reward, the receipt of 
which is an offence under Section 117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972; or 

(iii) commit any fraud in connection with this or any other Council contract whether alone 

 
 

115



or in conjunction with Council members, contractors or employees. Any clause limiting 
the Contractor's liability shall not apply to this clause". 

 
(c) The Council’s Supplier Code of Conduct 2018 applies to any Procurement Exercise. 
 

RULE 9A 
Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 
Where appropriate, the Contract shall make appropriate provision for information sharing between 
the Contractor and the Council in line with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the 
Data Protection Act 2018, and/or such other measures as are appropriate, such as staff training, to 
support the Council in meeting its duty under section 26 of the Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 
2015 to have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism. 
 

 

RULE 10 
Pre-Estimate 
(a) Before any Procurement Exercise is begun the Procuring Officer must calculate its Estimated 
Value in accordance with this Rule. The estimated value for the Procurement must not be 
subdivided for the purpose of reducing the total value of the contract for multiple procurements. 
(b) The Estimated Value shall be calculated as follows: 
 (i) Where the contract period is fixed the Estimated Value shall be the total estimated maximum 
value of the supplies, services or works to be supplied over the period covered including any 
extensions to the contract; 
(ii) Where the contract period is indeterminate the Estimated Value shall be calculated by 
multiplying the estimated average monthly value by 48; 
(iii) For feasibility studies the Estimated Value shall be the value of the scheme or contracts which 
may be awarded as a result; 
(iv) For Concession Contracts the Estimated Value shall be the estimated financial value to the 
supplier that shall be made over the duration of the Contract, net of value added tax; 
(v) The Estimated Value must exclude Value Added Tax (VAT) but must include all other taxes and 
duties; 
(vi) Periodic purchases for the same requirement, whether that is from the same or different 
suppliers, must be aggregated over a minimum of a 12 month period; 
(vii) Where the Council may be contributing only part of the Total Value of a contract, it is 

Rule 10 (b)(iii) There may be a works contract as a 
result of feasibility, which could be awarded 
separately via a competitive procedure to a builder.  
This intends to cover instances where: 
• Following the feasibility, further contracts 
might be awarded to the same supplier (development 
of design etc.) 
• Under D&B, a works contract would also be 
awarded. 
 
Suggested amendment: 
“(iii) For feasibility studies the Estimated Value 
shall include the value the study and any subsequent 
contracts which may be awarded to the same supplier 
as a result where this is known;” 
 
 

116



nevertheless the total Estimated Value that should be applied in determining the correct 
procedures to be applied under these Rules. 
(c) Where there is any doubt as to the Estimated Value then the procedure for the higher threshold 
in Rule 11 must be used. 
(d) Where the Estimated Value is £5,000 or more the Procuring Officer must notify in writing the 
appropriate Commercial Specialist of the Estimated Value before proceeding. A written record of 
that Estimated Value must then be kept on file by the Procuring Officer. 

RULE 11 
Procurement Exercise Process 
 (a) Based on the Estimated Value, as identified in Rule 10, Table 1 below makes provision for the 
minimum requirements for the subsequent Procurement Exercise. 
 
(b) In the case of a contract for individual independent day or residential school placement sought 
for a child with Special Educational Needs (SEN) with an Estimated Contract Value up to the EU 
threshold for Light Touch Services three quotes must be sought. 
 
(c) All contracts with an Estimated Value equal to or greater than the EU threshold must be 
referred to the Commissioning Support Unit prior to the commencement of the Procurement 
Exercise. The Commissioning Support Unit shall advise the Procuring Officer on the appropriate 
route to market which may include the use of ESPO and ESPO framework agreements, Crown 
Commercial Services framework agreements, etc. 
 
Table 1: Minimum requirements for a Procurement Exercise (for exceptions see Rule 6): 

Proposed change to the sequence – there are 2 x Rule 
11 (c) so change the second 11 (c) to (d) and add a 
Rule 11 (e) 
 
The table makes reference to 5(g) (ii) and 9(g) – this 
should be amended to 18(d) 
 
Amend Rule 11(d) to (e) as above; and then amend 
Rule 11 (e) to: “Where any Corporate Contracts or 
Standing Lists have been set up for supplies, services 
or works then these Rules are deemed to have been 
satisfied when the arrangement was set up and do 
not have to be further applied, if appropriately used. 
When the Corporate Contract is a Framework 
Agreement then the Procuring Officer must comply 
with Rule 28(c) after consultation with a relevant 
Commercial Specialist on the suitability of the 
framework intended to be used. When using a 
Standing List the Procuring Officer must comply with 
Rule 27.” 
 
Update to Schedule 1 on Definition of Corporate 
Contracts. 
 
Amendment to the table for the Procurement Process 
from £5,000 - £25,000 amend the wording from 

117



 
 

“Obtain three written Quotations (where practical)” 
to “Seek to obtain a minimum of 3 written 
Quotations”.  
Where the table states “(If three Quotations cannot 
be obtained a record of the reasons for this must be 
maintained and forwarded to the appropriate 
Commercial Specialist.)” – amend to “(If three 
Quotations cannot be obtained a record of the 
reasons for this must be agreed in consultation with 
the appropriate Commercial Specialist.)” 
 
Amend in the chart where appears: 
“may be submitted via an electric tendering system” 
with “should be submitted via an electronic tendering 
system”. 
  There will be exceptions, but generally, e-tendering 
is preferred method for compliance and 
transparency. 
 
 

118



 
* The Council cannot give preference to local suppliers, as there are legislative constraints and such 
a policy would be incompatible with Best Value. However, the Council recognises that there can be 
barriers limiting or restricting the ability of smaller suppliers to compete for Council business. The 
Council will seek to reduce the impact of such barriers, where it can do so legally, without 
discrimination, and without placing unacceptable levels of risk on the Council. 
(c) Details of oral Quotations must be recorded in writing. 
(d) Where any Corporate Contracts or Standing Lists have been set up for supplies, services or 
works then these Rules are deemed to have been satisfied when the arrangement was set up and 
do not have to be further applied, if appropriately used. When the Corporate Contract is a 
Framework Agreement then the Procuring Officer must comply with Rule 28(c). When using a 
Standing List the Procuring Officer must comply with Rule 27. 
 

RULE 12 
Suitability Assessment and Award Evaluation Criteria 
(a) The Council shall not include a pre-qualification questionnaire stage where the value of the 
procurement is below the EU Threshold set out in Reg. 5 (1) (c) of the Public Contacts Regulations 
2015. Below the EU Threshold only Suitability Assessment Questions may be asked. A standard 
form of Suitability Assessment Questions must be used. 
(b) In a Procurement Exercise with an estimated Value equal to or greater than the EU Threshold 
both selection and award criteria must be included. A Standard Selection Questionnaire or the 
European Single Procurement Document must be used for the selection criteria; 

 

119



(c) Selection criteria must be included in the evaluation process where applying the Open 
Tendering procedure (Rule 15) or must be the only criteria used for the shortlisting methodology 
where applying the Restricted Tendering procedure (Rule 16). 

RULE 13 
Award and Evaluation Criteria 
(a) The award criteria shall be based on the most economically advantageous Tender from the 
Council’s point of view. That Tender shall be identified on the basis of price or cost, using a cost-
effectiveness approach, such as Life-Cycle Costing and may include the best price-quality ratio 
which shall be assessed on the basis of criteria, such as qualitative, environmental and/or social 
aspects or any other criteria linked to the subject-matter of the Contract in question. 
(b) Before a contract can be awarded following an Open Tender procedure the supplier must meet 
the minimum standard for the selection criteria included in the evaluation process. 
(c) In the case of a Procurement Exercise with an Estimated Value of £25,000 or more the process 
for identifying the most economically advantageous Tender, including selection and award criteria, 
must be agreed in consultation with the appropriate Commercial Specialist and included in the 
RFQ/Invitation to Tender and a copy retained on file. 
(d) The Procuring Officer must notify all Tenderers of the award methodology and evaluation 
criteria being used in the case of the contract in question. If weightings are to be applied to the 
criteria then the Procuring Officer must ensure that these are also incorporated into the Invitation 
to Tender. 
 

 

RULE 14 
Contract Opportunity Publication 
(a) Unless otherwise agreed by the appropriate Chief Officer, the Procuring Officer must ensure, for 
all Procurement Exercises with an Estimated Value of £25,000 or more but less than the relevant 
EU Threshold, that Contract Opportunity Publication is given on a website approved by the Director 
of Corporate Resources for the purpose of notifying the supply market. 
 
(b) All Procurement Exercises with an Estimated Value of £25,000 or more must be advertised on 
Contracts Finder within 24 hours of the time when the Procurement Exercise is advertised in any 
other way. Procurement exercises over the relevant EU Threshold must be advertised in the OJEU 
and on Contracts Finder. 
 (c) For all proposed contracts which are advertised where the Estimated Value is below the EU 

Amend 14(c) (ii) to “the deadline for receipt of the 
standard form of Suitability Assessment Questions or 
the European Single Procurement Document, where a 
Restricted Tendering procedure is being used”.  
This amendment aligns Rule 14 with Rule 12. 
 
Amend Rule 14 (g) to “Where a contract opportunity 
is equal to or greater than the EU Threshold a 
Contract Opportunity Publication should not appear in 
any form before publication in the OJEU and neither 
should any advertisement contain any more 
information that that published in OJEU.” 

120



threshold, a period of at least ten working days should be allowed between the date when an 
Invitation to Tender becomes available to all bidders and either: 
(i) the deadline for receipt of Tenders where an Open Tendering procedure is being used; or 
(ii) the deadline for receipt of the Standard Selection Questionnaire or the European Single 
Procurement Document, where a Restricted Tendering procedure is being used. 
 
(d) The Contract Opportunity Publication must express the nature and purpose of the Procurement 
Exercise, stating where further details may be obtained, how and to whom an interested supplier is 
to respond and any other requirements such as suitability requirements or explanatory 
information. 
 
(e) If the Estimated Value exceeds the relevant EU Threshold the Procuring Officer must ensure 
that Contract Opportunity Publication is first published in the OJEU and then on a website 
approved by the Director of Corporate Resources for the purpose of notifying the supply market 
and in Contracts Finder. 
 
(f) A Procurement Exercise that is equal to or more than the EU Threshold for Light-Touch Services 
must be procured in compliance with Chapter 3, section 7 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 
 
(g) Only in exceptional circumstances should a Contract Opportunity Publication appear in ANY 
form before publication in the OJEU and neither should any advertisement contain any more 
information than that published in the OJEU. 
 
(h) The advertising requirements set out in this Rule 14 are minimum requirements and do not 
preclude further Contract Opportunity Publication where appropriate (e.g. in the local newspaper, 
trade or professional journal, the Council website). 
 

RULE 15 
Open Tendering 
Under Open Tendering, Procuring Officers must send Invitations to Tender to all those Persons who 
respond to the Contract Opportunity Publication and who meet the requirements stated therein 

Amendment to add: “Where the opportunity has been 
advertised via the electronic tendering system the 
Invitation to Tenders and all supporting documents 
must be made available in the system for all 
interested parties to access subject to confidentiality 
agreement where applicable.” 

121



RULE 16 
Restricted Tendering 
(a) Subject to Rule 16 (b), this Rule applies to Tenders where the  
Estimated Value is equal to or exceeds the EU Threshold. 
 
(b) Where the services being tendered are Light-Touch Services the Procuring Officer may choose 
to use this Restricted Tendering procedure but is not required to. 
 
(c) Under Restricted Tendering, Procuring Officers need only send Invitations to Tender to: 
(i) not less than five of the Persons who respond to the Contract Opportunity Publication and who 
best meet the shortlisting methodology agreed in Rule 12(c); or 
(ii) where fewer than five Persons have applied or are considered suitable, to all those Persons who 
equal or exceed the minimum requirements for the shortlisting methodology agreed in Rule 12(c). 
 
(d) The shortlisting criteria and process must be prepared (in consultation with the Commercial 
Specialist) in advance of the issue of the Standard Selection Questionnaire or the European Single 
Procurement Document and a copy retained on file. 
 
(e) All Persons that do not qualify for inclusion on the shortlist to receive an Invitation to Tender 
must receive notice that they have been excluded from the Procurement Exercise. Any Person 
requesting in writing the reasons why they were unsuccessful shall be informed by the Procuring 
Officer of the reasons for the Council's decision 
 

 

RULE 17 
Negotiated Procedure, Competitive Procedure with Negotiation, 
Competitive Dialogue Procedure and Innovation Partnership Procedure 
The Negotiated Procedure, Competitive Procedure with Negotiation, Competitive Dialogue 
Procedure or Innovation Partnership Procedure must only be used with the prior approval of the 
Director of Law and Governance and the Director of Corporate Resources. 
 
 

 
Addition to the rule to state “Competitive Procedure 
with Negotiation or Competitive Dialogue can only be 
used when criteria under PCR Reg. 26(4) are met.”   

RULE 17A 
Concession Contracts 

 

122



Procuring Officers must only establish Concession Contracts with prior consultation of the Director 
of Law and Governance and with the prior approval of the Director of Corporate Resources also in 
the case of Concession Contracts above the EU threshold. 

RULE 18 
Invitations to Tender 
(a) Every Invitation to Tender must specify the latest day and hour and the place appointed for the 
receipt of Tenders and must state the effect of Rule 19. 
(b) Procuring Officers must give all Tenderers the same information about the Procurement 
Exercise and in particular information relating to the Tender process, specification, award 
methodology and evaluation criteria. 
(c) Procuring Officers must also give all Tenderers the same information relating to questions, 
answers and clarifications raised during the Procurement Exercise unless they relate solely to 
another Person’s Tender. 
(d) All Procurement Exercises equal to or greater than £25,000 shall be handled via an Electronic 
Tendering System. Only in exceptional cases may a Procurement Exercise be undertaken not using 
an Electronic Tendering System. Paper Tenders must be submitted to, addressed to and opened by 
the Chief Executive. Where the Estimated value is below £25,000 the Tenders may be returned 
directly to the Procuring Officer. 
(e) Where Tenders are to be received by the Chief Executive, the Procuring Officer must send to the 
Chief Executive a note of the subject and the closing date and time and (where appropriate) a list of 
the Persons invited to Tender together with the Estimated Value before the closing date for receipt 
of Tenders. 
 

Add to 18(b) “and the terms and conditions of the 
Contract or Framework agreement” 
 
 

RULE 19 
Irregular Tenders 
(a) An Irregular Tender must not be accepted by either the Chief Executive or the Procuring Officer, 
other than in accordance with this Rule. 
 
(b) A Tender is not valid unless it has been either submitted via an Electronic Tendering System or 
in the case of paper tenders delivered to the place appointed in accordance with Rule 18 and not 
later than the appointed day and hour. 
(c) Tenders other than E-Tenders where the Estimated Value is equal to or greater than £181,302 
are not valid unless they are received in a plain sealed envelope or parcel addressed to the Chief 

 

123



Executive. The envelope or package must bear the word “Tender” followed by the subject to which 
it relates. 
 
(d) E-Tenders must be submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Electronic Tendering 
System used. 
 
(e)Where a Tender has been received which is an Irregular Tender in that it does not fully comply 
with the instructions given in the Invitation to Tender and/or because it is received after the 
appointed time for receipt or does not comply with Rules 19(b) or 19(c), the provisions of Rules 
19(f) and 19(g) apply. 
 
(f) A Tender other than an E-Tender which is received after the closing date and time may be 
opened and evaluated in accordance with Rule 20 if there is clear evidence of it having:-  
(i) been posted by first class post at least a day before the closing date; OR 
(ii) been posted by second class post at least three days before the closing date; OR 
(iii) been placed in the custody of a courier who has provided written assurance of delivery 
prior to the closing date and time. 
 
(g) If in other cases of Irregular Tenders the Chief Executive considers that there are exceptional 
circumstances and that the Tenderer who submitted the Irregular Tender has gained no advantage 
from its irregularity he may determine to accept the Irregular Tender and 
authorise that it be opened and evaluated together with any other Tenders in accordance with Rule 
20. The Chief Executive shall record in writing the reasons why each Irregular Tender has been 
accepted or rejected. 
 
(h) Irregular Tenders that the Chief Executive has rejected under this Rule must be returned to the 
Tenderer by the Chief Executive with a covering letter stating the reason for their rejection. 
 
 
 
 

RULE 20 
Receipt and Opening of Tenders 

 

124



(a) Rules 20(b) to (f) apply only to Tenders where the Estimated Value is equal to or greater than 
£181,302 and the Tender is not an E-Tender. Rule 20(g) applies to E-Tenders only. 
(b) On receipt, envelopes containing Tenders must be date and time stamped by the Chief 
Executive and shall remain in his custody until they are opened. 
(c) The Chief Executive must keep a record of all Tenders received. 
(d) Tenders must be opened at one time in the presence of not less than two Officers one of whom 
is not involved in the Procurement Exercise and who is designated by the Chief Executive. Each 
Officer must initial each Tender once opened which must also be date stamped. 
(e) Particulars of all Tenders opened must be entered by the Chief Executive upon the record which 
must be signed by the Officers present at the opening, together with a note of all Irregular Tenders. 
(f) The Chief Executive must forthwith send a copy of the record to the appropriate Procuring 
Officer (with the Tenders) and must retain a copy himself. 
(g) E-Tenders must be opened in accordance with the requirements of the Electronic Tendering 
System used. 
 

RULE 21 
Errors or Discrepancies in Tenders 
(a) Tenderers are not allowed to alter their Tenders after opening save in accordance with this Rule 
or Rule 22. 
 
 (b) Where it is suspected that there has been an error in a Tender and following the closing date 
for receipt of Tenders but before acceptance of any Tender discussions may take place with 
Tenderers in order to: 
(i) ensure that the Tender is constructed correctly; or 
(ii) ensure that the Tenderer has fully understood the specification; or 
(iii) seek clarification from Tenderers of cost, quality and performance indicators. 
 
(c) A written note of the discussions must be made to record the suspected error, date, time, 
detail of the discussion and any agreement reached. 

 

RULE 22 
Discussions and Post Tender Negotiations 
(a) In the case where the Estimated Value is below the relevant EU Threshold, the Procuring Officer 
in consultation with the appropriate Commercial Specialist may carry out Post Tender Negotiations 

 

125



with the Tenderer submitting the most competitive Tender in an attempt to secure improvements 
in the price or economic advantage in one or more of the following circumstances: 
 
(i) where the most competitive Tender (according to the pre-determined award methodology and 
evaluation criteria) submitted exceeds the Estimated Value; 
(ii) where it is considered that the price of the most competitive Tender submitted does not 
represent the best value for money that can reasonably be obtained; 
(iii) where Tenders have been invited only on the basis of unit prices or a schedule of rates and the 
lowest in aggregate is not the lowest on all items; 
(iv) where the most competitive Tender contains conditions, trading terms, guarantees, or 
provisions relating to 
performance or service delivery less favourable than in other Tenders, or than stipulated for and 
this defect appears capable of being remedied by Post Tender Negotiations. 
 
 (b) When conducting Post Tender Negotiations, the following additional Rules shall apply: 
(i) At no time during the negotiations must a Tenderer be informed of the detail of any other 
Tender submitted or as to whether or not the Tender he submitted was the lowest. 
(ii) During negotiations in person there must always be present at least two officers of the Council. 
(iii) A note of the negotiations will be made by one of the Officers present recording those present, 
the time and location of the negotiations, detail of the discussion and any agreement reached. 
(iv) Post Tender Negotiations shall not enable any material 
departure from the published specification. The Director of Law and Governance shall determine 
whether any proposed change to the specification constitutes a material departure. 
 
(c) Post Tender Negotiations are not allowed in the case of contracts with an Estimated Value 
exceeding the relevant EU Threshold. However, clarifications of errors or discrepancies in Tenders 
may take place in accordance with Rule 21. 

AWARD OF CONTRACT 
RULE 23 
Acceptance of Tenders 
(a) A Tender can only be accepted in accordance with the initial award methodology and evaluation 
criteria as set out in Rule 13. Any evaluation sheets must be maintained on file in accordance with 
Rule 34. 

 

126



 
(b) Any Tender with an Estimated Value of below £25,000 (where a Request for Quotation or an 
Invitation to Tender is not used) may only be accepted with the prior written approval of the 
appropriate Commercial Specialist. 
 
(c) If the Tender to be accepted exceeds the budget which was agreed in accordance with Rule 5(g) 
the Procuring Officer must ensure that sufficient funds are available and approved by the 
appropriate budget holder, appropriate Chief Officer or Executive prior to accepting the Tender. 
 
(d) Where an abnormally low Tender is submitted the Council shall require the Tenderer to explain 
in writing the price or costs proposed and may only reject the Tender where the explanation is 
unsatisfactory. Where it is established that the Tender is low due to breaches of environmental, 
social or labour law, the Council must reject the Tender. 
 
(e) Subject to Rule 1, the appropriate Chief Officer shall have the authority to accept a Tender but 
in any particular circumstance may decline to give approval and refer the decision to the Executive 
to determine. 
 

RULE 24 
Notification of Contract Award 
(a) The Procuring Officer must notify the successful Tenderer of the acceptance of their Tender and 
for all Procurement Exercises with an Estimated Value of £5,000 or more this notification must be 
in writing. 
(b) In the case where the Estimated Value is £25,000 or more the Procuring Officer must notify in 
writing all Tenderers who submitted a Tender of the decision as soon as possible after the decision 
has been made. 
(c) Where a Contract with an Estimated Value of £25,000 or more is awarded the Council must 
publish information as required by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 on Contracts Finder 
within a reasonable time. 
(d) In the case where the Estimated Value is equal to or greater than the relevant EU Threshold the 
following additional Rules shall apply: 

(i) The notice in Rule 24 (b) shall include the award criteria, the reasons for the decision, 
including the successful Tenderer's score, the score (if any) of the Tenderer receiving the notice, 

Amend 24(c) from “within a reasonable time” to 
“within 30 calendar days of the date the Contract was 
awarded.”  
 
Addition to part (d): 
“(iv) For every Contract or Framework Agreement 
covered by the Public Contract Regulations, and every 
time a Dynamic Purchasing System is established, The 
Procuring Officer shall draw up a written report in 
accordance with the requirements outlined in 
regulation 84 of PCR.”  
 
Amend Rule 24(e) to: “The Procuring Officer must 
notify the appropriate Commercial Specialist in 
writing of any contract (including framework call off 

127



and the characteristics and (if appropriate) relative advantages of the successful Tenderer's Tender, 
any reasons why the recipient of the notice did not meet the technical specification, the name of 
the Tenderer awarded the Contract, as well as the date when the standstill period required in 
accordance with Rule 24 (d)(ii) will come to an end. 

 (ii) A minimum period of 10 calendar days must elapse between the day of sending the 
notice in Rule 24 (b) and the date on which the Council enters into a contract, if the notice is sent 
electronically. Where the notice is sent by other means then either 15 days from the day of sending 
the notice or 10 days from the day of receipt of the notice by the last Tenderer to receive the 
notice must elapse. In all cases counting the day after sending the notice as day 1. The standstill 
period must end on a working day. 

(iii) The Procuring Officer shall ensure that an OJEU contract award notice is placed within 
30 days of the contract award where required. In the case where contracts are awarded under the 
regime covering Light Touch Services or Dynamic Purchasing System, award notices may be 
grouped together in accordance with regulation 74 for Light-Touch Services and regulation 50(5) 
for Dynamic Purchasing Systems. 
 
(e)The Procuring Officer must notify the appropriate Commercial Specialist in writing of any 
contract that has been awarded with a Total Value of £5,000 or more. 

contracts), that has been awarded with a Total Value 
of £5,000 or more.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RULE 25 
Form of Contract 
(a) A Contract shall be formed: 
(i) by exchange of letter or electronic communication accepting the successful Tender and 
incorporating the Invitation to Tender or Request for Quotation and the outcome of any 
subsequent negotiations and discussions; or 
(ii) by completion of a formal contract incorporating the Invitation to Tender or Request for 
Quotation, the Tender and the outcome of any subsequent negotiations and/or discussions; or 
(iii) by placing an order in accordance with Rule 26. 
 
(b) In determining and negotiating the terms and conditions of contract, the Procuring Officer must 
ensure that the appropriate Standard Terms and Conditions are incorporated unless the Procuring 
Officer having consulted the appropriate Director of Law and Governance and the appropriate 
Commercial Specialist considers it inappropriate to do so. 
 

Amend Rule 25(d) to: 
 
“(d) Every contract must be signed (by electronic 
means or otherwise) by the appropriate Chief Officer 
or an Officer designated, and in cases determined by 
the Director of Law and Governance or where 
otherwise required in law, shall be under the 
Common Seal of the County Council in a form 
prepared or approved by the Director of Law and 
Governance.”  
 
Reason for amendment: To allow the introduction of 
electronic signature system such as Docu Sign to 
modernise the Councils approach to getting contracts 
and placement agreements authorised. 

128



 (c) All contracts with an Estimated Value of £25,000 or more must be in writing and where 
appropriate the appropriate Chief Officer shall: 
(i) ensure that the Contract includes a definition of the 
circumstances that will be considered to constitute a default on the terms of the Contract by the 
supplier. The Contract must provide for notice of default to be given to the supplier and for any 
resulting losses to be recovered from the supplier if the default is not rectified. 
(ii) decide whether it is necessary to require suppliers to provide a Performance Bond with a third 
party. The need for this will depend on an assessment of the risk associated with the contract or 
the supplier. 
(iii) ensure that the contract provides for the supplier to have an insurance policy, which can be 
inspected during the contract period. The Chief Finance Officer shall be consulted on the insurance 
requirements. 
(iv) consult the Chief Finance Officer on the appropriate VAT requirements. 
 
(d) Every contract must be signed by the appropriate Chief Officer or an Officer designated by him 
and in cases determined by the Director of Law and Governance shall be under seal in the form 
prepared or approved by him. 
 
(e) Except after consultation with the Director of Law and Governance, work or services must not 
be authorised to commence or goods to be supplied where such works, services or goods are to be 
the subject of a contract under seal entered into between the Council and the supplier, until the 
Director of Law and Governance has advised that the contract has been signed by the supplier. 
 
(f) The Procuring Officer shall consider the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and Data 
Protection Act 2018 requirements and shall include in the contract appropriate provisions. 
 
 

 
 
Rule 25(f) amend to: “The Procuring Officer shall 
comply with the General Data Protection Regulation 
(GDPR) and Data Protection Act 2018 requirements 
and shall include in the contract appropriate 
provisions.” 
  
Addition Rule “25(g) The Procuring Officer shall 
ensure the contract includes a Right to Audit Clause” 
 
 

RULE 25A 
Contract Management 
(a) The Procuring Officer shall immediately upon completion of every Procurement Exercise; 
(i) In respect of contracts having a value of less than £25,000 and where the Electronic Tendering 
System has not been used, enter the Contract details in the Council’s contracts register; 
(ii) In respect of contracts of whatever value handled via the Electronic Tendering System the 

Replace in Rule 25A (ii) contract management system 
with “Contracts Register” 

129



Procuring Officer shall ensure that the details of the Contract are published in the Council’s 
contracts register. 
(b) All contracts shall be managed in accordance with these Rules and the Council’s contract 
management toolkit which can be found in the Commissioning Toolkit on the Council’s intranet. 
(c) The authorised officer or Contract Manager responsible for the management of the Contract 
shall: 
(i) Obtain prior approval in accordance with Rule 30 before proceeding to authorise (in writing) any 
modification/extension to the Contract. 
(ii) Ensure all documentation is uploaded to the Council’s contract management system. 
(iii) Ensure that a record is kept of all certificates and instructions issued under the Contract; 
(iv) Keep documents in support of each payment showing how the payment amount has been 
valued and maintain a record of all such payments including any professional fees; 
(v) Prior to the contract renewal notice period for a contract, consult the relevant Commercial 
Specialist to review 
opportunities for contract negotiations for favourable contract terms. 
(vi) Before terminating any contract and in particular for breach, consult the Director of Law and 
Governance; 
(vii) Resolve all contractual matters and contractual claims, and issue any final account and final 
certificate in accordance with the terms of the Contract, taking advice from the Director of Law and 
Governance. 
 

RULE 26 
Orders for work, goods and services 
Orders for work, goods and services must only be placed in accordance with Instruction 8 of the 
Standard Financial Instructions. 
 
 

 

STANDING LISTS 
RULE 27 
Standing Lists 
(a) Standing Lists must not be created or added to without the prior written approval of the 
appropriate Chief Officer in consultation with the appropriate Commercial Specialist. 
 

 

130



(b) Procuring Officers must not use a Standing List where the total value of contracts to be awarded 
using the Standing List is estimated to exceed the relevant EU Threshold. 
 
(c) The Standing List must contain the names of all Persons who are approved and indicate the 
categories of contract and the values or amounts in respect of those categories for which those 
Persons are approved. 
 
(d) At least four weeks before a list is first compiled, the Procuring Officer must publish on a 
website approved by the Director of Corporate Resources for the purpose of notifying the supply 
market a notice inviting applications by a specified date for inclusion in it. 
 
(e) Procuring Officers must renew all Standing Lists at intervals not exceeding four years. At least 
four weeks before each renewal, each Person whose name appears in the list must be notified by 
the Procuring Officer of the intention to review the list. If they wish to remain on the list they must 
re-apply for inclusion. Procuring Officers must ensure that notices inviting applications for inclusion 
in the list are published in the manner provided by Rule 27(d). 
 
(f) The case where the use of a Standing List has been authorised the Procuring Officer must send 
Invitations to Tender to not less than four of the Persons from among those approved for a 
contract of the relevant category and amount or value. Where fewer than four Persons are 
approved for a contract of the relevant category and amount or value Invitations to Tender shall be 
sent to no fewer than three Persons. Where there are fewer than three Persons the 
procedure for Standing Lists must not be used unless the appropriate Commercial Specialist advises 
otherwise. 
 
(g) The Procuring Officer in consultation with the Commercial Specialist shall determine the criteria 
for selecting Persons from the list. 
 
(h) In such circumstances as the Director of Corporate Resources shall determine, Procuring 
Officers shall provide such information as shall reasonably be necessary of the extent to which 
Standing Lists have been utilised. 
 

FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS Add to Rule 28 (c) “provided the Procuring Officer can 

131



RULE 28 
Framework Agreements 
(a) Procuring Officers must establish all Framework Agreements in accordance with these Rules. 
(b) Framework Agreements must not be awarded for more than 4 years, including any extensions 
without the prior written consent of the Director of Corporate Resources following consultation 
with the Director of Law and Governance. 
(c) All suppliers on the Framework Agreement capable of performing the contract must be invited 
to participate in a Further Competition unless it is clear from the terms of the Framework 
Agreement which supplier best meets the award methodology set out in the Framework 
Agreement in which case that supplier may be selected. 
(d) Additional suppliers may only be added to a Framework Agreement throughout its duration in 
circumstances where: 
(i) the Estimated Value is below the EU Threshold; or 
(ii) the services tendered are Light-Touch Services to which the full regime of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 is not 
considered to apply: 
(iii) and in either case ((i) or (ii) above) provided that the Invitation to Tender states: 
(aa)  that new suppliers may be added to the Framework Agreement; and 
(bb) how many suppliers can apply to be added to the Framework Agreement; and 
 (cc) that the same evaluation criteria and award methodology are applied when deciding whether 
to award a place on the Framework Agreement to new suppliers as was applied at the time of the 
original award. 
 
 
 

demonstrate value for money.  Direct Award on 
frameworks must be first discussed with a relevant 
Commercial Specialist before proceeding if the value 
exceeds OJEU”  
 
Add “(e) Each use of a Framework agreement either 
by call off or direct award must be included on the 
Contracts Register within 30 days of award.” 

RULE 29 
Dynamic Purchasing Systems 
Procuring Officers must only establish Dynamic Purchasing Systems with the prior written approval 
of the Director of Corporate Resources and in accordance with the requirements of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 and these Rules where appropriate. 
 

 

CONTRACT AMENDMENTS 
RULE 30 

Amend Rule 30(e) to: “Where a Contract Extension 
has been provided for both in the Initial Procurement 

132



Contract Modifications and Extensions Contract Modifications 
(a) Subject to Rule 30(b) below, Contracts may be modified where the value of the modification is; 
(i) below the current EU Threshold for service/supply/works contracts; and   
(ii) is less than 10% of the initial Contract value for service and supply contracts and less than 15% 
of the initial Contract value for works. 
 
(b) The appropriate Chief Officer in consultation with the Commercial Specialist shall be authorised 
to modify the Contract in accordance with Rule 30(a) above provided: 
(i) the modification does not alter the overall nature of the Contract; and 
(ii) where there is, or has been more than one modification, the value shall be the net cumulative 
value of all modifications for the purpose of Rule 30(a) above. 
 
(c) In all other circumstances, where the proposed modification exceeds either of the values stated 
under Rule 30(a) or where the proposed modification does not fall within Rule 30(a) above, the 
appropriate Chief Officer in consultation with the Commercial Specialist and the Director of Law 
and Governance must gain the prior approval of the Director of Corporate Resources. This 
authorisation must be issued before the supply, services or works are carried out. 
 
(d) Prior to any modification being agreed which would result in an increase in the Total Value of 
the Contract the Procuring Officer must ensure that sufficient additional budget provision has been 
approved 
by the budget holder.  
Contract Extensions 
(e) Where a Contract Extension has been provided for both in the Initial Procurement Documents 
and in the Contract in clear and precise terms then the appropriate Chief Officer shall be authorised 
to extend the Contract in consultation with the Commercial Specialist. 
 
(f) For the purpose of this Rule 30 “Initial Procurement Documents” shall mean any notice, OJEU 
notice, Request for Quotation, Invitation to 
Tender or Specification. 
 
(g) Where the Initial Procurement Documents and/or the Contract does not provide for an 
extension the appropriate Chief Officer in 

Documents and in the Contract in clear and precise 
terms then the appropriate Chief Officer or any 
Officer with delegated authority under Rule 2 shall be 
authorised to extend the Contract in consultation with 
the Commercial Specialist.” 
 
This will enable Directors to delegate the 
authorisation to continue with a contract that has 
permissions already built in to be extended. 

133



consultation with the Commercial Specialist shall consider the extension as a modification to the 
Contract and shall only be authorised to extend the Contract in accordance with Rules 30(a) and 
30(b) above. 
 
(h) In all other circumstances and where Rule 30(e) and 30(g) above do not apply, the appropriate 
Chief Officer in consultation with the Commercial Specialist and the Director of Law and 
Governance must gain the prior approval of the Director of Corporate Resources. This authorisation 
must be issued before the extension is carried out. 
 
(i) Prior to any extension being agreed which would result in an increase in the Total Value of the 
Contract the Procuring Officer must ensure that sufficient additional budget provision has been 
approved by the budget holder. 
 

RULE 31 
Novation of Existing Contracts 
The novation of a Contract to a new Person requires the prior written approval of the Director of 
Corporate Resources in consultation with the Director of Law and Governance. 
 

 

RULE 32 
Early Termination of Contracts 
Unless a provision for early termination is clearly stated in the Contract, Procuring Officers shall 
seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance where it is intended to terminate a contract 
early. Where the Total Value of the Contract is equal to £181,302 or more the prior written 
approval of the Director of Corporate Resources shall also be obtained. 
 

 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
RULE 33 
Application of these Rules to ESPO 
(a) Where acting solely on behalf of the Council ESPO must comply with these Rules where 
applicable. 
(b) In cases where ESPO is acting on behalf of the Council: 
(i) ESPO is authorised to act as agent of the Council in place of the appropriate Chief Officer or 
Procuring Officer for the purposes of Rules 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 24, 25, 27 and 28 and 

 

134



these Rules shall be construed accordingly. 
(ii) ESPO is authorised to act as agent of the Chief Executive for the purposes of Rules 18, 19 and 
20. 
(iii) For the avoidance of doubt, decisions under Rule 23 shall remain the responsibility of Procuring 
Officers who may receive advice from ESPO. 

RULE 34 
Document Retention 
(a) All Contract records, that might be required in court proceedings must be retained for at least 
six years and any under seal for at least twelve years from expiry of the Contract. 
(b) Where the Contract is externally funded any contingent liabilities and/or grant conditions must 
be taken account of by the length of the retention period. 
 

 

RULE 35 
Supervision of Contracts by Third Parties 
(a) The Procuring Officer shall ensure that it is a condition of any contract between the Council and 
any Person (not being an Officer of the Council) who is involved in a Procurement Exercise or the 
management of a contract on behalf of the Council that in relation to that contract he must comply 
with the requirements of these Rules and other reasonable requirements of the Council. 
(b) Such Person must: 
(i) at any time during the carrying out of the Contract produce to the appropriate Chief Officer or 
his representative or Council Auditor on request all records maintained by him in relation to the 
Contract; and 
(ii) on completion of the Contract transmit all records to the appropriate Chief Officer. 
 
 

Add “Commercial Specialist or in the case of ESPO an 
Officer with delegated authority” to rule 35(b)(i) & (ii)  
 
This will allow for the request of contracts & relevant 
information from consultants, freelancers etc 

RULE 36 
Nominated Sub-Contractors and Suppliers 
(a) Where a sub-contractor or supplier is to be nominated by the Council to a main contractor, the 
provisions of these Rules shall have effect. 
 
(b) The terms of an Invitation to Tender under Rule 18 must require an undertaking by the 
Tenderer that, if selected, they will be willing to enter into a contract with the main contractor on 
terms which indemnify the main contractor against their own obligations under the main contract 

 

135



in relation to the work, supplies or services included in the sub-contract. 
 

SCHEDULE 1  
Interpretation 
1. “appropriate Chief Officer” means the Chief Officer responsible for the function to which 
the Contract relates except that, where another Chief Officer is responsible for the letting of the 
Contract, it shall mean that Chief Officer in consultation with the Chief Officer on whose behalf the 
Contract is to be let. 
2. “Best Value” means the duty of the Council to secure continuous improvement in the way 
in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. 
3. “Chief Finance Officer” is a statutory appointment pursuant to Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. The functions of the Chief Finance Officer are set out in Article 12 of Part 2 
of the Council’s Constitution. 
4. “Commercial Specialist” means an Officer authorised by the Director of Corporate 
Resources to manage the procurement of a category or categories of goods, services and/or works. 
Where there is no 
Commercial Specialist for the goods, services and/or works being procured the Head of 
Commissioning and Procurement shall adopt this role. 
5. “Concession Contract” means a works concession Contract or services concession Contract 
for pecuniary interest concluded in writing by means of which the Council entrusts the execution of 
works or the provision and the management of services (other than the execution of works) to one 
or more economic operators, the consideration for which consists either solely in the right to 
exploit the works or the services that are the subject of the Contract or in that right together with 
payment; and that meets the requirements of Regulation 3(4) of the Concession Contracts 
Regulations 2016 (CCR 2016). 
Regulation 3(4) of the CCR 2016 further defines the necessary 
requirements of the arrangement for the purposes of the regime, which are : 
(i) the award of the Contract must transfer to the concessionaire the operating risk in 
exploiting the works or services encompassing demand or supply risk or both; and 
(ii) the part of the risk transferred to the concessionaire involves real exposure to the vagaries 
of the market, such that any potential estimated loss incurred by the concessionaire is not merely 
nominal or negligible. 

 
Add definition:   
“Direct Employee: a person who works as an 
employee of the Council and is paid a salary by it, 
rather than being employed through an agency or 
other third party.” 
 
 
Add to SCHEDULE 1 33: “via a Framework 
Agreement/Dynamic Purchasing System”. 
This will bring any work awarded via a framework, 
into the scope of the rules around procurement 
exercises. 
 
 
 
Update the definition of “Corporate Contracts” to 
include: 
“any Contract or Framework Agreement or other 
arrangement approved for use in sourcing a particular 
requirement in consultation with the relevant 
commercial specialist, and put in place by the Council 
itself, ESPO, or any other Public Sector Organisation 
(including other Local Authorities) or Consortium in 
which the Council is entitled to participate and which, 
where necessary, has been awarded in compliance 
with EU legislation.” 
 
Update with “for the avoidance of doubt Contracts 
shall include Framework Agreements and call offs 
from Frameworks. 

136



6. “Concession Contracts Regulations 2016” means the Concession Contracts Regulations 
2016 as amended, consolidated, extended, re-enacted or replaced. These Regulations implement 
Directive 2014/25/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council on Public Procurement. 
7. "Contract" means a binding agreement between two or more parties for performing, or 
refraining from performing, some specified act(s) in exchange for lawful consideration. 
8. "Contract Extension" means an extension to the duration of the Contract, but not including 
any alteration to the scope of the Contract. 
9. “Contracts Finder” means the web-based portal provided for the purposes of Part 4 of the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 
10. “Contract Opportunity Publication” is the means by which a Procurement Exercise is 
advertised, and includes (where appropriate) the ‘Contract Notice’ and Contracts Finder as defined 
in the Public Contract 
Regulations 2015. 
11. “Contract Manager” means an Officer responsible for the administration and management 
of the Contract. 
12. "Contract Modification" means an alteration to the scope of the contract. 
13. “Corporate Contract” means any Contract or Framework Agreement or other arrangement 
put in place by the Council itself, ESPO, or any other Public Sector Organisation (including other 
Local Authorities) or 
Consortium in which the Council is entitled to participate and which, where necessary, has been 
awarded in compliance with EU legislation. 
14. “Council” means Leicestershire County Council. 
15. “Dynamic Purchasing System” means a completely electronic process, which has a limited 
duration, for making commonly used purchases, as more particularly defined and described in the 
Public Contract 
Regulations 2015. 
16. “Electronic Tendering System” means an electronic tendering system approved in 
accordance with Rule 5 (h) (ii). 
17. “ESPO” means the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation being a local authority 
purchasing and distribution consortium of which the Council is a joint member authority. 
18. "Estimated Value” means the value as estimated under Rule10. 
19. “E-Tender” means a Tender that has been submitted using an Electronic Tendering System. 
20. "EU Threshold" means the respective threshold for Services, Supplies, Works or Light-

 
Update 23: to delete “2006 and” 
 
Add definition: 
‘Contracts Register’  
A register of [current] contracts, commissioned 
activity, purchase orders, framework agreements and 
any other legally enforceable agreement with a value 
that exceeds £25,000 entered into by the Council and 
held on the Councils electronic tendering system” 

137



Touch Services contracts referred to in the Public Contract Regulations 2015. 
21. “Executive” means the executive or committee determined in accordance with the 
Council’s constitution. 
22. “Formal Tender Process” is a process following the requirements of Open Tendering, 
Restricted Tendering, Standing List, Negotiated Procedure, Competitive procedure with 
Negotiation, Competitive Dialogue or Innovation Partnership Procedure. And Formal Tender shall 
be construed accordingly. 
23. “Framework Agreement" is a general term for agreements with suppliers which set out 
terms and conditions under which specific purchases (call-offs) can be made throughout the term 
of the agreement. The 
Framework Agreement may, itself, be a contract to which the EU 
procurement directives and Public Contracts Regulations 2006 and 2015 apply. 
24. "Further Competition" is undertaken where not all the terms of a proposed contract are 
laid down in a Framework Agreement. It involves re-opening competition between the economic 
operators which are parties to the Framework Agreement and which are capable of performing the 
proposed contract, on the basis of the same or, if necessary, more precisely formulated terms, and 
where appropriate other terms referred to in the contract documents based on the Framework 
Agreement. 
25. “Invitation to Tender” means the document(s) containing the 
specification, proposed terms and conditions and other appropriate information as issued to the 
Tenderers to solicit Formal Tenders. 
26. “Irregular Tender” means a Tender that does not fully comply with the instructions given in 
the Invitation to Tender. 
27. “Life-Cycle Costing” means all or part of the following costs over the life-cycle of a product, 
service or works, to the extent that they are relevant: 
(i) Costs of acquisition; 
 (ii) Costs of use, such as consumption of energy and other resources; 
(iii) Maintenance costs; 
(iv) End of life costs, such as collection and recycling costs; 
(v) Costs imputed to the environmental externalities linked to the product, service or works 
during its life cycle, provided their monetary value can be determined and verified. These costs 
may include the costs of emissions of greenhouse gases and of other pollutant emissions and other 
climate change mitigation costs. 

138



28. “Light-Touch Services” means those services referred to in regulation 74 and Schedule 3 of 
the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 
29. “Officer” means an employee of the Council. 
30. “OJEU” means Official Journal of the European Union. 
31. “Person” includes a partnership, body corporate or unincorporated association. 
32. “Post Tender Negotiations” means the ability to negotiate with a 
Tenderer after a Tender has been opened and evaluated in accordance with the published 
evaluation criteria for the purposes of securing an improvement in the delivery of the contract 
including but not limited to improvements in price. 
33. “Procurement Exercise” means any process by which goods, services and/or works are to 
be procured including but not limited to Request for Quotations and Formal Tender Processes. For 
the purpose of these Rules a contract for a Concession shall be treated as a Procurement Exercise. 
34. “Procuring Officer” means any Officer, acting under the delegated powers of the 
appropriate Chief Officer, who is responsible for the procurement of works, goods and/or services. 
35. “Public Contracts Regulations 2015” means the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 as 
amended, consolidated, extended, re-enacted or replaced. These Regulations implement Directive 
2014/24/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council on Public Procurement. 
36. “Quotation” means an offer to sell works, goods and/or services at a stated price under 
specified conditions. A Quotation may or may not be 
written. 
37. “Request for Quotation” (“RFQ”) means a document or documents containing the 
specification, and proposed terms and conditions issued to potential suppliers to solicit written 
Quotations. 
38. “Standard Terms and Conditions” means standard contractual terms used by Leicestershire 
County Council, including those attached to iprocurement orders or orders generated by ‘line of 
business’ systems, those included in Request for Quotation templates, and standard industry 
terms. 
39. “Standard Selection questionnaire” means a questionnaire that complies with the Crown 
Commercial Service statutory guidance relating to 
Standard Selection Questionnaires. 
40. “Standing List” means a list of Persons which has been established in accordance with Rule 
27. 
41. “Suitability Assessment Question” means a question which relates to the subject matter of 

139



the procurement and is proportionate and which the Council requires for assessing the Tenderers 
suitability. 
42. "The Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-22" means the strategy document that explains how the 
Council's commissioning and procurement activity will be used between 2018 and 2022 to improve 
the quality of life for the people of Leicestershire and make Leicestershire the best possible place to 
live and work for everyone. 
43. “Tender” means the formal offer from a Tenderer, which is capable of acceptance by the 
Council, which is a response to an Invitation to Tender. It shall include all documents comprising 
the submission including pricing, technical specification and method statements as well as 
information about the Tenderer. A written Quotation is also a Tender. The term “Tender” also 
includes an E-Tender except where the context implies otherwise. 
44. “Tenderer” or “Tenderers” means the Person or Persons invited to participate in a 
Procurement Exercise. 
45. “Total Value” means the value of a contract which has been calculated in accordance with 
Rule 10(b) (excluding Rule 10(b)(vii)) reading where appropriate Total Value for Estimated Value. 
46. "In writing" or "written" for the purpose of interpreting these Rules includes transmission 
by any electronic means which have been 
approved by the Director of Law and Governance in consultation with the Director of Corporate 
Resources. 
47. Words imparting the masculine include the feminine gender. 
48. “Rule(s)” means these Contract Procedure rules as may be amended from time to time. 

 

140



 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES 
 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to propose updates to the County Councils Financial 

Procedure Rules contained in Part 4F of the Constitution. 
 
Background 

 
2. The Financial Procedure Rules set out the main financial management requirements 

of the County Council.  They apply to the Executive and Committees and to officers 
of the County Council. 
  

3. The Standard Financial Instructions (SFI’s) supplement the Financial Procedure 
Rules.  They are proposed by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and cover the more 
detailed procedures required for the control of the financial affairs of the Council. 
They include procedures for control of the capital programme, revenue budgets, 
contracts, ordering, payments, income collection, stocks and assets, banking and 
insurance.  
    

Proposed Revisions 
 
4. In order that the Financial Procedure Rules remain up to date and relevant it is 

necessary to regularly review and propose updates to these Rules.  A review has 
been undertaken which has identified a number of small changes needed. These are 
contained within Appendix A.  
  

5. The Constitution requires that changes to these Rules must be approved by the 
County Council after consideration by and taking account of any recommendations of 
the Corporate Governance Committee.  Subject to approval by this Committee the 
proposed changes will be submitted to the County Council at its meeting in 
December for approval. 
  

Recommendations  
 
6. That the County Council be recommended to approve the proposed changes to the 

Financial Procedure Rules as set pit om Appendix A to this report. 
 

141 Agenda Item 11



Equal Opportunities Implications 
  

7. None. 
 

Background Papers 
 
County Council Constitution, Part 4F – Financial Procedure Rules  
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s148647/Part4F%20Financial%20Procedure%20Rul
es.pdf  

 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
8. None 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix A - Proposed Amendments to the Financial Procedure Rules 

142

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s148647/Part4F%20Financial%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s148647/Part4F%20Financial%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/nwash/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7YRUSQR1/Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


1 
 

 APPENDIX A 
 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 
OF LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

NOVEMBER 2019 
 
 

ITEM PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

 

EXPLANATION 

 
PART 4F – FINANCIAL 
PROCEDURE RULES  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Rule 7 – Capital 
Programmes 

 
Amend section (c) to read as follows:- 
 
When the full County Council has given its approval, and in 
accordance with Finance Procedure Rule 22 regarding property 
matters, capital expenditure included in the first year of the 
programme may commence without further approval unless this 
is required by Government Departments or other outside bodies. 

 
 
 
To provide clarification that property acquisition and 
development is an Executive function (which is then subject 
to the delegations to the Director of Corporate Resources). 

 
Rule 19 – Redeployment 
or Redundancy 

 
 

 
Amend sections (a) and (b) to read as follows:- 
 
(a) The Chief Financial Officer will present an Organisational 
Change report to Employment Committee on a quarterly basis 
which provides information on the number of redundancies. 
 
(b) When preparing an Action Plan, the chief officer will have due 
regard to the requirements of the County Council's 
Organisational Change Policy. Chief officers shall consult the 
Chief Finance Officer over the funding arrangements for the 
Action Plan proposals.  

 
 
 
Updated wording to reflect current practice. Removed 
requirement to report each Action Plan to the Executive. 
 

 
Rule 22 – Property 
Acquisition, Disposal and 
Review 

 
Amend title to ‘Rule 22 – Property Acquisition, Development, 
Disposal and Review’. 

 
Inclusion of the word ‘development’ to reflect development 
projects in the Corporate Asset Investment Fund. 
 

143



2 
 

 
Rule 24 – Information 
and Communication 
Technology 
 

 
Amend sections (a) and (c) to read as follows:- 
 
(a) Corporate Strategy Chief officers and governors will comply 
with the relevant sections of the Corporate Information and 
Technology Strategy. The I&T Service should be consulted on 
any proposed purchase of systems or any major changes to 
existing systems and/or IT equipment. I&T will provide specialist 
advice, including technical standards and specifications that 
apply and will ensure satisfactory links with other systems where 
appropriate. 
 
(c) Control and Security Chief officers and governors are 
responsible for the overall management and control of their own 
computer systems. Departmental Information Asset Owners are 
responsible for the security and privacy of data held by the 
system. Where central and other users' systems are accessed, 
they are responsible for ensuring agreed controls are complied 
with. Instructions on how to carry out these responsibilities are 
included in the Corporate Data Governance Policy and the I&T 
Strategy. 

 
 
 
Minor updates to wording, titles and policy name changes. 

Standard Financial 
Instructions 
 
Instruction 10 – Imprest 
Accounts and 
Procurement Cards 

 

 
 
 
Amend section (b) to read as follows:- 
 
(b) The Chief Finance Officer may in consultation with the 
appropriate Chief Officer, provide Procurement Cards (pCards) 
where the type of spend or the practicalities preclude the 
purchaser from using the Council’s usual ordering and invoicing 
processes in an efficient way. Persons responsible must ensure 
the pCards are only used in accordance with the Council’s 
Scheme, have consideration to the Contract Procedure Rules 
where appropriate, be for the approved purposes of the 
department and maintain appropriate records.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Clarify that use should be in consideration of the Contract 
Procedure Rules, where appropriate. 

144



3 
 

 
Instruction 15 – Review 
of Charges 

 
Amend sections (b) and (c) to read as follows: -  
  
(b) Chief Officers will be free to decide on the pricing of 
discretionary services, i.e. traded services, though they must 
seek to cover all costs, including overheads, and where 
appropriate to make a profit, on all such activity. Where services 
are supplied within the County Council, any charges should not, 
as a matter of principle, seek to make a profit. 
 
(c) Charges for Statutory Services - where it is proposed to 
introduce, revise, or discontinue charges for statutory services, 
the Chief Finance Officer should be consulted before the 
proposal is progressed. Changes may be approved by the Chief 
Officer concerned following consultation with the Chief Finance 
Officer and appropriate Executive Lead Members.  
 

 
 
 
To clarify that traded services should seek to make a profit 
where appropriate, and approval by the CFO and 
appropriate Executive Lead Member is required in relation 
to charges for statutory services. 
  

 

145



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1st
 NOVEMBER 2019 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES   

QUARTERLY TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT  

 
Purpose of the Report   

1. To update the Committee on the actions taken in respect of treasury 
management for the quarter ending 30 September 2019 (Quarter 2). 

Background  

2. Treasury Management is defined as:  

“The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks”. 

3. A quarterly report is produced for the Committee to provide an update on 
any significant events in the area of treasury management. 

Economic Background 

4. The Council’s treasury management adviser Link Asset Management 
provides a quarterly update outlining the global economic outlook and 
monetary policy positions.  An extract from this report is attached as 
Appendix A.  The key points are summarised below. 

5. In the UK, there was a 0.2% quarter to quarter contraction of GDP growth 
during quarter 2, however this is expected to pick up in quarter 3 avoiding a 
technical recession.    

6. UK Consumer price inflation picked up to 2.1% but this is expected to remain 
around the Bank of England’s 2% target for the rest of 2019, although upside 
pressures indicate there is potential for this to rise early next year.   

7. Monetary policy in the UK remains unclear; whilst the Bank of England’s 
Monetary Policy Committee is continuing to wait for a Brexit outcome to 

147 Agenda Item 12



present itself before acting, the markets, premised by a “no deal” Brexit, are 
anticipating a cut sometime in the next nine months.    

8. With the Eurozone economy struggling to generate sustained growth, the 
European Central Bank (ECB) have redefined its policy stance. The ECB 
has made it clear that a rate cut, and further quantitative easing will be 
forthcoming, most likely towards the end of quarter 3 or start of quarter 4.  

9. In the US, the inversion of the yield curve heightened fears of a recession, 
but that is not reflected by data coming out of the real economy.  The 
change in the yield curve, though the best indicator of a coming recession, 
is not being supported by any weakening in building permits or the stock 
market or an increase in jobless claims.  The Federal Reserve cut interest 
rates by just 0.25% and then dampened expectations about future cuts. 

 
Action Taken during Quarter 2 to September 2019 

10. The balance of the investment portfolio increased from £257.8m to £266.1m.  
Within the portfolio, £112.8m of investment loans matured at an average rate 
of 1.02%, and £121.1m of new loans were placed at an average rate of 
0.85%.  

11. Quarter 2 was the first quarter since August 2018 where the average rate 
achieved on new loans fell short of the average rate on loans maturating. 
This is reflective of current market expectations and the pricing in of an 
anticipated rate cut in the short to medium term.    

12. The Chart below shows the weighted annual percentage rate (APR) achieved 
by the treasury portfolio compared to the Bank of England base rate. 

 

 

148



13. The downward trend in the portfolio weighted APR seen in quarter 2 is likely 
to continue for at least the next quarter and probably until there is greater 
certainty around the impact of Brexit.  Hence, opportunities will continue to be 
taken to manage the maturity profile of the portfolio and ensure an even 
spread of maturities throughout the year.         

14. The loan portfolio at the end of September was invested with the 
counterparties shown in the list below, shown by original investment date. 

 £m Maturity Date 

   

Instant Access   

Money Market Funds 26.1 October 2019 

   

6 Months   

Santander 5.0 November 2019 

Goldman Sachs  10.0 December 2019 

Goldman Sachs  10.0 January 2020 

Nationwide Building Society 10.0 January 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 January 2020 

Santander 20.0 March 2020 

Goldman Sachs 5.0 March 2020 

   

9 Months   

Australia & New Zealand Bank 10.0 February 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 April 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 May 2020 

   

12 Months   

Toronto Dominion Bank 15.0 October 2019 

Landesbank Hessen Thuringen 15.0 October 2019 

Commonwealth Bank of Australia 10.0 November 2019 

Lloyds (Bank of Scotland) 20.0 November 2019 

Lloyds (Bank of Scotland) 20.0 May 2020 

Australia & New Zealand Bank 10.0 May 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 June 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 July 2020 

   

Beyond 12 Months   

Partners Group (Private Debt) 20.0 Estimated 2024 

Danske Bank 10.0 September 2027 

   

Total Portfolio Balance at 
30th September 2019 

 
266.1 

 

   

 
 
 

149



Loans to counterparties that breached authorised lending list 

15. There were no loans active during the period that breached the authorised 
counterparty list at the time that the loan was made, and none that had 
already been placed to a counterparty that subsequently fell below the 
threshold that would have been acceptable for the remaining period of the 
loan following a credit-rating downgrade. 

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) interest rates 

16. On 9th October 2019 HM Treasury wrote to all local government Chief 
Finance Officers to notify them of an increase to PWLB interest rates of 1% 
on all new loans with immediate effect.  

17. PWLB lending is offered at a fixed margin above the Government’s cost of 
borrowing, as measured by gilt yields.  In recent months gilt yields have fallen 
and the cost of borrowing has reached record lows, prompting some local 
authorities to substantially increase their use of the PWLB.  By increasing this 
fixed margin, and making borrowing more expensive, the Government is 
hoping to reduce the burden on the PWLB.  

18. As the County Council currently has no plans to raise external borrowing this 
rate change will have no short-term impact. Should the Council’s plans 
change and a need for external borrowing arise this will be reassessed. 

Resource Implications  

19. The interest earned on revenue balances and the interest paid on external 
debt will impact directly onto the resources available to the Council. 

Equality and Human Rights Implications  

20. There are no discernible equality and human rights implications. 

Recommendation   

21. The Committee is asked to note this report. 

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure  

None 

Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
 

150

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk


Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 

Appendix A – Economic Overview (August 2019) 
 

151

file:///C:/Users/jfirth/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/0ABUO68F/Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 
 

Economic Overview (August 2019) 

Overview 

The risk of a UK recession was evidenced by the 0.2% q/q contraction of GDP 

growth in Q2 and the weak August PMIs, but economists are confident that Q3 

should prove better, and recession averted. The early holiday closure of car 

production in April means that the usual negative impact seen in August will not be 

felt this year, which should provide a sufficient boost to ensure that growth does not 

decline. However, looking ahead, performance will be defined by Brexit. While a “no 

deal” may not happen at the end of October, this might still only be kicking the can 

down the road to January if an extension to the process is requested/granted. If a 

deal can be achieved then the economy will just be at the mercy of the state of the 

global economy, but if a “no deal” proves the only way to exit the EU then there 

could prove to be more serious concerns. 

The Eurozone economy is coming under some stress but to date, with manufacturing 

facing a downturn, the services sector is holding up well and providing a crutch on 

which the bloc can lean … for the time being. The services PMI business activity 

index points to solid, but unspectacular annual growth of 1.5%. The internally 

focussed element of the sector is being underpinned by the steady and gradual 

improvement in the labour market, where levels of unemployment are at a near 11 

year low. Hiring intentions, though, point to slower employment growth to come and 

that labour shortages are not so great, which has been reflected in a slowing of wage 

growth in some areas. If household incomes weaken, and expectations of such 

increase, then the outlook for the services sector is not so upbeat, which in turn has 

implications for growth in the economy. 

The inversion of the yield curve heightened fears of a US recession, but that is not 

reflected by data coming out of the real economy. Three of the coincident indicators 

of a turn in the economic cycle are still trending higher; the one exception is 

industrial production, which has been dragged into negative territory by the recession 

in the manufacturing sector. The change in the yield curve, though the best indicator 

153



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 
 

of a coming recession, is not being supported by any weakening in building permits 

or the stock market or an increase in jobless claims. 

Japanese Q1 GDP growth was more robust than analysts had been expecting 

despite a marked slowing of employment growth. That slowing is more a function of 

structural problems than a cyclical issue, thus further declines can be expected. Q2, 

meanwhile, saw output per worker improve for the first time in two years. Given that 

business investment is expected to remain high relative to output, falls in 

employment growth will be less significant and productivity growth should improve. 

That improved output per worker could be a result of increased demand ahead of the 

October sales tax hike, which may, subsequently, see a dip as demand drops in Q4, 

but the underlying trend is higher. 

Domestic problems in Hong Kong could cause problems for financial flows into 

China as the separation from the mainland has enabled the City to operate on a 

different system, which remains attractive to external investors etc. However, the 

ongoing disturbances have highlighted the increasing distrust among Hong Kong 

citizens of their mainland rulers in maintaining this differential, with the risk that the 

state may move in to quell the protests. With the City such an important offshore, 

global financial operation the thoughts are that the Chinese government will refrain 

from overly aggressive action. However, the economics of the position may be of 

less importance than the putting down of unrest, to prevent spread of unruly 

behaviour to the mainland. The world will keep a watching brief … 

UK 

A small bounce in GDP growth is expected in Q3 to avert a (technical – i.e. two 

consecutive quarters of negative growth) recession, particularly as businesses halted 

stock building and car manufacturers took early holidays in Q2. With car plants, 

unusually, staying open in August, this should be positive for Q3 GDP growth, but, 

notwithstanding this, economists put underlying growth at 0.2% q/q. The 

manufacturing/construction PMIs have slumped in recent months, but the services 

equivalent has held up well. This is likely to maintain the Q2 rate of growth at 0.1% 

through August, though the CBI growth indicator reflects Q3 stagnation. Some 

154



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 
 

analysts are expecting quarterly growth to be at 0.4% in Q3, but there are downside 

risks. 

Household spending growth remained solid despite a slight slowing to 0.6% q/q in 

Q2. Provided there is not a “no deal” Brexit, there is no reason to think that this pace 

could not be maintained. The August Gfk consumer confidence index is consistent 

with 2-3% y/y retail sales growth. Meanwhile, stronger car sales in August suggest 

that, away from the high street, spending levels are holding up. Growth of household 

spending may have peaked for the time being but is not expected to go into a sharp 

reversal, given that steady income growth is forecast. 

Brexit preparations have weighed on trade data for some time, but there is no doubt 

that external demand remains softer. The Q1 surge in imports ahead of the March 

Brexit date was reversed in Q2, with the swing reflected in net trade’s contribution to 

GDP, but the influence on overall growth was more than masked by increased stock 

building. Weaker global trade has dented exports, with those to the EU declining by 

comparison to elsewhere, reflecting some impact from Brexit. There has been some 

benefit to the UK from the Sino-US trade conflict, as exports to each have increased, 

as new suppliers are sought to avoid tariffs. However, forward looking indicators of 

exports remain consistent with weak external demand continuing. 

Employment growth of 1.3% y/y in June remained above the long-term average, so 

Q2’s slowing rate of economic activity has not affected the labour market. The 

participation rate regained its 28-year peak of earlier in the year, which pushed the 

rate of unemployment a tick higher, to 3.9%. Average earnings growth, meanwhile, 

picked up to 3.7%. The strong rate of hiring looks unsustainable given that the labour 

market lags activity levels. The PMI employment balances are consistent with growth 

slowing to 0.7% by next year, while declines in job vacancy levels suggest a sharper 

ease. Wage growth may also have peaked according to surveys, but it should be 

sustained by the tight market conditions. 

Consumer price inflation picked up to 2.1% and will remain around the 2% target 

before picking up in 2020. The decline in later 2019 will be the result of lower utility 

prices. A bounce in 2020, though, is likely as stronger wage growth should push up 

155



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 
 

core services inflation, while Sterling weakness will maintain the higher levels of core 

goods inflation. 

Monetary Policy 

With the debate over exactly how the UK is to achieve Brexit still as fractious as 

ever, the possibility, or indeed the likely direction of a near term change in monetary 

policy remains unclear. The markets are looking for a rate cut sometime in the next 

nine months, but some of this is premised by a “no deal” Brexit and the potential 

requirement to stimulate the economy in the wake of leaving. As this report was 

written, the problems facing the Government have pushed it to the brink, with no 

majority, the Prime Minister losing all of the key votes, including that passing a law to 

prevent a “no deal” Brexit in October, and a complete impasse over how to leave, he 

has called for a General Election. Will an election resolve the problem … or just 

return another hung Parliament? Either way, whoever accepts the keys to Number 

Ten will not find a resolution to the problem any easier to achieve. In the near term, 

the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee will continue to sit on its hands 

and wait for an outcome of any variety to present itself before it takes any action. 

The ECB’s policy stance has been redefined. With the economy struggling to 

generate sustained growth, the central bank has made it clear that a rate cut and 

further QE will be forthcoming. The timing is likely to be the end of Q3/beginning of 

Q4, just as Mario Draghi vacates his office and Christine Lagarde slips into his barely 

chilled seat. Analysts suggest that stimulus will provide little support for bank lending, 

but lower interest rates will feed through to lower borrowing costs, with the recent 

Bank Lending Survey indicating that demand for mortgages increased in Q2, but 

there was a sharp dip in demand for consumer credit. 

The Federal Reserve cut interest rates by just 0.25% and then dampened 

expectations about future cuts. This will not sit well with the President who remains 

critical of the central bank for keeping rates too high, for too long. Markets still 

believe that the Fed will cut further but whether the Bank does so with the 

aggression being projected is open to question, with the Chairman indicating that the 

Fed will act as seen appropriate. 

156



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 
 

It is hard to see Japan raising rates while the economy continues to struggle to 

generate desired levels of inflation. China, though, could move in order to undermine 

some of the impact of the US tariff policy, but is stalling in order not to undermine 

any potential trade deal discussions. An easing of policy would weaken the Renminbi 

and make Chinese goods cheaper to import, and this will be helped by the Fed’s 

change of tack which suggested that a series of rate cuts is unlikely. 

 

Source: City Watch June 2019 - Link Asset Services 

157



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to:- 
 

a. provide a summary of work conducted during the period 13 July to 30 
September 2019; 

b. report on progress with implementing high importance 
recommendations. 

 
Background 
 

2. Under the County Council’s Constitution, the Committee is required to monitor 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, which is provided 
by Leicestershire County Council’s Internal Audit Service (LCCIAS).  To do 
this, the Committee receives periodic reports on progress against the annual 
Internal Audit Plan. 
   

3. Most planned audits undertaken are of an ‘assurance’ type, which requires 
undertaking an objective examination of evidence to reach an independent 
opinion on whether risk is being mitigated.  Other planned audits are of a 
‘consulting’ type, which are primarily advisory and guidance to management.  
These add value, for example, by commenting on the effectiveness of controls 
designed before implementing a new system.  Also, unplanned ‘investigation’ 
type audits may be undertaken.  Internal audit staff also undertake other 
control environment related work. 
 

Summary of progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 
 

4. This report provides in Appendix 1 a summary of work undertaken between 13 
July and 30 September 2019.   
 

5. For assurance audits (pages 1 and 2 of Appendix 1) an ‘opinion’ is given, i.e. 
what level of assurance can be given that material risks are being managed.  
There are usually four levels: full; substantial; partial; and little.  ‘Partial’ ratings 
are normally given when the auditor has reported at least one high importance 
recommendation, which would be reported to this Committee and a follow up 
audit would ensue to confirm action had been implemented.  Occasionally, the 

 
159 Agenda Item 13



 
 

auditor might report a number of recommendations that individually are not 
graded high importance but collectively would require a targeted follow up to 
ensure improvements have been made. 
 

6. LCCIAS also undertakes consulting/advisory type audits (pages 3 and 4).  
Where these incur a reasonable amount of resource, they are also included. 
Examples include advice, commentary on management’s intended control 
design and framework and potential implications of changes to systems, 
processes and policies.  
 

7. Pages 5 and 6 of Appendix 1 provides information on:  
 

a. Where LCCIAS either undertakes or assists with unplanned 
investigations.  These are not reported to the Committee until the final 
outcome is known.  This period, no investigations were concluded; 

b. ‘Other control environment/assurance work’, which gives a flavour of 
where internal auditors are utilised to challenge and improve 
governance, risk management and internal control processes which 
ultimately strengthens the overall control environment; 

c. where LCCIAS auditors are utilised to undertake work assisting other 
functions. 

. 
8. In order to remain effective, LCCIAS staff regularly attend training and 

development events and both midlands and national internal audit network 
events.  A summary of events attended during the last quarter is shown on 
page 7.    
 

Progress with implementing high importance recommendations 
 

9. The Committee is also tasked with monitoring the implementation of high 
importance recommendations.  Appendix 2 details high importance (HI) 
recommendations and provides a short summary of the issues surrounding 
these.  The relevant manager’s agreement (or otherwise) to implementing the 
recommendation and implementation timescales is shown.  Recommendations 
that have not been reported to the Committee before or where LCCIAS has 
identified that some update has occurred to a previously reported 
recommendation are shown in bold font.  Entries remain on the list until the 
auditor has confirmed (by specific re-testing) that action has been 
implemented. 
 

10. To summarise movements within Appendix 2:  
 

a. New – none 
b. In progress - Corporate Resources - Property Contracts Awards 

(extended); Corporate Resources - Leicestershire Schools Music 
Service (extended) 

c. Closed – None 
 
 
 

160



 
 

Resource implications 
 

11. There are no resource implications arising directly from this report. The costs 
attributable to employing agency staff is being met from staffing budgets. 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

12. There are no discernible equality and human rights implications resulting from 
the audits listed. 
 

Recommendation 
 

13. That the contents of the routine update report be noted. 
 
Background Papers 
 
The Constitution of Leicestershire County Council 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1187&info=1&MD=Constitution 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 10 May 2019 - Internal Audit 
Plan for 2019-20 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=434&MId=5854&Ver=4 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 

 
Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Service work undertaken between 

13 July and 30 September 2019 
Appendix 2 - High Importance Recommendations 
 

161

mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary of Internal Audit Service Work – 13th July to 30th September 2019                             Appendix 1 

Assurance Audits 

Department Entity Final report (or 

position at 30/9) 

Opinion HI Rec’n 

Adults & Communities Residents' Money - Managing the Finances of 

Vulnerable People 

29-Aug-19 (Draft) Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Cossington Primary School 24-Sep-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Payment by Results Claims for Supporting 

Leicestershire Families (SLF) 

21-Aug-19 n/a n/a 

Children & Family Services School Admissions 18-Sep-19 (Draft) Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Information Security Incident Management 30-Jul-19 Substantial  No 

Environment & Transport Grant – Local Transport Capital Block Funding 
(Integrated Transport & Highway Maintenance)  

30-Sep-19 n/a n/a 

Environment & Transport Grant - National Productivity Investment Fund-Hinckley 
Hub 

30-Sep-19 n/a n/a 

Environment & Transport Grant - Highways Maintenance Additional Funding  30-Sep-19 n/a n/a 

Environment & Transport Bus Service Operators’ Grant (BSOG) 25-Sep-19 n/a n/a 

Consolidated Risk  GDPR Compliance Audit  Ongoing  TBA  TBA  

Consolidated Risk  Records Management Audit  Ongoing  TBA TBA  

Consolidated Risk  ICT External Hosting  Ongoing  TBA  TBA  

163



 

 

Consolidated Risk  Subject Access Requests Ongoing  TBA TBA  

Consolidated Risk  Key ICT Controls 18/19  10-Sep-19 (Draft) Substantial  No  

Consolidated Risk  Information Security Awareness and Training  Ongoing  TBA  TBA  

Consolidated Risk Rights of Audit in Procurement Contracts Ongoing TBA TBA 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Overtime Payments Ongoing TBA TBA 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Card Access System Draft 04-09-19 TBA TBA 

Consolidated Risk Corporate Fraud - Purchase Cards Ongoing TBA TBA 

164



 

 

Consulting audits 

Department Entity Final report (or position 

at 30/9) 

Consolidated Risk Payments made using a generic element code 6 Aug 2019 

Chief Executives Coroners On-going 

Corporate Resources ISRA Notify.Gov – Blue Badge Service  31-Jul-19  

Consolidated Risk Tethering – linking a lap top to a mobile phone for internet Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Internal Audit continue to provide advice to the PSN working group as and when 

required.  

Ongoing  

Consolidated Risk Supplier Code of Conduct Draft Issued 

Corporate Resources Fit for the Future Project – IAS continues to liaise with the Project Team and 

Nottingham City Council internal auditors and also attend the monthly 

Information Security meetings at LCC. Meetings have been undertaken with the 

LCC Programme Manager to scope out the audit work in line with the revised 

go-live dates.  

Ongoing  

Corporate Resources Country Parks – Cash Collection Car Park Income 29-Aug-19 

Corporate Resources  Review of the following Policies and Procedures: 

 Surveillance Policy  

 Surveillance Acceptable Use Policy  

 Buying and installing guidance (Surveillance)   

 Surveillance requests guidance (internal and external)  
 
Attendance at the Information Assurance Group  

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

165



 

 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – The Big Word (Language Services)  Signed off 23-Sep-19 

Corporate Resources  ISRA - Exchange 2016/Hybrid  Ongoing  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Evo Claim Insurance System  Ongoing  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – HTTPS Scanning  Ongoing  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Multi-Functional Device and Print Management Software  Ongoing  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Speed Admin (Music Services Management System)  Ongoing  

 

 

166



 

 

Investigations concluded 

None during this period  

 

Other control environment/assurance work 

Department Entity Final report (or position 

at 30/9) 

Consolidated Risk Initial design with Communications Unit raising approach of fraud awareness in 

readiness for International Fraud Awareness Week (17 to 23 November 2019).  

This will include a poster campaign on both County Hall noticeboards and at 

outlying offices raising awareness in a number of key areas. 

Ongoing 

Governance Submission of the Local Code of Corporate Governance to Cabinet and Council Complete 

Governance Promotion of the Local Code of Corporate Governance to staff via DMTs by Head 

of Internal Audit and Director of Law and Governance 

Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Collation of risk related information from all Departments and preparation of Risk 

Management update reports to Corporate Governance Committee for 26 July and 

1 November  

Complete 

 

167



 

 

Work assisting other functions 

Department Entity   Position at 30/9 

Corporate Resources Work Experience Students – Provide overview of the Council’s Counter Fraud 

work 

Complete 

Corporate Resources Advice to Commissioning Support Unit regarding allegations of job-rotation on a 

framework. 

Complete 

Corporate Resources Advice to Human Resources regarding a conflict of interest’s issue surrounding an 

employee. 

Complete 

Corporate Resources Input to the Business Partner Team (C&FS) regarding: - 

 training sessions proposed for schools in effective financial management; 

 a ‘best practice for schools’ finance’ document currently underdeveloped 

. 

Complete 

All Departments Provision of support to all Departmental Management Teams (in conjunction with 
their assigned risk champions) to review their Tableau results (arising from the 
Risk Management Health Check) and take necessary actions to make 
improvements in any areas with the least positive responses, to ensure that the 
key issues that arose from the internal online risk management survey are 
addressed. 
 

Ongoing 

Corporate Resources Review the process for managing high ranking risks by creation of Action Plans – 
rollout completed in Corporate Resources, and where relevant other Departments 
to follow.  
 

Ongoing 

Chief Executives Department Update the Annual Departmental Business Planning Guidance 2021/21 regarding 

Risk Management. 

Complete 

 

168



 

 

Training, development and networks attended during the period 

Midlands Counties Heads of Internal Audit Groups 

Management day 

 NAO framework to review programmes; IIA Three Lines of Defence consultation; Third party risks; CIPFA statement on the role of the 

HoIAS in the public sector; DfE Transparency in maintained schools consultation; IIA Risk in Focus 

Fraud Group 

 Fraud landscape and recent developments, Insider Fraud, International Fraud Awareness Week, National Fraud Initiative, School Case 

Study, Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally (guest speaker), Procurement Fraud, Blue Badge Fraud, Investigatory Powers Act, Fraud 

Risk Assessment, Round-the-table summary of recent cases 

 IA facilitated a session on how Leicestershire has used International Fraud Awareness Week in previous years to give important 

messages to staff regarding fraud.  Raising awareness of fraud is a key defence and we discussed our digitised approach to this. 

ICT Audit Group 

 Governance; Data Analytics – tools & strategies; ICT Audit plans & resources; Emerging issues e.g. Microsoft Apps, use of Sharepoint  
 

Fraud Risk Assessment Training – a ‘masterclass’ giving thoughtful insight into how to conduct an effective fraud risk assessment within an 

authority.  This will lead to a change in how we approach our biennial fraud risk assessment at the time of next refresh. 

169



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
 

High Importance Recommendations at 30 September 2019 

 
Audit Title 
(Director) 

Summary of Finding(s) and 
Recommendation(s) 

Management Response Action Date 
(by end of) 

 

Confirmed 
Implemented 

Reported May 
2019 

    

Property 
Contracts 
Awards 
(CR) 
 

Management requested an audit of the award of 
property maintenance contracts and the 
allocation of work. Whilst the audit identified 
poor practice and control, no evidence came to 
light of any wrong doing. Management agreed to 
act on a number of recommendations to 
strengthen control. 

Agreed 
 
Work to check the processes for 
retrospective orders, continues. 
 
   

June 2019 
 

Extend to August 
2019 

 
Extend to Nov 

2019 
 

 

Leicestershire 
Schools Music 
Service 
(CR) 
 

At management’s request a review of the 
financial, operational and governance 
arrangements in place surrounding the 
Leicester-Shire Schools Music Service (LSMS) 
and it’s at arm’s length charity, the Leicester-
Shire Music and Cultural Trust (LMCT) was 
undertaken. This review included the separation 
of responsibilities between both the LSMS and 
the LMCT and to assess that proper procedures 
are in place for the administration of ensembles.  

 
A number of recommendations and an action 
plan for implementation were agreed with 
management, including improved governance 
arrangements, clearer job roles and 
responsibilities, revised contracts and overtime 
arrangements, revise procurement of transport. 
 
 

Agreed 
 
A new structure has been 
developed with new roles, Job 
Descriptions and contracts. An 
action plan was launched on the 
10th October 2019 and is currently 
out for consultation with staff. 
 
The Transport review will be 
undertaken next spring following 
required reports to Cabinet and 
Scrutiny 
 

September 2019 
 

Extend to Dec 
2019  

 
 
 
 
 

Pick up in 
Spring 2020 

 

 

171



 

Whilst none of the recommendations was 
deemed individually as “high importance” 
collectively the recommendations will require a 
targeted follow up to ensure improvements have 
been made. 
 

 
Audit/CGC/19-20/Nov19/Appendix 2 HI Progress Report       Last Revised 16th October 2019   
     

172



 
 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 1 NOVEMBER 
2019 

 
JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE 

RESOURCES &THE DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 
 

DEVELOPMENTS IN AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Corporate Governance Committee 
(the Committee) about current and planned developments in audit (mostly 
external audit) and governance, that are associated with the Committee’s 
responsibilities. 

 
Background 
 

2. A series of large scale corporate governance and financial failings in both the 
private and public sectors e.g. Carillion, BHS and Northamptonshire County 
Council, and criticisms of the roles taken by auditors has generated much 
interest into reviewing audit and governance arrangements in all sectors.    

 
 
Developments in local (external) audit 
 
Independent review into the arrangements in place to support the transparency 
and quality of local authority financial reporting and external audit in England 
(the Redmond review) 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-
financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views 
 
 

3. The responsibilities for how local authority audits are conducted is set down 
within the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The 2014 Act put in place a 
localised audit regime, refocussing local accountability on improved 
transparency. An independent review is taking place which will meet the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s (MHCLG) 
commitment to undertake a post implementation review of the audit framework 
and financial reporting elements of the Act. 
 

4. The Review, led by the former President of CIPFA, Sir Tony Redmond, is to 
examine the existing purpose, scope and quality of statutory audits of local 

 
173 Agenda Item 14

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views


 
 

authorities in England and the supporting regulatory framework to determine 
whether: - 
 

a. It is operating in line with the intent set out in the Act; 
b. The reforms have improved the effectiveness of the control and 

governance framework along with the transparency of financial 
information presented by councils; 

c. Whether the current statutory framework for local authority financial 
reporting supports the transparent disclosure of financial performance 
and enables users of the accounts to hold local authorities to account;  

d. The process, products and framework need to improve and evolve to 
meet the needs of residents and local taxpayers, and the wider public 
interest.  

 
5. A call for views, information and evidence (containing 43 questions) is 

underway and will last until 22 November 2019. In terms of the responsibilities 
of the Committee, the Review is interested in whether the governance 
framework for considering internal and external audit findings encourages local 
authorities to take prompt action in response to issues raised and whether it 
supports continuous improvement. It asks for details on committee 
membership, whether there are any independent members and which officers 
typically attend. It is also interested in how the implementation of audit 
recommendations is tracked and in exploring the relationship between internal 
and external audit, particularly if a closer or more codified relationship could 
lead to higher quality outcomes.  
 

6. The Director of Corporate Resources will respond to the consultation and 
share the response with the Chair of the Committee. The Review is due to 
report in March 2020. 
 

Proposals to revise the Local audit in England Code of Audit Practice 
 
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-
consultation/ 
 
 

7. The 2014 Act makes the National Audit Office (NAO) under the leadership of 
the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) responsible for the preparation 
and maintenance of the Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and gives the 
C&AG power to issue guidance to auditors in support of the Code, to which 
auditors must have regard when carrying out their work. The Code must be 
reviewed, and revisions considered at least every five years. A new Code 
needs to be laid in Parliament in time for it to come into force no later than 1 
April 2020.  
 

8. The NAO recently issued Stage 2 of the current consultation, which also closes 
on 22 November. There are some key improvements proposed in the draft 
Code including the need for local auditors to ensure that: - 
 

174

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/


 
 

a. Teams have the necessary skills and knowledge of the relevant 
financial reporting and regulatory frameworks to enable them to deliver 
their audit work; 
 

b. They have open and transparent arrangements in place for engaging 
with the public effectively; 

  
c. When reporting their findings, making recommendations, or exercising 

any of their wider functions, they ensure their reporting to local bodies – 
and to the wider public – is as effective and transparent as possible and 
promotes local improvement. 

 
9. The 2014 Act places a specific duty on the local auditor to be satisfied whether 

the body they are auditing has proper arrangements in place to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The draft Code 
proposes a new approach to auditors’ work in this area, putting a sharper focus 
on value for money (VfM) and an expectation of clearer and more timely 
reporting. The NAO considers the new approach will extract more value from 
current audit work and make auditor reporting more useful to the audited body 
and the wider public. It will not result in any form of scored judgement or rating 
or require local bodies to compile any form of self-assessment. 
 

10. While the focus on the arrangements the body has in place and the risk-based 
approach to auditors’ work is retained, the draft Code revises the previous 
reporting criterion to cover the following:  

a. Financial sustainability: How the body plans and manages its resources 
to ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 

b. Governance: How the body ensures that it makes informed decisions 
and properly manages its risks and finances; 

c. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: How the body uses 
information about its costs and performance to improve the way it 
manages and delivers its services. 
 

11. Rather than require auditors to focus on delivering an overall, binary, 
conclusion about whether (or not) proper arrangements were in place during 
the previous financial year, the draft Code requires auditors to issue a 
commentary on each of the criteria. This will allow auditors to tailor their 
commentaries to local circumstances. 
 

12. For work on arrangements to secure VfM, the draft Code introduces the 
expectation that where work identifies significant weaknesses in arrangements, 
the auditor will issue a recommendation to the body, setting out the auditor’s 
judgements clearly along with a summary of the evidence on which those 
judgements are based. The auditor should also explain the impact the 
judgement has on the body itself and set out clearly the actions the body 
should take in response. The draft Code also expects that, when they identify 
significant weaknesses in arrangements, the auditor considers whether to 
make their recommendation immediately, rather than wait until the end of the 
audit. 

 

175



 
 

13. The Director of Corporate Resources will respond to the consultation and 
share the response with the Chair of the Committee. 
 

 
Other developments relating to the wider external audit field 

 
14. Whilst the two consultations above are specifically relevant to the local 

government sector, other reviews into the audit domain could impact on local 
authorities and the public sector. These include: - 

 
a. ‘The Independent Review of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC)’ – 

the Kingman review was concluded in December 2018. The FRC 
regulates auditors, accountants and actuaries in the UK, sharing this 
responsibility with the professional membership bodies. The review 
recommended that the FRC be replaced with an independent statutory 
regulator, accountable to Parliament, with a new mandate, new clarity 
of mission, new leadership and new powers. The new regulator would 
be called the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority. 
 

b. ‘Statutory Audit Services Market Study’, final report, April 2019. The 
Competition and Markets Authority. recommended changes to the 
statutory audit market that will impact on local audit. This review also 
made a specific recommendation that audit committees should come 
under greater scrutiny by the new regulator (see Kingman). This should 
increase accountability of audit committees. This recommendation 
could translate into the public sector and local government. 

 
c. ‘Independent review into the quality and effectiveness of audit’ (the 

Brydon review). The review was commissioned in response to the 
perceived widening of the “audit expectations gap” - the difference 
between what users expect from an audit and the reality of what an 
audit is and what auditors’ responsibilities entail. Recent company 
failures have brought this gap into greater focus. There may be an 
additional gap between the information users of audited accounts 
believe is needed and what is available to them through audited 
financial statements or other publicly available information. A report  
to the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy is 
expected by the end of 2019. 

 
Developments in internal audit 
 
CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Sector 
Organisations 
 
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-
audit 

 
15. The revised Statement was published in April 2019. It is aimed at audit 

committees and leadership teams, helping them to understand the role of the 

176

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-audit
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-audit


 
 

Head of Internal Audit and the organisational arrangements that should be in 
place to provide effective support to the role. 
 

16. The Statement underlines that an audit committee plays a key role in relation 
to internal audit, providing oversight of the arrangements for the service and 
holding it to account for its delivery of the audit plan. It also plays a vital role in 
providing high-level support and helping to ensure that its reports and 
recommendations are considered and addressed by managers. A Head of 
Internal Audit can organise their team and ensure professional internal audit 
standards are met, but unless there is the right level of engagement with the 
audit committee and leadership team the impact and effectiveness of internal 
audit is likely to be undermined. Therefore, it is important that the audit 
committee understands its role and plays it effectively. 
 

17. The Statement has five principles that should be applicable to any public-
sector organisation. For each principle the organisational arrangements are 
identified along with the characteristics of the role and of the individual. The 
principles are aligned to the professional standards for internal audit: The 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
 

18. CIPFA advises that an audit committee can use the Statement when it reviews 
internal audit agenda items at its meetings, for example, an update of the 
internal audit charter or consideration of the annual opinion and report. The 
Statement can also inform the committee’s review of its own terms of 
reference, preparation of an annual report or self-evaluation. 
 

19. The Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service will conduct a self-
assessment against the Statement timed to take account of any governance 
changes identified in this report and will report back to a future Committee. 
 

Developments in governance 
 
‘Local Authority Governance’, Report by the Comptroller and Auditor General 
to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, January 2019. 
 
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Local-authority-
governance.pdf 
 

20. This report examined whether local governance arrangements provided local 
taxpayers and Parliament with assurance that local authority spending 
achieved value for money and that authorities were financially sustainable. The 
report addressed the questions in three separate parts: the pressures on the 
local governance system; the extent to which local governance arrangements 
function as intended; and whether the MHCLG was fulfilling its responsibilities 
as steward of the system.  
 

21. The report was critical of the MHCLG and commented that as steward of the 
system it had a responsibility for assuring itself that there was an effective local 
governance system in place. There were six recommendations including a key 
one relative to the responsibilities of the Committee, ‘The MHCLG should work 

177

https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Local-authority-governance.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Local-authority-governance.pdf


 
 

with local authorities and stakeholders to assess the implications of, and 
possible responses to, the various governance issues the NAO had identified, 
including: 
 

a. the status of section 151 officers and the efficacy of their statutory 
reporting arrangements; 

b. the effectiveness of audit committees, and how to increase the use of 
independent members; 

c. the effectiveness of overview and scrutiny functions and ways to 
enhance their impact;  

d. the sustainability and future role of internal audit. 
 
22. The report also recommended that the MHCLG should address the system-

wide gaps in its evidence base on governance; set out its expectations of 
network partners to address the current weaknesses in local governance 
arrangements; lead the sector in considering the issues and concerns raised 
about external audit; examine ways of introducing greater transparency and 
openness in relation to its formal and informal interventions in local authorities 
and adopt a stronger leadership role in relation to overseeing and coordinating 
the network of organisations managing key aspects of the governance 
framework. 
 

23. Based on the NAO report, the Committee of Public Accounts took evidence 
from the MHCLG, the Centre for Public Scrutiny, the LGA and CIPFA and 
produced a report on Local Government Governance and Accountability on 15 
May 2019. 
 

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmpubacc/2077/2077
.pdf 

 
24. This report was generally scathing of the MHCLG and contained five 

conclusions that the MHCLG: - 
a. Was not yet providing effective leadership of the local governance 

system; 
b. Did not know why some local authorities were raising concerns that 

external audit was not meeting their needs; 
c. Lacked reliable information on key governance risks, or relied on weak 

sources of information, meaning it had no way of pinpointing the at-risk 
councils; 

d. Monitoring was not focused on long-term risks to council finances and 
therefore to services; 

e. Had a complete lack of transparency over both its informal 
interventions in local authorities with financial or governance problems 
and the results of its formal interventions. 

 
25. MHCLG has agreed all eight of the recommendations and for five of them the 

target dates for implementation are November 2019. A key recommendation 
that may impact the Committee is to implement a Local Authority Governance 
and Accountability Framework Review Panel. The prime objective of the panel 

178

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmpubacc/2077/2077.pdf
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmpubacc/2077/2077.pdf


 
 

is to review the local government accountability framework and ensure it 
remains fit for purpose. Evidence may be called for. 
 

26. The Director of Law and Governance will update the Committee as required. 
 
CIPFA Financial Management Code (published October 2019) 
 

27. The Financial Management Code (the FM Code) provides guidance for good 
and sustainable financial management in local authorities. By complying with 
the principles and standards within the code authorities will be able to 
demonstrate their financial sustainability. 

 
28. The FM Code requires authorities to demonstrate that the processes they have 

in place satisfy the principles of good financial management. The FM Code 
identifies risks to financial sustainability and introduces a framework of 
assurance. This framework is built on existing successful practices and sets 
explicit standards of financial management. Complying with the standards set 
out in the FM Code is the collective responsibility of elected members, the chief 
finance officer and their professional colleagues in the leadership team. 
Complying with the FM Code with help strengthen the framework that 
surrounds financial decision making. 
 

29. The FM Code is principles based and covers, Organisational leadership; 
Accountability; Transparency; Professional standards; Assurance and 
Sustainability of services 
 

30. The code applies to all local authorities. By following the essential aspects of 
the FM Code, local authorities are providing evidence to show they are 
meeting important legislative requirements in their jurisdictions. The FM Code 
is not specified by legislation, but CIPFA’s judgement is that, ‘compliance with 
the CIPFA FM Code is necessary for local authorities to demonstrate that they 
are meeting important legislative requirements’. 
 

31. The first full year of compliance will be 2021/22. This reflects the recognition 
that organisations will need time to reflect on the contents of the code and can 
use 2020/21 to demonstrate how they are working towards compliance. 
 

32. The Director of Corporate Resources will update the Committee as required on 
the application of the FM Code. 
 

Centre for Public Scrutiny – Research into the strengthening of local 
governance (launched October 2019)  

 
33. A range of national bodies are working together to enhance councils’ 

understanding of how they can diagnose and reduce the risk of failure in 
corporate governance, and what success factors can point the way to greater 
strength in this area. Research is being led by the Centre for Public Scrutiny 
and is being funded by a consortium of partners including the MHCLG, the 
LGA and CIPFA. 
 

179



 
 

34. The research will focus on specific governance issues in order to: - 
 

a. Better understand what evidence can be found that could signpost to 
the risk of governance failure and help councils to mitigate those risks 
by strengthening governance systems. 

b. Provide practical advice to councils as to how they can recognise and 
act on the risk in their own area. Researchers will consider whether it is 
possible to come up with a consistent “typology” of local failure, and 
how this can be deployed at local level to improve. 

 
35. Findings alongside a practical toolkit for councils will be published in mid-May 

2020. The Director of Law and Governance will update the Committee as 
required. 
 

Resource implications 
 

36. There are no resource implications arising directly from this report. 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

37. There are no discernible equality and human rights implications resulting from 
the audits listed. 
 

Recommendation 
 

38. That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
Background Papers 
 
None  
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel : 0116 305 6199  
Email : chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk 
  
Lauren Haslam, Director of Law and Governance 
Tel : 0116 305 6240 
Email : lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service  
Tel : 0116 305 7629 
Email : neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 

180

mailto:chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk
mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2019
	6 Annual Audit Letter 2018-19
	6 - Appendix - GT Annual Audit Letter 18-19

	7 Risk Management Update
	7 - Appendix - Corporate Risk Register Update

	8 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review 2018/19 and Update on Complaints and Freedom of Information Requests
	8 - Appendix A Leicestershire County Council Annual Review letter
	8 - Appendix B LG Review - FINAL
	Ombudsman’s foreword
	Key complaint themes
	Public interest reports
	Landmark cases
	Using the statistics
	Supporting local scrutiny
	Statistics
	Recommendations
	Compliance with recommendations

	8 - Appendix C Benchmarking Data
	8 - Appendix D FOI & EIR Legislation

	9 Clinical Governance Annual Report
	10 Contract Procedure Rules
	10 - Copy of Appendix A- Approved Exception  Extension (1st Jul 2018 - 30th Jun 2019) -final_1.1 (002)
	10 - Appendix B Contract Procedure Rules Review 2019 Final V.4

	11 Financial Procedure Rules
	11 - Appendix A - Changes to FPR

	12 Quarterly Treasury Management Report
	12 - Appendix A - Economic Overview (August 2019)

	13 Internal Audit Service Progress Report
	13 - Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Service Work 130719 to 300919 final
	13 - Appendix 2 - HI Progress Report at 30 September 2019

	14 Developments in Audit and Governance

